
 
 

 
 

 
NOTIFICATION TO ATTEND MEETING OF THE NORTH WEST AREA COMMITTEE 

 
TO BE HELD IN THE CONFERENCE ROOM - BALLYMUN CIVIC OFFICES 

 
ON TUESDAY 18 JULY 2017 AT 2.30 PM 

 

 
AGENDA 

 
TUESDAY 18 JULY 2017

  PAGE 
 
1   Minutes of the North West Area Committee Meeting held on Tuesday 20th June 

2017   
 

5 - 10 

2   Questions to the Area Manager   
 

11 - 20 

3   Cabra Area Office Report, Fergus Synnott, Administrative Officer   
 

21 - 24 

4   Recommendation of Cherrymount House, Cherrymount Park, Phibsborough to 
the Record of Protected Structures, Paraic Fallon, Senior Planner   
 

25 - 40 

5   Motion in the name of Councillor David Costello 
 

That this Committee calls of Dublin City Council to create a passive policing and 
security plan for the area to the rear of Ashington Mews beside the new Rathoath 
Road flyover.  
 
 

 

6   Housing Cabra/Finglas Report, Derek Healy, Housing Manager   
 

41 - 46 

7   Finglas Area Office Report, Aidan Maher, Assistant Area Manager   
 

47 - 50 

8   Motion in the name of Councillor Cieran Perry 
 

This committee requests that a report is presented to the monthly Area 
Committee meeting outlining progress made in attempting to relocate the Abigail 
Centre from its current unsuitable location in a residential area. 
 
 

 

9   Public Domain Report, John Twamley, Public Domain Officer   
 

51 - 56 

10   Report on the Bin Survey/Rollout - Simon Brock, Administrative Officer, Waste 
Management   

57 - 60 



 

 
11   Sports & Wellbeing Partnership Report   

 
61 - 64 

12   Housing Allocations Report July 2017   
 

65 - 78 

13   Traffic Service Requests, Status Report   
 

79 - 116 

14   Minutes of the Traffic Advisory Group (TAG) Meeting   
 

117 - 
130 

15   Election of the Chair   
 

 

16   New Chair to confirm Agenda order for future NWAC meetings, as per March 
Minutes   
 

 

17   Verbal Update on the Consultative Forum for the Oscar Traynor Lands, Connell 
McGlynn, Project Liaison Officer   
 

 

18   Motion in the name of Councillor Anthony Connaghan 
 
That the Manager outlines proposals to deal with the roads/footpaths 
infrastructure in the North West Area. Currently there are many areas where the 
footpaths are lifting and where the roads are broken or potholes are present. 
Having one of the most elderly populations in Western Europe (HSE claim) we 
need to ensure our roads/footpaths are in a good condition to prevent 
falls/accidents. 
 
 

 

19   Motion in the name of Councillor David Costello 
 
That grass cutting and cutting of grass edges happens at the same time in a 
coordinated manner in the North West Area. As in many areas edges are left over 
grown. 
 
 
 

 

20   Ballymun Area Office Report, Mary Taylor, Assistant Area Manager   
 

131 - 
140 

21   Presentation on North City Operations Depot, Ballymun by Design Team Lead, 
Dermot O'Hagan, JNP Architects   
 

 

22   The proposed assignment of the Council's leashold interest in Unit 1 Coultry 
Neighbourhood Centre, Ballymun, Dublin 9   
 

141 - 
144 

23   Motion in the name of Councillor Cieran Perry 
 

This committee supports the retention of the current route of the number 11 bus.  
Residents are campaigning for the retention of this important public transport 
service for the local community. The No.11 serves our three main Dublin 
universities and many primary and secondary schools on one continuous route 
and facilitates access to these institutions for residents from both sides of city. 

  
 

 

24   Motion in the name of Councillor Noeleen Reilly 
 
That the area committee supports the naming of the co-op houses in Poppintree 

 



 

after Rose McNamara  or Róis Nic Chon Mara who was a member of member of 
Inghiní na h-Eireann from 1906 – 1921 and Vice-Commandant of Cumann na 
mBan in 1916. 
 
 

25   Motion in the name of Councillor Noeleen Reilly 
 
 
That the area committee expresses concern that Ballymun and Whitehall are 
excluded from the Dublin Airport Community Fund.   This is contrary to what was 
advised to councillors after a recent presentation at the Dublin Northwest area 
committee. 
 

 

26   Motion in the name of Councillor Noeleen Reilly 
 
The promised works for St Margaret’s Halting site are badly needed but it will lead 
to an overcrowding situation meaning many families will have to enter the 
homeless system.  This area committee now needs to identify land for Traveller 
Appropriate Accommodation.  
 

 

27   Motion in the name of Councillor Andrew Montague 
 
That the council work with Waterways Ireland to prepare a continuous walk-way 
along the river Tolka between Drumcondra bridge and the Botanic Gardens, and 
investigate continuing the walkway eastwards through the Botanic Gardens and 
Glasnevin cemetery to connect with Tolka Valley Park, and investigate connecting 
eastwards through Tolka Park. 
 
 

 

28   Motion in the name of Councillor Andrew Montague 
 
That the Council commence work on the Drumcondra LEIP 
 

 

29   Motion in the name of Councillor Andrew Montague 
 
That the Council works with DCU, the Glasdrum Arts and Cultural Committee, and 
local residents associations to set up a Drumcondra Festival.  
 

 

30   Motion in the name of Councillor Andrew Montague 
 
That the Council works with local volunteers to re-open the pool club that was so 
successful in Ballymun for years. 
 

 

31   A.O.B.   
 

 

 





NORTH WEST AREA COMMITTEE MEETING 
 

MINUTES 
 

TUESDAY 20th June 2017 
 
NWA/120/2017 Minutes of the North West Area Committee Meeting held on Tuesday 
   16th May 2017  
 
   ORDER: Noted. 
 
NWA/121/2017 Questions to the Area Manager. 
 
   ORDER: Noted. 
 
NWA/122/2017 Cabra Area Office Report, Fergus Synnott, Administrative Officer.  
 
   ORDER: Noted. 
 
NWA/123/2017 Proposed disposal of the side entrance to 15 St Fintan's Terrace,  
   Cabra, Dublin 7. 
 
   ORDER: Recommend to City Council. 
  
NWA/124/2017 Presentation on mid-term monitoring of the Ashtown/Pelletstown LAP 
   2014, Cáit Ryan, Executive Planner.   
 
   ORDER: Noted. 
 
NWA/125/2017 Motion in the name of Councillor Cieran Perry  
 
   This Committee believes that 12 months is an excessive length of time 
   for road reinstatement following works carried out by Dublin City  
   Council or their contractors. As an example, some road repairs on  
   Cabra Drive are outstanding since 2015 and further repairs after water 
   mains works are outstanding since September 2016. I have been  
   informed that these works are due to be completed by the end of  
   2017. 
  
   ORDER: Report to Councillor.  The North West Area  
   Committee will write to John Flanagan, Executive Manager  
   (Engineering) requesting a more detailed explanation for the  
   delays in repairing road reinstatements and also the quality of 
   the reinstatements. 
 
NWA/126/2017 Housing Cabra/Finglas Report, Derek Healy, Housing Manager.  
 
   ORDER: Noted. 
 
NWA/127/2017 Finglas Area Office Report, Aidan Maher, Assistant Area Manager.  
 
   ORDER: Noted. 
 
NWA/128/2017 Notification of intention to lodge Part 8 application for the proposed 
   social housing development at Scribblestown, Finglas, James Nolan, 

Page 5



   Executive Engineer and Mary Davis, Staff Officer, Social Housing PPP 
   Bundle 1. 
 
   ORDER: Noted. 
 
NWA/129/2017 Presentation on Notice of intention to apply for a Part 8 under the  
   Traveller Accommodation Project 2014 – 2018 to rebuild fire damaged 
   house: - 8 Avila Park,  Cappagh Road, Finglas, Dublin 11, Pat Teehan, 
   Administrative Officer, Traveller Accommodation Unit, John Flynn, 
   Senior Executive Architect, City Architect's. 
 
   ORDER: Noted. 
 
NWA/130/2017 Motion in the name of Councillor Anthony Connaghan  
 
   That the Manager provide this Area Committee with details of work 
   being undertaken to relocate the Abigail Centre in order to fully  
   develop the Kildonan Lands efficiently. 
 
   ORDER: Report to Councillor.  Eileen Gleeson, Director  
   Dublin Region Homeless Executive be invited to attend a future  
  North West Area Committee Meeting. 
 
NWA/131/2017 Presentation on the Water Framework Directive, Draft River Basin 
   Management Plan for Ireland 2018-2021, Gerry O’Connell, Engineer, 
   Environment and Transportation - Surface Water and Flood  
   Management Services. 
 
   ORDER: Noted. 
 
NWA/132/2017 Derelict Sites Report, Paul Clegg, Executive Manager, Planning &  
   Property Management. 
 
   ORDER: Noted. 
 
NWA/133/2017 Public Domain Report, John Twamley, Public Domain Officer  
 
   ORDER: Noted.  Congratulations were extended to John  
   Twamley by the Councillors on his recent promotion to the  
   Department of Communications, Climate Action and   
   Environment. 
 
NWA/134/2017 Sports & Wellbeing Partnership Report. 
 
   ORDER: Noted. 
 
NWA/135/2017 Traffic Service Requests, Status Report. 
 
   ORDER: Noted. 
 
NWA/136/2017 Minutes of the Traffic Advisory Group (TAG) Meeting  
 
   ORDER: Noted. 
 
 

Page 6



 
 
NWA/137/2017 Motion in the name of Councillor Cieran Perry  
 
   Can the Manager explain why the North West Area Committee no  
   longer gets a quarterly Planning Enforcement report? 
 
   ORDER: Report to Councillor. 
 
NWA/138/2017 Motion in the name of Councillor Cieran Perry  
 
   Given the influx of planning applications for Student Accommodation 
   in Dublin, this committee calls on the Planning Department to prepare 
   a policy to address the genuine concerns surrounding the   
   overconcentration of such accommodation in residential areas. While 
   the Dublin City Development Plan 2016 - 2022 does refer to  
   overconcentration, the new policy would need to be more specific in 
   relation to acceptable numbers of developments and bed spaces  
   within a particular radius.     
 
   ORDER: Report to Councillor. 
 
NWA/139/2017 Motion in the name of Councillor Andrew Keegan  
 
   This motion asks that any further housing developments on all our 
   smaller sites in the Dublin North West Area be 100% public housing, 
   also to establish some criteria to allow for families living in the  
   community access to local homes. This is to avoid communities  
   feeling short-changed as far as access to public housing.   
 
   ORDER: Motion failed. 
 
NWA/140/2017 Motion in the name of Councillor Andrew Keegan  
 
   This motion asks that the Manager to suspend the unworkable  
   30/30/40 housing ratio as it is prejudice and discriminatory to working 
   families in our community. This policy is tantamount to social  
   cleansing and indicates that in some way that all families seeking  
   public housing are in some way nefarious and antisocial.  If we were 
   talking about coloured or ethnic diverse communities this policy would 
   be considered racist.  As it stands it is pro-market and anti-community. 
 
                                    ORDER:         Motion failed. 
  
NWA/141/2017 Motion in the name of Councillor Andrew Keegan  
 
   This motion proposes that Dublin City Council Management be  
   mandated to request the Minister of the Environment to increase the 
   economic threshold baring working families from accessing public  
   housing. Households with income up to 80,000 net should be  
   considered eligible to access public housing. 
 
   ORDER: Motion to be referred to Housing SPC. 
 
NWA/142/2017 Ballymun Area Office Report, Mary Taylor, Assistant Area Manager  

Page 7



 
   ORDER: Noted. 
 
NWA/143/2017 The proposed disposal of fee simple in Shangan Neighbourhood  
   Centre, Ballymun, Dublin 9. 
 
   ORDER: Recommend to City Council. 
 
NWA/144/2017 Motion in the name of Councillor Paul McAuliffe  
 
   The North West Area Committee calls on the Council to initiate  
   the closure of the laneway/extinguish the right of way of the lane  
   adjacent to 40 Glasnevin Park, 42 Glasnevin Park, 113 Glasnevin  
   Avenue, 115 Glasnevin Avenue. 
 
   ORDER: Report to Councillor. 
 
NWA/145/2017 Motion in the name of Councillor Edel Moran, North Central 
 
   To ask the Manager to examine the footpaths on Shanowen Road as 
   they are in bad condition.  
 
   ORDER: Report to Councillor. 
 
NWA/146/2017 Motion in the name of Councillor Andrew Montague  
 
   That the Council establish the ownership of George’s Graveyard on 
   Whitworth Road (behind National Council for the Blind), with a view to 
   re-opening the graveyard to the public. 
 
   ORDER: Report to Councillor. 
 
NWA/147/2017 Motion in the name of Councillor Andrew Montague  
 
   That the Council install a footpath along the green at the entrance to 
   Lorcan Road. This would be the natural route for residents coming 
   from Magenta Hall and Lorcan Drive. 
 
   ORDER: Report to Councillor. 
 
NWA/148/2017 Motion in the name of Councillor Andrew Montague  
 
   That the Council starts the process to acquire 8 and 10 Ferguson  
   Road. These houses have been derelict and empty for many years. 
   By purchasing these homes we can improve the amenity of the entire 
   street, and provide much needed housing. 
 
   ORDER: Report to Councillor. 
 
NWA/149/2017 Motion in the name of Councillor Noeleen Reilly  
 
   That the Manager looks at measures to prevent parking from DCU in 
   Shanowen Park as often there is nowhere for the residents to park. 
 
   ORDER: Report to Councillor. 

Page 8



 
 
NWA/150/2017 Motion in the name of Councillor Noeleen Reilly  
 
   That this Area Committee expresses concerns with the FAI about the 
   cessation of the Project FUTSAL programme for Ballymun/Finglas 
   area and writes to the FAI asking them to reconsider this decision.   
   The programme was set up to take on participants that were  
   unemployed and out of education.  Over the last 4 years there have 
   been 87 participants who have coached 1,370 children.  
 
   ORDER: Report to Councillor.  A letter will be sent on behalf 
   of the North West Area Committee to the FAI and Dublin City  
   Sport & Wellbeing Partnership expressing concerns re the  
   cessation of the Project FUTSAL programme. 
 
 
NWA/151/2017 A.O.B. 
 
   The election of the new chair will take place as part of the Area 
   Wide Matters at the July North West Area Committee Meeting. 
 
NWA Councillors:    
 
ORDER:  Councillors Noeleen Reilly, Anthony Connaghan, Emma Murphy, 

 Paul McAuliffe, Cathleen Carney Boud, David Costello, Cieran 
 Perry, Andrew Keegan, Teresa Keegan, Aine Clancy and Andrew 
 Montague. 

 
Apologies:  Councillors, Lord Mayor, Brendan Carr, Norma Sammon Seamus 
   McGrattan. 
 
 

Officials:          Dave Dinnigan, (Area Manager), Aidan Maher (Senior Executive 
  Officer), Mary Taylor (Senior Executive Officer), Derek Healy  
  (Area Housing Manager – Finglas/Cabra), Declan Ronan (Area 
  Housing Manager – Ballymun), Fergus Synnott, (Administrative 
  Officer – Cabra), Bridget Gilbert (Senior Staff Officer), Mary  
  Bellew (Staff Officer), John Twamley (Public Domain Officer),  
  Sean Callaghan (Graduate Engineer), Eoin Corrigan (Executive 
  Engineer), Gerry O’Connell, (Engineer-in-Charge), Cáit Ryan,  
  (Executive Planner), Jane O’Donoghue, (Senior Executive  
  Planner James Nolan), (Executive Engineer PPP), and Pat  
  Teehan, (Administrative Officer) Traveller Accommodation Unit. 

 
 
 
 

Councillor Noeleen Reilly 
         Chairperson 
 
The meeting concluded at 5.10 pm 
 
 

Page 9





Questions to the Area Manager 
 

North West Area Committee 
 

Meeting 18th July 2017 
 
 
 
Q.1 Councillor Paul McAuliffe 

To ask the Manager can the Council ensure the bins removed on (details supplied) 
during the pavement repairs are returned now that the work is complete.  
 

Q.2 Councillor Paul McAuliffe 
To ask the Manager to install a “children at play” sign on (details supplied). 
 

Q.3 Councillor Paul McAuliffe 
To ask the Manager can the Manager clean the lane at the rear of (details supplied). 
It was reported that it was always cared for by DCC. 
 

Q.4 Councillor Paul McAuliffe 
To ask the Manager can the council put dishing outside (details supplied) for car 
entry. This resident has limited financial means. 
 

Q.5 Councillor Paul McAuliffe 
To ask the Manager, a lady fell at this location and badly fractured her hand. She 
was in plaster and it cost her €100. She reported this fall to civic offices and said she 
did not want to make a legal complaint but simply wanted the path repaired. Despite 
this and several follow up emails the path is still not repaired.  The raised section of 
path is a trip hazard and is located at the tree outside (details supplied). 
Can the manager arrange for an immediate repair?  

 
Q.6 Councillor Paul McAuliffe 

To ask the Manager to install a simple railings around the green at (details supplied) 
to prevent bikes and illegal dumping. This would underline its new zoning as 
recreational.  
 

Q.7 Councillor Paul McAuliffe 
To ask the Manager, when will we install new pavements on the other side of (details 
supplied). 
 

Q.8 Councillor Paul McAuliffe 
To ask the Manager to investigate the possibility of installing a fence and kissing gate 
at the cul de sac from (details supplied).  The rationale behind the proposal is that 
residents are plagued with speeding scrambler motor bikes as the bollards at the top 
stop cars (including the guards from getting through). A number of children play on 
this road as it is a cul de sac.  
They are basically looking for something similar to what is down in (details supplied) 
area which has the same problem.  
 

Q.9 Councillor Paul McAuliffe 
To ask the Manager are there any plans to repair/replace the pathways on (details 
supplied) the resident has concerns that other roads nearby have been done in 
recent years but not this one.  
 
 

Page 11



Q.10 Councillor Paul McAuliffe 
To ask the Manager to inform me as to when the Pavements on (details supplied) will 
be replaced. Can this be included in the programme of works in future?  
 

Q.11 Councillor Paul McAuliffe 
To ask the Manager to replace the broken sections of pavement on (details 
supplied). 
 

Q. 12 Councillor Noeleen Reilly 
To ask the Manager to trim the trees between (details supplied) as the houses feel 
they are being blocked from the sunlight. 
 

Q. 13 Councillor Noeleen Reilly 
To ask the Manager to look at the condition of (details supplied). There are numerous 
potholes on the entire road. 
 

Q. 14 Councillor Noeleen Reilly 
To ask the Manager to arrange for clean up around (details supplied) and to Prune 
the Trees and Hedges. 
 

Q. 15  Councillor Noeleen Reilly 
To ask the Manager to allow the Hedges on the (details supplied) to grow a little 
higher. 
 

Q. 16 Councillor Noeleen Reilly 
To ask the Manager to look at fixing the potholes on (details supplied). 
 

Q. 17  Councillor Noeleen Reilly 
To ask the Manager as agreed last year to change the wood on the bins sheds in 
(details supplied) as the sheds are in very poor condition and replace with an iron 
gate. To also clean the gullies on these properties.  

 
Q. 18 Councillor Noeleen Reilly 

To ask the Manager when will the trees in (details supplied), be pruned as promised
 last year.  

 
Q. 19 Councillor Noeleen Reilly 

To ask the Manager for an update on (details supplied). 
 

Q. 20 Councillor Teresa Keegan 
To ask the Manager to provide an outside tap at a location (details supplied) to allow 
residents to be able to water their community garden. 
 

Q. 21 Councillor Teresa Keegan 
To ask the Manager to arrange to have pot-holes and trip hazards at a location 
(details supplied) fixed in such a manner that preserves the historical importance of 
the location. 
 

Q. 22 Councillor Teresa Keegan 
To ask the Manager to have the tarmac in the parking alcove at a location outside 
(details supplied) re-instated as it has become a trip hazard.     
 

Q. 23 Councillor Teresa Keegan 
To ask the Manager to arrange for weed-spraying to take place at a location (details 
supplied).  

Page 12



Q. 24 Councillor Teresa Keegan 
To ask the Manager to arrange for the pavements at a location (details supplied), to 
be inspected as residents have raised concerns regarding their poor state. 
 

Q. 25 Councillor Teresa Keegan 
To ask the Manager to provide an update on the work promised at a location (details 
supplied). The work promised to fix the drainage and replacing the flooring which has 
been damaged owing to the bathroom flooding.  
 

Q. 26  Councillor Teresa Keegan 
To ask the Manager if he will arrange for skip provision for waste disposal to be 
made at a location in (details supplied). To be provided to individuals to have to 
empty their attics as part of the ongoing insulation programme for timber framed 
houses. 
 

Q. 27 Councillor Teresa Keegan 
To ask the Manager what steps can be taken to prevent commercial vehicles using a 
route, vehicles travelling from the airport to Dublin port using (details supplied), as a 
rat run access to Dublin port. 
 

Q. 28 Councillor Teresa Keegan 
To ask the Manager to arrange for a pot-hole to be repaired at a location outside 
(details supplied). 
 

Q. 29 Councillor Teresa Keegan 
To ask the Manager to arrange for action to be taken to tackle graffiti and anti-social 
behaviour at a location, (details supplied). Residents report graffiti, stone throwing 
and people being pushed from bikes.  
 

Q. 30 Councillor Teresa Keegan 
To ask the Manager to arrange for a parcel of land at a location in (details supplied) 
to be retained in Council Ownership. The derelict parcel of land has recently been 
acquired by TII. Residents wish to have this integrated into the existing park. 
 

Q. 31 Councillor Andrew Montague 
To ask the Manager will the council replace the swings in Coultry Park. There were a 
variety of swings for different ages at the start of the summer, but in recent weeks 
there have been no swings in the park. The council should also give consideration to 
a swing for children with disabilities. Photo provided. 
 

Q. 32 Councillor Andrew Montague 
To ask the Manager will the council give details about the removal of access to the 
lane that was used to access George’s Cemetery (off Whitworth Road). Why was the 
lane closed? When was it closed? 
 

Q. 33 Councillor Andrew Montague 
To ask the Manager will the council clear the brambles at the back of (details 
supplied)?   
 

Q. 34 Councillor Andrew Montague 
To ask the Manager will the Council meet with the parish priest of (details supplied) 
to discuss how car parking will be managed in the (details supplied) when the 
proposed new houses are built on the car park beside the (details supplied). 
 
 

Page 13



Q. 35 Councillor Anthony Connaghan 
To ask the Manager to arrange for Pedestrian crossings at the junction of Finglas 
Road (N2) and the Old Finglas Road (Violet Hill). 
 

Q. 36 Councillor Anthony Connaghan 
To ask the Manager to arrange for appropriate traffic signage on Wellmount Avenue 
to indicate the presence of the school here. Currently there are no regulatory or 
warning traffic signs in the area. 
 

Q. 37 Councillor Anthony Connaghan 
To ask the Manager for an update on the following roads queries put in over recent 
months/years  
(a) Potholes on Cappagh Road adjacent Colaiste Eoin 
(b) re-instatement of footpath at 35 Finglaswood Road (Mellows Road section of 
maisonettes) 
(c) Tarmac landing at bus stop on Barry Road (no's 26-32). 

 
Q. 38 Councillor Anthony Connaghan 

To ask the Manager to arrange for the section of Casement Road on the 40 bus 
route to be re-surfaced as it has broken up on several parts recently and is in poor 
condition overall. 
 

Q. 39  Councillor Anthony Connaghan 
To ask the Manager to arrange for a cast iron sign to indicate Wellmount Courts 
presence off Wellmount Avenue 
 

Q. 40 Councillor Anthony Connaghan 
To ask the Manager to arrange for an inspection of (details supplied) to see if there is 
dampness is present, particularly in the bedroom, and to provide measures to deal 
with the issue. 
 

Q. 41 Councillor Anthony Connaghan 
To ask the Manager to arrange for the small section of road which runs from 
Wellmount Park/Drive to Cardiffsbridge Road to be removed and taken into the park 
at this junction and for the area to be secured appropriately. 
 

Q. 42 Councillor Anthony Connaghan 
To ask the Manager for an update on the road works at Dunsink Avenue. Are works 
due to be carried out at numbers 1 to 7? 
 

Q. 43 Councillor Anthony Connaghan 
To ask the Manager to arrange for the footpaths along (details supplied) to be 
inspected and work to be carried out to improve areas which are in poor condition. 
 

Q. 44 Councillor Cathleen Carney Boud 
To ask the Manager to arrange for the pruning of the tree which is overhanging in to 
the garden of (details supplied) . The contractors that were sent out pruned a 
different tree to the one requested. The residents tried to advise the contractor at the 
time which tree was the problem but the resident was ignored. This tree has been 
problematic for over a year now and needs to be pruned urgently. 
 

Q. 45 Councillor Cathleen Carney Boud 
To ask the Manager to confirm who has taken the decision to use all available 
resources in terms of electrical engineers to (details supplied), meanwhile, leaving 
areas with no electrical engineer to carry out necessary works. It would seem a very 

Page 14



irresponsible decision to delay required safety works such as pedestrian crossings to 
suit the business needs of (details supplied). This question refers specifically to the 
delay in getting the pedestrian lights at Griffith Ave (ext), outside the new Gaelscoil, 
operational since being installed a number of months ago. There are also pedestrian 
lights at Collins Ave awaiting an engineer. Can the CEO clarify when resources will 
be reallocated to the area for the completion of such works and will it be before the 
schools re-open in August?  
 

Q. 46 Councillor Cathleen Carney Boud 
To ask the Manager to confirm a timeframe for the low fencing around the swale at 
(details supplied) to be installed. Commitments have been given to provide the 
fencing to prevent motor vehicles crossing the green in the interests of safety for the 
residents and children who play on the green. Could the costs of this fencing also be 
stated. 
 

Q. 47 Councillor Cathleen Carney Boud 
To ask the Manager to pursue a CPO on the residential buildings of (details 
supplied). If the council is satisfied that it has exhausted all negotiations with the 
owners to purchase the buildings amicably, satisfied that the owners have provided 
no certainty as to their intentions to restore or sell the property, and that no other 
solution seems to be available to resolve the matter, then it is surely prudent of the 
council to begin the process of seeking a Compulsory Purchase Order. Can the 
manager also confirm if a demolition order on the buildings has been considered and 
reasons for not pursuing such an order which can be obtained under the legislation. 
 

Q. 48 Councillor Cathleen Carney Boud 
To ask the Manager to provide an update on (details supplied). Have the council 
reconsidered making another offer to purchase the houses or have the owners 
indicated their future intentions to sell or restore the properties. What is the current 
condition of the house with regards to safety, are they habitable?  
 

Q. 49 Councillor Cathleen Carney Boud 
To ask the Manager to arrange for an interim fire safety measure to be put in place at 
(details supplied), where the heat/smoke detection alarms have been disconnected 
due to an ongoing leak. Fire safety is of the utmost importance and could the 
manager URGENTLY install individual battery operated smoke alarms in the property 
until such time as the leak is fixed. It should also be noted that there are three small 
children living in the property aged 3years and newborn twins, naturally, the tenant is 
very concerned that such fire safety measures are not in place. Could the manager 
also give a timeframe for the roof to be fixed. The tenant has been told that the roof 
tiles have been discontinued and the council are seeking to replace them with an 
alternative.  
 

Q. 50 Councillor Cathleen Carney Boud 
To ask the Manager to arrange for the green area to the side of (details supplied) to 
be tidied up, landscaped and to consider planting. 
 

Q. 51 Councillor Cathleen Carney Boud 
To ask the Manager to arrange for the following works at (details supplied) 
A) To replace the front door which was planed by the carpenter last year but too 
much was taken off leaving a gap which causes a breeze and cold air blowing in. 
B) To replace the counter worktop and cupboards in the kitchen 
C) To address the drafts coming in from the balcony door and window 
D) To address the issue with the bedroom door opening out in to the hall 
E) To relocate the emersion heater in to the cupboard in the hall 

Page 15



F) To repair/replace the smoke alarm in the bedroom 
G) To install a carbon monoxide sensor, install a fire blanket and fire extinguisher for 
the apartment 
Please note that the tenant has a lung condition and some of these issues should be 
addressed with that consideration 

 
Q. 52 Councillor Cathleen Carney Boud 

To ask the Manager to arrange for fencing to be installed around the edge of the 
green area facing (details supplied) as children are running out on to the road while 
playing on the green. That part of the road is a dangerous bend. 
 

Q. 53 Councillor Cathleen Carney Boud 
To ask the Manager to arrange for a proper vent to be installed in the bedroom at 
(details supplied) as there is a lot of dampness/condensation in it. 
 

Q. 54 Councillor Andrew Keegan 
To ask the Manager how much rent was paid to Private landlords in HAPs /RAS in 
the NW area for 2015? 
 

Q. 55 Councillor Andrew Keegan 
To ask the Manager how many units were built in the NW area in 2015? 
 

Q. 56 Councillor Andrew Keegan 
To ask the Manager how much rent was paid to Private landlords in HAPs /RAS in 
the NW area for 2016? 
 

Q. 57  Councillor Andrew Keegan 
To ask the Manager how many units were built in the NW area in 2016? 
 

Q. 58 Councillor Cieran Perry 
To ask the Manager to provide a list of (details supplied) working in the North West 
Area and can he provide a breakdown of the number of units per site for each 
(details supplied)? 
 

Q. 59 Councillor Cieran Perry 
To ask the Manager confirm the amount Dublin City Council contributed to the cost of 
resurfacing the car park at the (details supplied)? 
 

Q. 60 Councillor Cieran Perry 
To ask the Manager confirm that the space used for parking at the (details supplied), 
is public space and under the control of Dublin City Council? 
 

Q. 61 Councillor Cieran Perry 
To ask the Manager provide an update on the (details supplied)? Can he also 
confirm when Councillor and community representation will be facilitated? 
 

Q. 62 Councillor Cieran Perry 
To ask the Manager provide an update on (details supplied). 
 

Q. 63 Councillor Cieran Perry 
To ask the Manager to request Planning Enforcement to investigate whether 
planning permission was required for the newly erected Mast on (details supplied)? 
 
 
 

Page 16



Q. 64  Councillor Cieran Perry 
To ask the Manager request an update from the (details supplied) in relation to the 
temporary location of (details supplied 
 

Q. 65 Councillor Séamas McGrattan 
To ask the Manager to clean up and replace the tarmac on the pathway around 
(details supplied)? 
 

Q. 66 Councillor Séamas McGrattan 
To ask the Manager to review not opening the gym in (details supplied) on bank 
holiday Mondays and to encourage regular members to use the facility on Monday? 
 

Q. 67 Councillor Séamas McGrattan 
To ask the Manager to repair the footpaths outside (details supplied)? 
 

Q. 68 Councillor Séamas McGrattan 
To ask the Manager to resolve the ongoing legal dispute involving the owners of 
(details supplied), due to a flood in the apartment two years ago? 
 

Q. 69 Councillor Séamas McGrattan 
To ask the Manager who owns the lane behind the cottages in (details supplied)? 
 

Q. 70 Councillor Séamas McGrattan 
To ask the Manager what control has DCC over air B&B facilities and how can 
residents on (details supplied) raise concerns they have over (details supplied)? 
 

Q. 71 Councillor Séamas McGrattan 
To ask the Manager what are the plans to move the bins from the current location in 
(details supplied)? 
 

Q. 72 Councillor Séamas McGrattan 
To ask the Manager what is the timeline for the overcrowding extension for (details 
supplied)? 
 

Q. 73 Councillor Séamas McGrattan 
To ask the Manager to install bollards or double yellow lines at the junction of (details 
supplied) to prevent cars parking on the new paths? 
 

Q. 74 Councillor Séamas McGrattan 
To ask the Manager what position is (details supplied)? 
 

Q. 75 Councillor Séamas McGrattan 
To ask the Manager if there are plans to extend the 30km zone from (details 
supplied)? 
 

Q. 76 Councillor Norma Sammon 
To ask the Manager to carry out a safety assessment on (details supplied) and to 
install ramps to slow traffic?  
 

Q. 77 Councillor Norma Sammon 
To ask the Manager to assess the lighting on (details supplied). Many of the lights 
are blocked by tall trees and do not serve their function on the road. Some residents 
feel unsafe as the street is not lit properly at night? 
 
 

Page 17



Q. 78 Councillor Norma Sammon 
To ask the Manager to set out and provide a detailed plan for the assessment of the 
6 month trial for the closure at (details supplied). What specific questions will be 
asked as part of the trial?  How will the Council assess the direct and indirect impact 
of the closure on residents, commuters and users of local amenities and schools? 
Will the residents be asked to vote?   
 

Q. 79 Councillor Norma Sammon 
To ask the Manager to repair the footpath along (details supplied). There are cracks 
in the pathway causing a hazard for residents.  
 

Q. 80 Councillor Norma Sammon 
To ask the Manager at (details supplied) the bus stop is immediately before the turn 
in for (details supplied). .A metre/2 metres could be cut off the footpath and the bus 
stop moved back a little it would free up traffic going left onto (details supplied). 
 

Q. 81 Councillor David Costello 
To ask the Manager to examine claims that the (details supplied) is being used for 
parking. Some of which is obstructing the pavement at times. 
 

Q. 82 Councillor David Costello 
To ask the Manager to request a review of (details supplied). The tenant can end up 
stranded upstairs in her own home when she has a sudden flair up of her illness. 
Carrying out these works would have a twofold benefit to the council. 1: Suitable 
housing for an infirmed tenant. 2: It would solve the overcrowding at the address. The 
tenant’s daughter who lives with her and is her primary carer is willing to come off the 
housing list if the overcrowding issue is solved as she would prefer to stay with her 
mother and care for her. 
 

Q. 83 Councillor Emma Murphy 
To ask the Manager could the insulation for (details supplied) be sorted as soon as 
possible? The resident has been waiting for some time now. Half of the attic was 
insulated and the tenant was told they would be back to pump the walls but they 
never returned, this was over a month ago. Also windows are due to be installed 
before the end of August, will this deadline still be met as the tenant is anxious about 
spending another winter without new windows installed.  
 

Q. 84 Councillor Emma Murphy 
To ask the Manager if safety features such as lights, CCTV can be put in place along 
the Royal (details supplied)? It may be an option for these works to be carried out in 
conjunction with the (details supplied). There have been numerous reports of 
antisocial behaviour and thefts from individuals along this section.  
 

Q. 85 Councillor Emma Murphy 
To ask the Manager if any sites in the NW Area may be suitable for affordable 
housing? 
 

Q. 86 Councillor Emma Murphy 
To ask the Manager if DCC are in a position to purchase any houses from the 
(details supplied)? 
 

Q. 87 Councillor Emma Murphy 
To ask the Manager if possible landscaping at the green at the corner of (details 
supplied), to upgrade it visually? 
 

Page 18



Q. 88 Councillor Emma Murphy 
To ask the Manager if the wall at (details supplied), can be repaired? 
 

Q. 89 Councillor Emma Murphy 
To ask the Manager can a general cleanup of (details supplied) be done as there has 
been some dumping? 
 

Q. 90 Councillor Emma Murphy 
To ask the Manager if the pothole on (details supplied), can be repaired? 
 

Q. 91 Councillor Emma Murphy 
To ask the Manager if the weeds on the paths on (details supplied), can be 
removed? 
 

Q. 92 Councillor Emma Murphy 
To ask the Manager if the ramps on (details supplied), can be resurfaced?  
 

Q. 93 Councillor Emma Murphy 
To ask the Manager if the footpaths on (details supplied), can be inspected and 
repairs carried out? 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 19





 
 
The Chairman and Members of 
North West Area Committee. 
 
Meeting: 18th July 2017 
 

Item No: 3 

 

Cabra Area Office Report 
 
 
Shared Services Proposal for Cabra Office 
Discussions have taken place with the Dublin North West Area Partnership (DNWAP) about 
the possibility of utilising the Shared Services Model to enable both organisations to operate 
from the DCC owned office at 97 Cabra Road. If agreement is reached the DNWAP staff in 
27/28 Annamoe Terrace will relocate to the Council office.  
 
The proposal would enable an upgrade of the Council Office to be undertaken as part of the 
redesign. A draft design brief has been prepared by the City Architect’s Division. Subject to 
agreement on design, estimated construction costs and rent it will be possible to deliver a 
sustainable, best practice example of shared services in our Cabra Office. 
 
Faussagh Avenue upgrade 
We approached Clúid with regard to a proposal to landscape the front of the Broome Lodge 
development in line with our overall plan to upgrade Faussagh Avenue. They are supportive 
in principle but, having sought advice from the Planning Department, they were advised that 
any reduction in the open space within the development for the residents would directly 
contravene the planning permission. The open space to the front of the scheme was a 
crucial element for the Planners at the time planning was granted, so a revised application to 
incorporate the public space is unlikely to be granted permission, and especially not within 
the time left available for completion.  
  
Given the percentage of older persons in the area and the new residents about to move into 
the scheme, the Clúid Architect suggests that seating to the front of the scheme and a bus 
shelter would be more practical and make a real difference to the local community. They 
could incorporate the seating along the boundary of the site and allow the bus shelter to 
encroach on the site slightly. We have asked them to explore this option. 
    
Mount Bernard Playground extension 
The Natural Play Area at Mount Bernard Park was completed. However, a post installation 
inspection identified a small number of snags which are being addressed.The park is now 
due to open by the weekend of the 15th July.  
 
Any questions may be referred to Debby Clarke, DCC Play Development Officer at - 
t: 2225396; m: 086 8150997; e: debbie.clarke@dublincity.ie. 
 
Navan Road Church car park 
The car park had become extensively damaged with large pot holes, particularly in the area 
adjoining the school .As this facility is extensively used by the Community, DCC agreed to 
assist with repairs. 

Page 21

mailto:mary.weir@dublincity.ie


Shandon Area 
Badly damaged kerbs on the corner of Shandon Crescent have been replaced and grass 
verges have been re-seeded on the Road, Park and Crescent. These had been extensively 
damaged due to the narrowness of roads here. 
 
Ashington Mews 
The Area Office has been liaising with residents regarding complaints of anti-social 
behaviour coming from the area in the environs of the Ratoath Flyover. We have proposed a 
number of measures and are also liaising with Irish Rail, Waterways Ireland and the Gardai. 
However, it should be noted that anti-social behaviour has been a long standing issue in the 
wider area over the years.  
 
Ashtown Grove car parking 
Residents have been seeking various measures to control parking on these landings and in 
front of the shops. However, businesses have opposed any measure involving paid for 
parking and we have now been informed by Traffic Department that DCC cannot consider 
any measures while property owned by DCC is being assessed for inclusion on the Vacant 
Sites register. The car parks on either side of the shops fall into this category. 
 
 
 
 

Community & Social Development  
 
 
Community Environmental Projects. 
The Faussagh Avenue Group organise regular clean-ups and have recently planted up the 
containers with summer bedding. They would welcome any new residents who would like to 
get involved. 
 
Mount Bernard Park 
The Parks Tennis Programme will run during the month of July.  
 
Christ the King Centre 
The upgrading of the grounds is well under way and the improvements are making a huge 
difference to the appearance of the Centre.  
 
Phibsborough Tidy Towns 
The Group is now organising additional clean-ups on Tuesday evenings and continue 
planting and maintaining the large amount of flower barrels throughout the area.  They also 
link in with the other environmental and residents groups in Phibsborough and the 
surrounding area. 
 
St. Peter’s Men’s Shed  
They meet every Tuesday in St Peter’s Court at 11am. New members are welcome. The 
group went on a trip to Belfast recently and are organising some more outings during the 
summer.   
 
Community Events 
The annual St. Peter’s Garden Party took place on Sunday 18th June with a large 
attendance. The annual Shandon Residents Community Day, which was held on Saturday 
1st July was also well attended. 
 
Both events were supported by DCC through the Community Small Grant Scheme and 
provision of gazebo’s, tables and bunting and staff attended to support activities on the Day. 

Page 22



 
Cabra 4 Youth  
Held a very successful Fun Day on the Canal to promote the new Kayaking Club on the 24th 
June. Kayaks on the water behind Des Kellys Shop and a barbeque was also organised on 
the day.  Work is in progress on their new base at the disused cottage which was handed 
over by Waterways Ireland and the group is looking forward to establishing the new Club. 
 
Summer Camps 
Cabra Parkside is running a two week Summer Camp from Monday 24th July to August 4th 
Monday-Friday with a full programme of activities.  Contact the Centre for details. 
 
Naomh Fionnbarra’s Campa Shamhraidh ran from 3rd July-14th July Monday-Friday. 
 
Ventry Park Community Centre has activities throughout the summer and information is 
available at the Centre. 
 
The Cabra Men’s Shed, History Group, Ladies Groups, summer projects and other 
community and residents groups are all organising their own activities and events so keep in 
touch locally to find out what is going on in your neighbourhood. 
 
The St Finbarr’s Festival will take place on the 2nd or 3rd week in August.  The date is to be 
confirmed and a programme will be available nearer to the time. 
 
Royal Canal Park.  
The Pastoral Worker, Kevin Mullally, is moving to a new area after seven years, during 
which time he has worked with the community development staff and the residents 
association establishing links within the community and setting up the parent and toddler 
groups and other initiatives. We wish him well in his new role. 
 
 
 
Aidan Maher 
Assistant Area Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 23





 
 
The Chairman and Members of  Conservation Section, Planning, Property 
 North West Area Committee.   Enterprise & Economic Development Depart 
       
 
Meeting: 18th July 2017 
 
Item No: 4 
 
 

 
Recommendation for the addition of Cherrymount House, Cherrymount Park, 

Phibsborough, Dublin 7 to the Record of Protected Structures in accordance with 
Section 54 and 55 of the Planning and Development Act, 2000. 

 

 
 

Photo of Structure 
 

 
 
Introduction 
It is proposed to initiate procedures under Section 54 and Section 55 of the Planning & 
Development Act 2000 to add Cherrymount House, Cherrymount Park, Phibsborough, 
Dublin 7 to the Dublin City Council’s Record of Protected Structures (RPS).  
 
Name and Address of Owner:  
Mary McDermott (Deceased), Executor of the estate: Jennifer O’Driscoll. 
 

Page 25



Report:  
This area committee report is based on an assessment report carried out on the building for 
Dublin City Council by Lotts Architecture and Urbanism Ltd., a Grade 1 Conservation 
Practice. 

 
Names of Applicants & Reasons for Addition: 

 Kevin Duff, An Taisce, Tailor’s Hall, Back Lane, Dublin 8 

 Gary & Emma Fitzgerald, 5 Cherrymount Park, Phibsborough, Dublin 7 

 Joseph Doyle, 7 Cherrymount Park, Phibsborough, Dublin 7 

 Patrick Burke, 8 Cherrymount Park, Phibsborough, Dublin 7 

 Ed Eustace, 15 Cherrymount Park, Phibsborough, Dublin 7 

 Bernard Edwards, 18 Cherrymount Park, Phibsborough, Dublin 7 

 Eric Jones, 24 Cherrymount Park, Phibsborough, Dublin 7 
 
The applicants cite a number of reasons for the placement of Cherrymount House on the 
Record of Protected Structures. The house is a late Georgian / early Victorian structure 
dating from c.1834, and is among the few buildings from this period in the area. The 
adjacent Stone Villa, which dates from a similar period, is listed as a protected structure. The 
applicants report that Cherrymount House is in good condition: ‘Unlike Stone Villa the 
property is in good condition and was reportedly occupied by its elderly owner until her death 
in 2016’.  
 
Planning History:  
No recent planning history 
 
Development Plan Zoning & location map:  
2016-2022 zoning objective: Z1 – To protect, provide and improve residential amenities. 
Cherrymount House is located on Cherrymount Park, Phibsborough, Dublin 7, on a site 
close to the junction of North Circular Road and Charleville Road. Cabra Road is to the 
north. The address is listed in documentation and directories as 283a North Circular Road. 
 

 
  

Page 26



Summary Description 
Cherrymount House is a detached four-bay two-storey house, built c.1834, and features on 
the first edition Ordnance Survey map in 1837. The house also comprises a two-bay two-
storey wing to the north west, a single storey wing to the east and a turret addition to the 
yard, all dating from the nineteenth century. The building was evidently built in phases, most 
probably in quick succession as all phases are represented on the first edition OS map 
(1837).  
 
A two-bay two-storey extension, dating from the early twentieth century is located to the 
centre of the north elevation.  
 
An adjoining single-storey apartment to the west and an adjoining two-storey house to the 
northeast were added in the late twentieth century. These units will not form part of the 
description or analysis.  
 
Hipped slated roofs to the nineteenth century elements, having terracotta and stone ridge 
tiles, stone coping to parapets, rendered chimney stacks and some cast-iron rainwater 
goods. Flat roof to the early twentieth century extension. Roughcast rendered walls to front 
(south) and side elevations, and north elevation of nineteenth century block to rear. 
Rendered walls to other elevations.  
 
Round-headed door opening to front elevation with moulded surround, timber panelled door, 
and plain fanlight and side lights. Timber windows to all elevations, replacement windows to 
first floor of front elevation. Oriel windows to ground floor of front elevation, dating from early 
twentieth century.  
 
Detached single-storey outbuilding to northeast, having pitched roof, stone and brick walls 
and timber doors and windows.   
 
Cherrymount House is set back from road, within landscaped gardens, having gravel path 
and forecourt, and rendered boundary walls with brick capping.  
 
Timber doors, architraves, skirting boards, and lath and plaster ceilings to interior rooms. 
Decorative cornices to ground floor living room. Moulded timber staircase located in 
twentieth-century extension to rear.  
 
Historical Background  
Cherrymount House was one of the original residences on North Circular Road. It was built 
on lands within the Monck estate in the early nineteenth century, and is referenced in the 
Monck estate papers.  
 
‘The property features in the papers of the Right Hon. Charles Stanley Viscount Monck of 
Charleville, Co Wicklow as property no. 56 in “Rental of Dublin Estate” held in the National 
Library’s Manuscripts Department. The tenants are listed as “Representatives Taaffe” and 
the yearly rent and Poor Law Valuation are stated as £42 and £34, respectively – both are 
significant valuations.’ (Gail Seekamp – Letter 18.04.17).  
 
Cherrymount House first appears in Thom’s Directory in 1835, which would suggest that it 
was constructed c.1834. It features on the 1837 OS map, unnamed and adjacent to ‘Rose 
Mount’. The two properties are named individually on the 1867 OS map.  
 
Cherrymount House originally had its own entrance and approach from North Circular Road, 
and this is still evident on the 1907 OS map. The houses on Cherrymount Avenue date from 
the mid-twentieth century, and it was at this time that the entrance gates were relocated, and 
Cherrymount House lost its direct connection with North Circular Road.  

Page 27



Thom’s 1835 Directory lists a ‘Mrs Taaffe’ as occupant at Cherrymount House, and ‘Robert 
Taaffe Esq. Attorney’ is listed at the same address in the Dublin Almanac and General 
Register of Ireland 1836 & 1837.  
 
It is reported that a well was located on the lands of Cherrymount House, though there is no 
evidence of this on the Ordnance Survey maps. ‘The house contains its own stables and a 
circular well that was a source of drinking water for locals. It was reputedly associated with 
Lord Phibb, of the family after which Phibsborough is named.’ (Kevin Duff, An Taisce – 
Letter 21.04.17).  
 
In the 1873 Thom’s Directory, ‘Matthew J Mooney Esq’ is recorded as the occupant of 
Cherrymount House.  
 
Dr JF Falvey of the Irish Medical Association was reported to be resident at Cherrymount 
House in 1946 (Irish Independent, April 1946).  
 
In May 1965, Cherrymount House was advertised for sale in the Irish Times: ‘Delightful old-
world non-basement residence detached in its own well-kept grounds adjoining North 
Circular Road convenient to city. 4 reception, 6 bedrooms, garage and outoffices, etc.’ (Irish 
Times, 22 May 1965).  
 
Though Cherrymount House retains much of its original 1834 footprint, additions to the rear 
(north), east and west date from the twentieth century.  
 
Map 1: First edition OS map, 1837. Cherrymount House features on the first edition OS 
map, unnamed and adjacent to ‘Rose Mount’ which may have been part of the same larger 
property at that time. The buildings are located on landscaped grounds, each having an 
entrance and tree-lined approach path from North Circular Road. The site is just outside the 
‘Municipal and Parliamentary Boundary’ outlined on the map. Cherrymount House is U-
shaped in plan, and a formal garden is depicted to the rear. ‘Stone Villa’ is situated on North 
Circular Road, to the southeast of the site.  

 
 
Map 2: Second edition OS map, 1867. The footprint of Cherrymount House remains largely 
unchanged. The building is named ‘Cherry Mount’, with ‘Rose Mount’ to the west. There is a 

Page 28



small addition to the northwest corner of the house, and an outbuilding to the northeast. The 
Midland Great Western Railway has been completed to the east of the site.  
 

 
 
Map 3: Thom’s Directory map, 1874 Thom’s 1874 Directory map reflects the information 
on the second edition OS map.  

 
 
Map 4: OS map, 1886. More detail is evident in the 1886 OS map, which depicts an 
additional single storey addition to the southwest corner of the house, and a small structure 
along the northeastern boundary of the formal garden. The outbuilding has been extended. 

Page 29



Charleville Terrace (unnamed) has been built along North Circular Road, immediately to the 
south of Cherrymount House.  
 

 
 
Map 5: Third edition OS map, 1907. The footprint of Cherrymount House remains 
unchanged in the 1907 OS map. A small structure is evident to the south of the house along 
the approach path. Houses have been built along the Charleville Road, which has been 
established to the west of the site. ‘McCarthy’s Buildings’ are depicted on the adjacent land 
to the northeast.  
 
 

 
 

Page 30



Map 6: OS map, 1936. The footprint of the house has been extended, and the building 
features an infill addition to the north. Additional outbuildings are featured to the north of the 
house. A ‘Tennis Ground’ and pavilion are portrayed on the adjacent land to the northeast.  
 

 
 
Map 7: OS map, 1966. The footprint of the house remains the same as depicted on the 
1936 OS map, but the outbuildings are no longer extant. 26 houses have been built on the 
former lands of Cherrymount House, forming Cherrymount Park. Access to Cherrymount 
House is from Cherrymount Park, with entrance gates and approach to the southeast of the 
house. 
 

 
Map 8 Google earth map, 2017. Showing location of Cherrymount 

Page 31



 

 
 
Assessment of Special Interest under the Planning & Development Act, 2000 
 
The Categories of Special Interest are defined in the Planning and Development Act, 2000 
as architectural, historical, archaeological, artistic, cultural, scientific, technical and social. 
When assessed under the above categories, it is found that Cherrymount House, 
Cherrymount Park, Phibsborough, Dublin 7, is of architectural and historical interest. 
 
Architectural significance: Dating from c.1834, Cherrymount House is one of the earliest 
houses to be constructed on North Circular Road. Despite later additions and alterations, the 
structure and fabric of the original house remain largely intact and are of architectural merit. 
Though once part of a larger plot, with extensive gardens and a connection to North Circular 
Road, the current landscaped setting enhances the house and conceals it from the road. 
Early maps represent a U-plan house, with a two-storey extension added in the inner yard 
during the early twentieth century. The staircase is accommodated in this later extension, 
and it is unclear where the original staircase was located. The shift in first floor level between 
the central section of the house, and the section to the west would suggest that they may 
have been constructed separately, though both are depicted on the first edition of the 
Ordnance Survey map dating from 1837. This change in level is reflected in the first floor 
windows of the front elevation. The single-storey wing to the east sits on the original 
footprint, and most likely dates from the early phases of building. The early twentieth century 
oriel windows to the front elevation are elegantly detailed. The interiors retain original joinery, 
lath and plaster ceilings, and some decorative plasterwork.  
 
Historical significance: During the Great Amnesty Campaign of 1869, when rallies were 
held in Dublin to demand amnesty for Fenian prisoners, it is reported that a large rally was 
held on the lands of Cherrymount House, adding historical significance to the property 
(Ronan Scaife & Ger Lardner - Letter 17.04.17) 
 
NIAH Rating: Cherrymount House has not been included in the architectural inventory of 
Dublin city currently being undertaken by the National Inventory of Architectural Heritage 

Page 32



(NIAH). The surrounding area was surveyed by the NIAH, however due to this property’s 
secluded position; it was not included in the scope of their survey work.  
 
When evaluating the property using the NIAH criteria and rating system (International, 
National, Regional, Local and Record Only), it is found that Cherrymount House is worthy of 
a Regional Rating. Rationale for Regional Rating: Constructed in c.1834, Cherrymount 
House is one of the earliest houses to be constructed on North Circular Road. Despite later 
additions and alterations, the structure and fabric of the original house remain largely intact 
and are of architectural merit. 
 
Conclusion & Recommendation:  
 
Cherrymount House is considered to be of Regional significance. It is therefore 
recommended that Cherrymount House – 19th century residence, excluding later 20th 
century extensions, Cherrymount Park, Phibsborough, Dublin 7 be added to the Record 
of Protected Structures in accordance with Section 54 and 55 of the Planning and 
Development Act 2000. 
 
 

Recommendation 

Proposed 
Entry 

Cherrymount House – 19
th
 century residence, excluding later 20

th
 century 

extensions, Cherrymount Park, Phibsborough, Dublin 7 

 
 
 
 
Paraic Fallon  
Senior Planner 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 33



APPENDIX 
 

 
Extent of Protected Structure Status 
 
Extent of proposed protection for Cherrymount House is shown on the map below outlined in 
red. The proposed protection is limited to the main 19th century residence excluding 20th 
century extensions.  
 

 
 
 
 
Proposed Curtilage: 
Curtilage is marked in red.  
 

 

Page 34



Photographic Record (31/05/2017): 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 35



 

 
 
 

Page 36



 
Page 37



 

Page 38



 
 
 

Page 39



 
 
 
 

Page 40



 
 
The Chairman and Members of 
North West Area Committee. 
 
Meeting: 18th July 2017 
 

Item No: 6 

 
 

Housing Matters: Cabra-Finglas Report 1st Jan – 1st July  
 
 
Estate Management  

 FINGLAS CABRA 

No of Anti social complaints per 1997 act   Drug Related 35 10 

No of Anti social complaints per 1997 act   Not Drug Related 42 14 

No of other Complaints 121 89 

Total Complaints 198 113 

 

No of Anti Social Interviews per 1997 act 39 11 

No of Other Interviews 97 73 

Total Interviews 136 84 

 

No of Requests for mediation 11 8 

No of Complaints referred to central unit for Action 7 0 

No of Section 20 Evictions 0 0 

No of excluding Orders applied for by Tenant 0 0 

No of Excluding orders applied for by DCC 0 0 

No of surrender of Tenancies due to Anti Social Behaviour 1 0 

No of Notice to Quits sent to Central Unit 1 0 

No of Court Orders Granted 0 0 

No of Appeals / Judicial Reviews Challenges 0 0 

No of Warrants executed (Evictions) 0 0 

Page 41



Housing Allocations  

 

Senior Citizens Allocations  

Category Housing Transfers 

 FINGLAS CABRA FINGLAS CABRA 

Bands 2 & 3 2 1 1 0 

Medical 1 1 0 0 

Welfare 2 0 2 0 

Homeless 2 4 0 0 

Travellers 0 0 0 0 

De-tenanting 0 0 0 0 

Estate 

Management  

0 0 0 0 

Maintenance 

Grounds 

0 0 0 0 

Surrendering 

Larger 

0 0 0 0 

Unable to afford 0 0 0 0 

Total 7 6 3 0 

Category Housing Transfers 

 FINGLAS CABRA FINGLAS CABRA 

Bands 2 & 3 3 3 3 0 

Medical 2 0 1 0 

Welfare 0 0 1 1 

Homeless 0 1 0 0 

Travellers 0 0 0 0 

Estate 

Management 

0 0 0 1 

De-tenanting 0 0 4 3 

Page 42



 

Voids Report 

 

To the 1st of July there are 18 vacant housing units in the Finglas Area: 

Address Type of unit Date of 

vacancy 

Remarks 

31 Abbotstown Drive House 21/11/2016 Works in progress / On offer 

80 Cappagh Avenue House 06/06/2017 Works in progress 

201A Cappagh Road House 10/03/2017 Works in progress / On offer 

201B Cappagh Road House 10/03/2017 Works in progress / On offer 

14 Cardiffsbridge Avenue House 07/04/2017 Works in progress 

84 CardiffsBridge Road House 03/01/2017 Works in progress/ On offer 

52 Casement Drive House 09/06/2017 Works in progress 

19 Casement Green House 16/03/2017 Works in progress 

33 Dunsink Drive House 04/04/2017 Works in progress  

55 Finglaswood Road Maisonette 30/05/2017 Works in progress/ On offer  

49 Glenties Park House 30/01/2017 Works in progress 

1 Hazelcroft Gardens House 26/06/2017 Works in progress 

80 Kildonan Avenue House 24/03/2017 Works in progress/ On offer 

51 McKelvey Ave House 04/04/2017 Works in progress / On offer 

32 Plunkett Road House 03/04/2017 Works in progress 

61 Ratoath Avenue House 27/06/2016 * 

63 Ratoath Avenue House 26/07/2016 * 

3 Wellmount Court House 13/10/2016 Been used for Fire Emergency 

 
 
*61-63 Ratoath Road 
 
Amendments are currently been made to the design for this site. 

Maintenance 

Grounds 

0 0 0 0 

Surrendering 

Larger 

0 0 2 0 

Unable to afford 0 0 0 0 

Financial 

Contribution 

0 0 0 0 

Total 5 4 11 5 

Page 43



To the 1st of July there are 13 vacant housing units in the Cabra Area: 

Address Type of unit Date of 

vacancy 

Remarks 

273 Bannow Road House 30/01/2017 Works in progress/on offer 

17 Blackhorse Grove House 08/06/2017 Works in progress/ On offer 

160 Carnlough Road House 02/06/2017 Works in progress 

332 Carnlough Road House 12/04/2017 Works in progress / On offer 

6 Fassaugh Avenue House 20/02/2017 Works in progress / On offer 

139 Fassaugh Road House 24/03/2017 Works in progress 

41 Glengeigh Road House 24/03/2017 Works in progress / On offer 

50 Park View House 19/05/17 Works in progress 

55 Rathbourne Court Apt 19/05/2017 Works in progress 

297 Saint Attracta Road House 10/03/2017 Works in progress 

56 St Eithne Road House 05/5/2017 Works in progress  

91 St Eithne Road House 23/1/2017 Works in progress  

127 St. Jarlath Road House 06/02/2017 Works in progress 

 

 

To the 1st of July there are 7 vacant senior citizens units in the Finglas area: 

Address Type of Unit Date of 

vacancy 

Remarks 

3 Brookville Court 1 bed 07/06/2017 Works in progress 

35 Clareville Court Bedsit 19/06/2017 Works in progress 

36 Clareville Court Bedsit 23/06/2017 Works in progress 

60 Clareville Court 1 bed 19/06/2017 Works in progress 

2 Deanstown Court 1 bed 31/05/2017 Works in progress / On offer 

20 Mellowes Court Bedsit 18/05/2017 Works in progress 

57 Mellowes Court Bedsit 11/01/2017 Works in progress 

 

 

 

 

Page 44



To the 1st of July there are 6 vacant senior citizens units in the Cabra area: 

Address Type of Unit Date of 

vacancy 

Remarks 

40a Broombridge Road Bedsit 07/06/17 Works in progress 

4 Convent View Cres Bedsit 29/09/2016 Temporary letting 

6 Convent View Cres Bedsit 17/11/2016 On offer 

28 Convent View Cres Bedsit 13/04/2017 Works in progress 

9 Dunard Court Bedsit 26/04/2017 Works in progress 

18 McKee Court 1 bed 03/03/2017  On offer 

 
St Finbarr’s Court: 
City Architects are providing a more detail proposal on this site. 
   
Rents Update 
The Finglas Area Office continues to provide a rent assessment service for tenants living in 
the Finglas and Cabra areas.  
  

Finglas Rent Assessment Update 1st Jan – 1st June  

Assessments 402 

Permission To Resides 133 

Refunds 7 

 
 
Barry Area 
Court proceeding took place on the 10th July.  However, due to the tenant not having legal 
representation the case was adjourned until 9th October. 
 
Broome Lodge 

Nominations are being compiled at present for this complex. 

 
Woodbank Drive  
Tenders are being assessed and the funding application is with the Department. When 
funding is approved a Contractor will be appointed. 
 
Rathvilly Park/Virginia Park  
Tenders are being assessed and the funding application is with the Department.  When 
funding is approved a Contractor will be appointed. 
 
Prospect Hill  
Details are awaited from Development Department.  Full details of the remediation 
programme are still being finalised by the Receiver. 
 
 
 

Page 45



St Helena’s Drive Update  
Oaklee Housing has been authorised as the housing association that will be managing the 
St. Helena’s Court development. Nominations are being made at present for the 1st phase 
which is due to be ready for allocation by the end of July.  
 
The 2nd phase is due to be completed in September. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Aidan Maher 
Assistant Area Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 46



 
 
The Chairman and Members of 
North West Area Committee. 
 
Meeting: 18th July 2017 
 

Item No: 7 

 
 

Finglas Area Office Report 
 
 
 
Update on Kildonan Lands Project  
The public consultation continued throughout June. The draft masterplan was available to 
view at Finglas Library, WFTRA Community Centre, and the North West Area Office.  
A large number attended the Brady Shipman Martin (BSM) Q&A session at the WFTRA 
Community Centre on Tuesday, 20th June  
Submissions were received online and in hard copies. These are currently being analysed. 
BSM will present an updated plan at the September meeting of the NWAC. 
 

 
 

 
 
Roundabouts Update 
The Environment & Transportation Department have indicated that they will submit a report 
to the October meeting of the NWAC in relation to their assessments of the following 
roundabouts: 

a) Outside the Lidl store (junction of St Margaret’s Road and McKee Avenue). 
b) Jamestown Road. 

 
 

Display at WFTRA 

Page 47



Liam Mellows Statue 
A working group (WG) is being formed to assist the Liam Mellows Committee progress their 
proposal. Some of the key issues to be considered by this group include: 

a) Quality of the art and design of sculpture, plinth and environment. 
b) Technical issues, including design, fabrication and installation. 
c) Location. 
d) Financial costs. 
e) Permissions, including NWAC, Parks, and Planning. 

The Lord Mayor has asked that the first meeting be held at an early date. I will represent the 
Area Office on the WG. 
 
Tolka Valley Park Sports Pavilion 
Construction work commenced last August and is now completed. The Official Opening by 
Lord Mayor Mícheál MacDonnacha will be rescheduled for September.  
The building will have 24 hour CCTV monitoring. The facilities will be available from 8am to 
6pm Monday-Friday, and 9am-1pm Saturday.  
 
Widening of vehicular access to houses in Dunsink 
The works at Dunsink Lane/ Dunsink Road are now complete (photo below): 
 
 

 
 
NWA Planners 
Two staff in the Planning Department are the contact points for NWA planning queries: 
Senior Planner  Bryan Ward   €: 6169 
Senior Executive Planner Siobhan O’Connor €: 3472 
 
 
 
 
 

Community & Social Development  
 

 
Finglas Summer Projects  
This year there are seven voluntary and one non voluntary summer projects in Finglas. The 
projects run from July to the first week in August and cater for upwards of 900 children. 
Dublin City Council continues to support these projects with grant assistance as well as 
providing summer students to the projects. 
 
Summer Projects are run by voluntary committees and provide a valuable service to the 
local community. 
 

Page 48



Finglas Men’s Shed 
The group is progressing very well. There are now fifteen members. The group meets on 
Wednesday and Friday afternoons in the Abigail Centre. The group intends holding an open 
day in September and is actively seeking new members. 
 
Jazz in the Park 
Unfortunately, due to very bad weather, this event was held indoors in the FYRC. Those who 
attended were treated to a great performance from the excellent jazz band.  
 
Positive Ageing Week 
Positive ageing Week takes place from Monday 25th September to Sunday 1st October. 
There are a number of events taking place this year including Senior Table Quiz, Senior Ball, 
Older Persons Sports Day, and a Variety Show. Further information on these events will be 
available over the coming weeks. 
 
 
Finglas Festival  
The Finglas Festival Committee hosted the annual Finglas Festival on Saturday 8th July in 
Mellowes Park and Finglas Youth Resource Centre. The event went very well with a good 
attendance. Dublin City Council was one of the main funders for this event.  
 
 

.  
 
 
Environmental Enhancement Project’s 
The Community and Social Development Section is working with Global Action Plan on a 
number of “Greening Neighbourhood Projects”. The project will entail a Community 
Gardener from Global Action Plan working with our Tidy Towns Group, a local community 
group, and a residents group collaborating and working on a plan to enhance an area in 
need of improvements. It is hoped this collaborative project will benefit the groups and give 
them a better understanding of sustainable and bio diversity planting. Global Action Plan will 
work with these groups during July and August. The first enhancement project took place in 
Barry Park on Thursday 6th July. An area in the park was planted by residents under the 
supervision of GAP Ballymun.   
 
 

Page 49



 
 
Street Feasts 2017 
Street Feast 2017 took place on Sunday 11th June 2017. Street Feast is a day of local 
lunches across Dublin: the events are hosted by and run by neighbours. Street Feasts give 
communities the opportunity to share food and engage in conversation and help build 
stronger neighbourhoods. 
 
Street Feasts took place in eighteen locations across the Finglas area.  Dublin City Council 
supported the Street Feasts events by making a contribution to Street Feast Ireland.   
 
6th Annual Positive Wellness Fortnight  
The Finglas Wellness Fortnight will take place on Sunday 10th September to 22nd 
September. The Positive Wellness Fortnight will be launched on Sunday 10th September at 
1:30-3:30pm at the green area beside the Finglas Sports and Fitness Centre, Mellowes 
Road. 
 
The fortnight will include various free events and activities to promote positive wellness. 
There will be healthy eating workshops, baby massage, FYRC feel good factor workshops, 
lip sync battles, two wellness walks, two pamper days, SOS training, Jigsaw workshop, 
Abigail Centre Community Fete, HIV lunch time seminar and a men’s health promotion day. 
A booklet will be available with more details on all of the events and activities that will be 
taking place.  
 
Finglas Positive Wellness Group is an ad hoc group of diverse organisations and members 
of the Finglas Community, who work together to deliver services to help encourage positive 
mental health and also to educate the wider community with suicide awareness and training 
in suicide prevention. 
 
The Group is made up of representatives from the Finglas Suicide Network, Dublin City 
Council, Finglas Mental Health Association, The Finglas Centre, Finglas Safety Forum, HSE, 
Dublin North West Area Partnership, Finglas Youth Resource Centre, The Den, Pavee Point, 
Local Drug Task Force, Dublin City Sports & Wellbeing Partnership and the Community 
Gardaí.  
 
 
 
Aidan Maher 
Assistant Area Manager 
 

Page 50



 
 
The Chairman and Members of 
North West Area Committee. 
 
Meeting: 18th July 2017 
 

Item No: 9 

 
 

 
PUBLIC DOMAIN REPORT 

 

 
North West Area Complaints received via CRM  
 
The CRM is the system used by DCC Customer Services Centre and all departments to log 
and track complaints. Please see details below of the number of complaints received / 
investigated and closed by the North West Area Office from 1st June to 30th June: 
 

Type of Complaint Count of Incidents 

Abandoned Bicycles or 

Trolleys 
                 2  

 

Abandoned Vehicle Inspection                  1  
 

Community Cleanups                  6  
 

Homeless Materials                  1  
 

Illegal Dumping               103  
 

Pothole                   1  
 

Report Dog Fouling DCC                   2  
 

Report Graffiti                   4  
 

Sweep Your Street                   3  
 

Water - Miscellaneous                   1  
 

Weed Control                   2  
 

  126 

 
 
 
It is important to note that a significant number of additional complaints were also 
investigated as all area staff pick up complaints when carrying out daily duties but due to 
lack of resources all complaints are not logged. 
 
 

Page 51



Cardiffsbridge Road Enhancements 
In 2016 a programme of works was commenced to improve the public domain on 
Cardiffsbridge Road, in Finglas. The green area adjacent to the Wellmount Road junction 
was enhanced with tree planting, and planters of summer blooms were placed for the 
summer season at the area around Dunnes Stores. These planters attracted a lot of positive 
comment locally and as a result have again been provided at the same location.   
 
A further schedule of works on Cardiffsbridge Road is ongoing in 2017. Safety barriers to 
impede motor cycles have already been constructed at the Cardiffsbridge Avenue walkway. 
This week work started on the repair of the wall around the Cardiffsbridge Shops.  
Demolished sections have been repaired and a capping will be installed to enhance and 
strengthen this structure.  New bollards will also be provided at the entrances to the green.  
Funding has also been earmarked to repair the traffic barriers on Cardiffsbridge Road, 
adjacent to the Berryfield Drive cul de sac. It is expected that this work will commence in 
September. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Name and Shame Update 
The installation of a name and shame sign at Marewood Crescent has resulted in a very 
noticeable decrease in illegal dumping on the adjacent green space. The sign has also been 
very positively received by local residents, who have suffered the blight of illegal dumping 
close to their dwellings for a number of years.  Following on from this a second name and 
shame sign has been installed at the junction of Gateway Crescent and the Ballymun Road. 
This location was selected for monitoring by CCTV as it has been highlighted in recent IBAL 
reports as being an illegal dumping hotspot, particularly around vacant dwellings on 
Gateway Crescent.  It is hoped that this sign will have the desired effect of proving to be a 
deterrent to those who are engaged in illegal dumping at this location. 
 
Public Domain Works 
A number of public domain works have either been recently completed or are ongoing in the 
area to enhance public safety.  Further knee high wooden rails, similar to those recently 
installed on Griffith Road, have been installed on Beneavin Road to prevent vehicles parking 

Cardiffsbridge Shops wall repairs and 
enhancements scheduled over next few weeks 

Page 52



illegally, damaging grass verges and causing a slip hazard over the winter months.    
Barriers at Wellmount Green and Belclare Park are being modified to restrict the passage of 
motor cycles at speed. Railings are being installed on Cloonlara Road to discourage anti 
social behaviour in an area adjacent to dwellings and anti climb measures have been 
improved on a wall at a location in Glenties Park to tackle anti social behaviour.  Recent 
enhancements also include a new decorative sign installed at Botanic Avenue Senior 
Citizens Complex, and additional planters installed at several locations in the NWA. 
 
 

 
 
 
Installation of new Summer Flower Baskets 
The summer flower baskets have been a familiar sight in Finglas Village over the last few 
years.  This year poles have been installed in two other locations in the NWA to enable the 
placing of summer baskets. DCC Parks arranged for the installation of removable poles at 
the shops on Faussagh Avenue, in Cabra. These poles are designed to allow for their 
removal at the end of the summer season. The baskets have now been installed and have 
been widely welcomed by local residents and business as a colourful enhancement to the 
area. 
 
The NWA Public Domain Team worked with colleagues in the North Central Area and local 
businesses to install poles and baskets in Drumcondra Village.  The village has been 
recently rejuvenated, with a number of new businesses opening and excellent development 
work being carried out by the local business group. It is hoped that the summer blooms will 
support this work and enhance the village over the summer season.  
 

Knee high rails installed 
on Beneavin Road 

Page 53



 
 
 

 
 
 
WEEE Recycling information 
RecycleIT are a not for profit organisation who organize kerb side collections of WEEE 
materials throughout Dublin and surroundings areas. The organisation is very active in the 
NWA, with collections recently been completed in the Cabra, Phibsborough and Navan Road 
Areas. Collections commenced in Finglas and Ballymun on 3rd July, and will be taking place 
until mid-August.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

New flower 
baskets in 

Drumcondra 
Village and on 

Fassaugh Avenue 
in Cabra 

Page 54



Row 
Labels Quantity Weight 

boiler 2 58 

cooker 8 390 

d/washer 18 769 

dryer 11 398 

fridge 78 3224 

locker 7 243 

m/wave 100 1123 

monitor 35 335 

oven 4 110 

pc tower 161 1599 

small 

WEEE 3525 7332 

steel 35 97 

tv 275 6215 

w/machine 36 2397 

Grand 

Total 4295 24290 

 
 
Individual schools or community groups can also request WEEE collections by contacting 
RecycleIT on 01 4578321 and info@recycleit.ie 
 
 
 
 
 
JOHN TWAMLEY 
PUBLIC DOMAIN OFFICER 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Weights (kg’s) of WEE collected 
from Cabra, Phibsborough and 
the Navan Road during recent 
collections 

Page 55





 
 
The Chairman and Members of 
North West Area Committee. 
 
Meeting: 18th July 2017 
 

Item No: 10 

 
 

Litter Bins, Technology and Policy - Waste Management Division 
 
Introduction 
 
There is currently a stock of approximately 3500 standard litter bins in place in the Dublin 
City Administrative area.  These comprise of 3 styles of litter bin: 
 

 A type predominately situated in the city centre area (600) 

     

 B type located in the suburban areas (2450) 

     

 Cast Iron located in historic city areas. (450)  

      
 
 
In addition Dublin City Council has recently installed 110 dog fouling specific litter bins in 
locations throughout the city identified in conjunction with the Area Departments at entrances 
to parks, green areas and areas of high footfall dog walking. 
 
Dublin City Council currently has 48 solar compactor (Big Belly) bins in situ on a trial basis in 
3 locations: 
 

 Baggot Street and surrounds 

 Sandymount Promenade  

 Kilmainham at the historic jail. 

Dublin City Council has 9 Big Belly units located in Temple Bar that it owns. 
 
 
 

Page 57



Policy 
 
It is the policy of Dublin City Council to maintain this stock of bins and to ensure that bins are 
located at the most effective locations to cater for the needs of the city population.  The 
policy is to ensure that bins are located in close proximity to significant litter generators and 
in areas of high pedestrian footfall. 
 
Significant litter generators and areas of high footfall include: 

 Neighbourhood shops 

 Schools / Educational Facilities 

 Shopping centres 

 Leisure areas 

 Community centres / Facilities 

 Major bus stops / Transport hubs 

 Main thoroughfares / Arterial routes  

 Car Parks 
 

In order to ensure that bins are located in the most appropriate locations to cater for levels of 
demand and to ensure that bins are adequately serviced and maintained Dublin City Council 
is identifying ways of using technology to assist in managing this aspect of the service. 
 
Bin Tagging 
 
Dublin City Council is currently identifying each of its bins with a unique identifier number 
and QR code in order to map locations and maintain bin records.  This system also allows 
for the public to scan the QR code and report via a 2 step process any issues that they might 
encounter. 
This initiative allows DCC to better manage its stock of bins and coordinate maintenance 
and replacement of bin stock and identify through the mapping process areas where bins are 
not supplied in sufficient quantities or where there may be an oversupply of bins that could 
be relocated to areas of higher demand.  
 
 

  
 
 

Page 58



The QR code technology allows the public to report via a smart phone issues with bins. The 
report is directly relayed via the Customer Relations Management system to the operations 
teams allowing for a quick response to issues reported. 
 
 

              
 
 
 
 
Bin Sensors 
 
Complementary to the tagging and mapping process is the introduction of bin sensor 
technology.  Currently in use on a trial basis, to assess the effectiveness of the technology, 
bin sensors that monitor the fill levels of bins and provide reports when bins require servicing 
is in place. 

 
 
 
 
 
This technology allows DCC to identify high use locations 
and conversely locations that are low use or rarely used 
and may be potentially relocated to higher demand 
locations.  It can also be used to map routes and assist in 

increasing street cleaning over bin emptying on traditional milk round style routes.  The 
technology can be monitored via a web portal and alert systems set up at preset intervals to 
notify the relevant operations teams of bins that require servicing.   
 
This technology has been used in 40 locations, 20 in Finglas Village and 20 in Drimnagh to 
date and results have included an overall increase in service efficiency by reducing the 
number of bin collections required over the period of the trial.  The technology is relatively 
low cost and may be retro fitted to existing bins.   
 
 
 
 
 

Page 59



Solar Compactor Bins (Big Belly) 
 
Dublin City Council has carried out a trial of Big Belly bins in 
a total of 48 locations and currently has 9 units installed in 
Temple Bar.  These bins have the capacity to monitor fill 
levels and notify at set intervals and on an alert basis where 
bins require servicing.  They also have the additional 
function of an on board compactor which gives the bin up to 
6 times the capacity of a standard bin and consequently 
further reduces the frequency at which bins require 
servicing.  The telemetry and compactor technology is solar 
powered.  Similarly to the sensor technology alerts and 
route monitoring may be carried out via a web portal. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

     
 
 
The trials have delivered impressive results and Dublin City Council has carried out a 
competitive tender process to procure this type of bin.  It is expected that an initial purchase 
of this type of bin will be carried out in the near future. 
 
This type of technology is costly and its use is considered to be most beneficial in areas of 
high demand such as neighbourhood shopping locations or amenity areas which may have 
seasonal peaks such as Sandymount and Clontarf promenade. 
 
 
 
Simon Brock 
Administrative Officer 
Waste Management Division 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 60



 
 
The Chairman and Members of 
North West Area Committee. 
 
Meeting: 18th July 2017 
 

Item No: 11 

 

Dublin City Sport and Wellbeing Partnership Report 
 
 

 Green Scene is a new summertime initiative aimed at getting more people active through 
better use of our parks and green spaces in Dublin City. DCSWP Sports Officers will 
work with partners to organize new, interesting and enjoyable games, activities and 
coaching sessions.  
 
Complimenting The Green Scene will be the following: 
 
Seen on the Green – Efforts will be made to entice well known sporting personalities to 
attend activities. We will promote these through a ‘Seen on the Green’ segment on social 
media and other relevant media channels. This will help build the profile of the 
programme and assist with securing future sponsorship. 
 
The Green Machine – Awards/prizes will be presented to participants attending the 
highest number of sessions. 
 
Green Scene events taking place in the North West Area during this period include: 

 
 Whitehall Pentaque Group takes place every Wednesday morning from 10am – 

11am in Ellenfield Park (over 55’s)  
 

 Cycle Leader Training: A number of DCSWP Sports Officers combined recourses to 
facilitate a Cycle Leader Training Course on June 28th/29th in the Municipal Rowing 
Centre, Islandbridge, Dublin 8. This was a great success and further training dates are 
expected to be confirmed.  A number of adults from the North West Area communities 
are expected to attend this training and subsequently lead a six week ‘Bike for Life’ 
programme prior to the great Dublin Bike Ride in September. Updates to follow.  

 
 

 Older Adults Programmes - Cabra 
 Monday 1 - 2pm; Cabra Parkside Community Sports Complex - Go for Life            
 Wednesday 12 - 1pm; Inspire Gym and Pool, Ratoath Road, Cabra - Aqua Aerobics  
 Thursday  3 - 5pm; Cabra Parkside Community Sports Complex - Bowls                

                        .  
 
                     
 
 
 

Page 61



 Get Climbing Programme: This eight week indoor climbing certified programme is run in 
conjunction with Mountaineering Ireland and local youth services in Finglas. The 
programme is aimed at young people 14years and over and takes place in the 
Awesome Walls facility in Finglas. 

 

 An Outdoor Pursuits Programme (kayaking, mountain biking, rafting, rock climbing) will 
run throughout July and August in Ballyfermot Youth Service Adventure Centre. 
DCSWP Sports Officers in the North West Area will facilitate sessions for local youth 
groups. 

 

 Summer Projects – The local DCSWP Sports Officer for Finglas will help to facilitate a 
wide variety of activities for the various Summer Projects and camps taking place 
throughout the area in July and August. 

 

 Sports & Fitness Ballymun and Sports & Fitness Finglas will hold weekly Summer 
Camps for 5 – 12 year olds, commencing on Monday 3rd July. The camps will entail fun 
games/activities and swimming sessions and will run throughout the Summer. There will 
also be weekend swimming lessons for children from the age of 3 upwards, 
commencing July 8th. Each block of lessons will run for 4 weeks. 

 

 Sports & Fitness Ballymun are offering specific classes for people with back pain every 
Monday at 12pm (in partnership with the HSE)  

 
 Both Sports & Fitness Ballymun and Sports & Fitness Finglas have introduced a 

scheme whereby homeless people currently residing in nearby hotels can access the 
facilities at a reduced rate to assist with their physical and mental wellbeing (in 
association with DePaul) 

 
 
FAI/DCSWP Football Development Officers – Update 

 

 Paul Whelan and Jamie Wilson have just wrapped up the Project Futsal Programme for 
the 2016/17 academic year. The students will now be concluding their FETAC Level 4 
Award, ITEC Gym Instructors Award and their FAI Coaching Awards. 

 
The FAI/DCSWP Development Officers will be delivering eight weeks of Summer 
Soccer Camps. These camps will be held at various club and DCC venues throughout 
Dublin for the duration of July and August. The camp capacity each week is 100 kids 
and it is hoped to attract a lot of boys and girls from the Finglas and Ballymun areas. 
Students from Project Futsal will also be used as paid coaches on these camps. 

 
 
Boxing 
 

 Aviva Stadium Tours & Boxing Taster Session:   
All 5th and 6th class pupils and Transition Year students throughout the Dublin City area, 
including many from the North West Area, who took part in the Startbox Programme 
have been invited to take part in free tours of the Aviva stadium throughout June and 
July (which will be guided by DCSWP/IABA Boxing Officers).  Students will also 
experience a short coaching session and view some famous Irish, International and 
Olympic boxing memorabilia (this will be coupled with interesting and informative 
stories/anecdotes to inspire and educate the students!). 
 
 

Page 62



Cricket Development Officer Update 
 

 The Cricket Development Office is currently liaising with Sports Officers to organise the 
running of summer projects for the area e.g. summer camps, family fun days etc. 

 

 We have a number of players involved in the provincial teams (U11, U13, U15, U17 and 
U19), both male and female, from 9-18 years of age who have training sessions and 
cricket tours during this period. These sessions take place on a weekly basis at different 
venues in the Dublin City area. Although all the venues may not be in the area, a lot of 
the participants will be from the North West Area. These events include: 

 
 Dublin City Summer Camp - 17th to 19th July from 10am - 4pm in the Phoenix Park 
 Dublin City U17 match in YMCA cricket grounds on the 24th July from 11am - 5pm 
 Dublin City girls camp from 31st July  – 2nd August from 10am - 4pm (venue TBC) 
 Boys U11 training session on Friday 11th August from 10.30am - 1pm in YMCA 

cricket grounds.  
 Boys U11 interprovincial match in Pembroke CC on the 14th of August from 11am -

4pm. 
 Dublin City U12 Tournament in Pembroke CC on the 10th of August from 10am - 

4pm. 
 
 
Rowing Update from Dublin City Municipal Rowing Centre 
 

 Active Age Rowing - Tuesdays and Fridays from 12.20pm - 1.30pm, for new and on-
going participants aged 55 and over. No previous experience required.  
 
 

 Summer Youth & Community Project rowing slots – July: Summer Projects can book in 
for groups of up to 12 where they can experience an introduction to the sport in a safe 
and comfortable environment with user friendly equipment. 

 
 

 Youth Rowing Camps – August: During the month of August, youth rowing camps will be 
running from the Municipal Rowing Centre for children aged 10 years +. The camps will 
run Monday to Friday from 10am - 1pm at a cost of €50 per young person. No previous 
experience required, we will begin with the basics and help the participants to progress 
and improve their skills as the week proceeds. 

 
 

 Phoenix Rowing Club: A recreational rowing club for adults based in Dublin Municipal 
Rowing Centre. The club is purely aimed at getting people on the water to enjoy the 
activity and surrounding environs of the Memorial Gardens, Phoenix Park and River 
Liffey. No previous experience required and members can progress at their leisure to a 
level of their comfort and choosing. 

 
 
Contact details 
 
Shauna McIntyre, Dublin City Sport & Wellbeing Partnership Manager: 
shauna.mcintyre@dublincity.ie  
Antonia Martin, DCSWP Programmes & Services Development Manager: 
antonia.martin@dublincity.ie    
Paul Donnelly, Sports Officer: paul.donnelly@dublincity.ie  

Page 63

mailto:shauna.mcintyre@dublincity.ie
mailto:paul.donnelly@dublincity.ie


Michelle Waters, Sports Officer: michelle.waters@dublincity.ie  
John McDonald, Sports Officer: john.mcdonald@dublincity.ie  
Eileen Gleeson, Sports Officer: eileenb.gleeson@dublincity.ie  
Jamie Wilson, FAI Football Development Officer: jamie.wilson@fai.ie  
Paul Whelan, FAI Football Development Officer: paul.whelan@fai.ie  
Oisin Fagan, Boxing Development Officer: oisinfagan@gmail.com  
Fintan McAllister, Cricket Development Officer: fintan.mcallister@cricketleinster.ie  
Stephen Maher, Rugby Development Officer: stephen.maher@leinsterrugby.ie  
 
 
 
 
Alan Morrin 
Staff Officer 
 
 

Page 64

mailto:michelle.waters@dublincity.ie
mailto:john.mcdonald@dublincity.ie
mailto:eileenb.gleeson@dublincity.ie
mailto:jamie.wilson@fai.ie
mailto:paul.whelan@fai.ie
mailto:oisinfagan@gmail.com
mailto:fintan.mcallister@cricketleinster.ie
mailto:stephen.maher@leinsterrugby.ie


 
 
The Chairman and Members of 
North West Area Committee. 
 
Meeting: 18th July 2017 
 

Item No: 12 

 
 

 
HOUSING ALLOCATIONS REPORT JULY 2017 

CURRENT WAITING LIST STATISTICS AND LATEST LETTINGS REPORT  
 
 
Contents - 
Tables 1 (a)(b)(c) - JULY 2017 WAITING LIST FIGURES BY PRIORITY BAND CATEGORY AND AREA 
Tables 2 (a)(b)(c) -JULY 2017 WAITING LIST FIGURES BY WAITING TIME AND AREA 
Tables 3 (a)(b)(c) - JULY 2017 WAITING LIST FIGURES BY BEDSIZE REQUIREMENTS AND AREA 
Tables 4 (a)(b)(c) - JULY 2017 WAITING LIST FIGURES BY FAMILY SIZE AND AREA 
Table 5 (a) - JULY 2017 HOUSING WAITING LIST FIGURES BY BEDROOM REQUIREMENTS AND WAITING TIME ON LIST 
Table 5 (b)-JULY 2017 HOUSING WAITING LIST FIGURES BY FAMILY SIZE AND AREA 
Table 6 - JAN TO JUNE 2017 LETTINGS LISTS BY PRIORITY BAND & CASES HOUSED WITH DISABILITIES 
Tables 7  - JAN TO JUNE 2017 DCC, LEASING AND VOLUNTARY LETTINGS LIST FIGURES  
Table 8 - JAN TO JUNE 2017 LETTINGS LISTS BY PRIORITY BAND & CASES HOUSED WITH DISABILITIES 
Table 8 (a) JAN TO JUNE 2017 HOMELESS LETTINGS BY FAMILY SIZE AND AREA COMMITTEE 
Tables 9 (a)(b)(c) - JAN TO JUNE 2017 LETTINGS LIST FIGURES BY DWELLING SIZE AND AREA HOUSED 
Tables 10 (a)(b)(c) - JAN TO JUNE 2017 LETTINGS LIST FIGURES BY CATEGORY OF LETTING AND AREA HOUSED 
 
 
 
 

P
age 65



Tables 1 (a)(b)(c) - JULY 2017 WAITING LIST FIGURES BY PRIORITY BAND CATEGORY AND AREA 
July 2017 HOUSING Waiting List figures by Band Category Table 1(a)

Waiting List Code Area B  Area D   Area E    Area H  Area J  Area K   Area L  Area M  Area N  Area P    Grand Total

Traveller priority 72 19 24 1 33 6 2 1 0 0 158

Housing Medical priority 77 6 37 16 18 24 10 11 9 5 213

BAND Housing medical older 12 0 10 7 3 4 1 4 5 3 49

1 Housing Welfare 25 3 8 9 10 11 5 8 1 1 81

Housing welfare older 3 0 2 1 1 0 0 2 1 1 11

Homeless 685 186 312 392 209 138 203 90 67 28 2310

Homeless older persons 22 1 20 17 10 7 9 18 7 2 113

Housing List Band 1 Total 896 215 413 443 284 190 230 134 90 40 2935

Band 2 Housing list 1638 317 1117 716 683 674 501 371 492 121 6630

BAND Band 2 Housing older 68 2 75 72 21 29 27 43 80 13 430

2 Housing List Band 2 Total 1706 319 1192 788 704 703 528 414 572 134 7060

Band 3 Housing list 2736 382 1625 725 817 791 547 449 664 120 8856

BAND Band 3 Housing older 217 18 150 95 77 75 55 70 125 19 901

3 Housing List Band 3 Total 2953 400 1775 820 894 866 602 519 789 139 9757

TOTAL Housing List Grand Total 5555 934 3380 2051 1882 1759 1360 1067 1451 313 19752

July 2017 Transfer Waiting List figures by Band Category Table 1(b)

Waiting List Code Area B  Area D   Area E    Area H  Area J  Area K   Area L  Area M  Area N  Area P    Grand Total

Surrendering larger priority 10 7 20 10 15 8 15 11 6 4 106

BAND Transfer Medical priority 33 4 26 21 11 14 22 16 0 8 155

1 Transfer Medical older 8 4 11 14 6 6 9 8 4 1 71

Transfer Welfare 48 11 34 24 48 27 23 15 9 6 245

Transfer welfare older 5 0 4 3 8 1 6 3 3 0 33

Transfer List Band 1 Total 104 26 95 72 88 56 75 53 22 19 610

Band 2 Transfer list 252 48 207 193 174 196 189 124 46 39 1468

BAND Band 2 Transfer older 72 7 74 36 24 28 13 36 38 8 336

2 Transfer List Band 2 Total 324 55 281 229 198 224 202 160 84 47 1804

Band 3 Transfer list 1074 208 724 491 486 442 495 292 174 112 4498

BAND Band 3 Transfer older 57 37 73 61 68 36 73 39 42 11 497

3 Transfer List Band 3 Total 1131 245 797 552 554 478 568 331 216 123 4995

TOTAL Transfer List Grand Total 1559 326 1173 853 840 758 845 544 322 189 7409

July 2017 Combined Waiting List Figures by Band Category Table 1(c)

Waiting List Code Area B  Area D   Area E    Area H  Area J  Area K   Area L  Area M  Area N  Area P    Grand Total

Housing List Grand Total 5555 934 3380 2051 1882 1759 1360 1067 1451 313 19752

Transfer List Grand Total 1559 326 1173 853 840 758 845 544 322 189 7409

Grand Total 7114 1260 4553 2904 2722 2517 2205 1611 1773 502 27161  

P
age 66



 
Tables 2 (a)(b)(c) -JULY 2017 WAITING LIST FIGURES BY WAITING TIME AND AREA 
 

July 2017 HOUSING Waiting List Figures by waiting time Table 2(a)

No of years waiting on list Area B  Area D   Area E    Area H  Area J  Area K   Area L  Area M  Area N  Area P    Grand Total

0 to 1 year 856 143 372 231 239 198 155 129 139 23 2485

1 to 5 years 2267 332 1377 848 742 755 567 418 576 100 7982

5 to 10 years 1996 367 1223 744 735 618 475 381 508 109 7156

over 10 years 436 92 408 228 166 188 163 139 228 81 2129

Grand Total 5555 934 3380 2051 1882 1759 1360 1067 1451 313 19752

July 2017 TRANSFER Waiting List Figures by waiting time Table 2(b)

No of years waiting on list Area B  Area D   Area E    Area H  Area J  Area K   Area L  Area M  Area N  Area P    Grand Total

0 to 1 year 170 35 99 57 78 44 63 48 26 11 631

1 to 5 years 464 123 336 265 217 172 248 146 85 34 2090

5 to 10 years 495 112 351 256 258 240 268 179 97 48 2304

over 10 years 430 56 387 275 287 302 266 171 114 96 2384

Grand Total 1559 326 1173 853 840 758 845 544 322 189 7409

July 2017 COMBINED Waiting List Figures by waiting time Table 2(c)

No of years waiting on list Area B  Area D   Area E    Area H  Area J  Area K   Area L  Area M  Area N  Area P    Grand Total

0 to 1 year 1026 178 471 288 317 242 218 177 165 34 3116

1 to 5 years 2731 455 1713 1113 959 927 815 564 661 134 10072

5 to 10 years 2491 479 1574 1000 993 858 743 560 605 157 9460

over 10 years 866 148 795 503 453 490 429 310 342 177 4513

Grand Total 7114 1260 4553 2904 2722 2517 2205 1611 1773 502 27161
 
 
 
 

P
age 67



Tables 3 (a)(b)(c) - JULY 2017 WAITING LIST FIGURES BY BEDSIZE REQUIREMENTS AND AREA 

July 2017 HOUSING Waiting List Figures by Bedsize Requirements Table 3(a)

Bedsize Requirements Area B  Area D   Area E    Area H  Area J  Area K   Area L  Area M  Area N  Area P    Grand Total

1 Bed  2710 440 1601 1434 898 837 917 712 958 185 10692

2 Bed  2109 356 1285 461 736 613 321 276 349 77 6583

                3 Bed 678 126 447 142 224 263 97 70 122 45 2214

4 Bed  52 9 39 11 21 39 19 7 20 6 223

                5 Bed 6 3 8 3 3 7 6 2 2 0 40

Housing List Total 5555 934 3380 2051 1882 1759 1360 1067 1451 313 19752

July 2017 TRANSFER Waiting List Figures by Bedsize Requirements Table 3(b)

Bedsize Requirements Area B  Area D   Area E    Area H  Area J  Area K   Area L  Area M  Area N  Area P    Grand Total

1 Bed  435 123 363 389 260 189 424 269 181 76 2709

2 Bed  628 111 454 262 306 284 255 178 89 77 2644

3 Bed 429 74 305 178 233 237 150 87 47 31 1771

4 Bed  62 15 42 18 34 46 15 10 5 4 251

5 Bed 5 3 9 6 7 2 1 0 0 1 34

Transfer List Total 1559 326 1173 853 840 758 845 544 322 189 7409

July 2017 COMBINED Waiting List Figures by Bedsize Requirements Table 3(c)

Bedsize Requirements Area B  Area D   Area E    Area H  Area J  Area K   Area L  Area M  Area N  Area P    Grand Total

1 Bed  3145 563 1964 1823 1158 1026 1341 981 1139 261 13401

2 Bed  2737 467 1739 723 1042 897 576 454 438 154 9227

3 Bed 1107 200 752 320 457 500 247 157 169 76 3985

4 Bed  114 24 81 29 55 85 34 17 25 10 474

5 Bed 11 6 17 9 10 9 7 2 2 1 74

Combined List Total 7114 1260 4553 2904 2722 2517 2205 1611 1773 502 27161
 

P
age 68



Tables 4 (a)(b)(c) - JULY 2017 WAITING LIST FIGURES BY FAMILY SIZE AND AREA 
 
 
 

July 2017 HOUSING Waiting List Figures by Family Size Table 4(a)

Family Size Area B  Area D   Area E    Area H  Area J  Area K   Area L  Area M  Area N  Area P    Grand Total

Singles 2490 410 1459 1317 831 775 849 661 873 166 9831

Couples 190 27 138 116 61 59 68 48 80 16 803

Families 2875 497 1783 618 990 925 443 358 498 131 9118

Housing List Total 5555 934 3380 2051 1882 1759 1360 1067 1451 313 19752

July 2017 TRANSFER Waiting List Figures by Family Size Table 4(b)

Family Size Area B  Area D   Area E    Area H  Area J  Area K   Area L  Area M  Area N  Area P    Grand Total

Singles 391 107 316 343 218 158 372 228 162 66 2361

Couples 43 16 47 46 43 30 52 37 17 8 339

Families 1125 203 810 464 579 570 421 279 143 115 4709

Transfer List Total 1559 326 1173 853 840 758 845 544 322 189 7409

July 2017 COMBINED Waiting List Figures by Family Size Table 4(c)

Family Size Area B  Area D   Area E    Area H  Area J  Area K   Area L  Area M  Area N  Area P    Grand Total

Singles 2881 517 1775 1660 1049 933 1221 889 1035 232 12192

Couples 233 43 185 162 104 89 120 85 97 24 1142

Families 4000 700 2593 1082 1569 1495 864 637 641 246 13827

Overall List Total 7114 1260 4553 2904 2722 2517 2205 1611 1773 502 27161
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 69



Table 5 (a) - JULY 2017 HOUSING WAITING LIST FIGURES BY BEDROOM REQUIREMENTS AND WAITING TIME ON LIST 
 

July 2017 HOUSING Waiting List Figures by Bedsize requirements & Time on List Table 5(a)

Size No of years on list Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N    Area P  Grand Total

one bed 0 to 1 year 492 91 225 179 151 121 115 96 100 18 1588

1 to 5 years 1165 161 682 587 383 392 375 274 381 58 4458

5 to 10 years 902 162 558 523 313 268 321 247 340 72 3706

over 10 years 151 26 136 145 51 56 106 95 137 37 940

one Bed   Total 2710 440 1601 1434 898 837 917 712 958 185 10692

two bed 0 to 1 year 298 39 119 48 77 58 33 31 34 5 742

1 to 5 years 895 135 549 202 297 271 153 116 155 32 2805

5 to 10 years 769 147 471 166 307 228 113 104 120 22 2447

over 10 years 147 35 146 45 55 56 22 25 40 18 589

two Bed   Total 2109 356 1285 461 736 613 321 276 349 77 6583

three bed 0 to 1 year 59 11 25 4 10 16 6 2 4 137

1 to 5 years 186 31 130 50 58 80 34 24 37 8 638

5 to 10 years 307 55 180 53 108 104 31 30 38 13 919

over 10 years 126 29 112 35 48 63 26 14 43 24 520

three Bed Total 678 126 447 142 224 263 97 70 122 45 2214

four bed 0 to 1 year 6 2 2 1 2 1 0 1 15

1 to 5 years 17 3 15 7 3 11 5 4 3 2 70

5 to 10 years 18 2 12 2 6 18 7 0 9 2 76

over 10 years 11 2 10 2 11 8 6 3 7 2 62

four Bed   Total 52 9 39 11 21 39 19 7 20 6 223

five bed 0 to 1 year 1 1 1 3

1 to 5 years 4 2 1 2 1 1 11

5 to 10 years 1 2 1 3 1 8

over 10 years 1 4 1 1 5 3 2 1 18

five Bed Total 6 3 8 3 3 7 6 2 2 40

Housing List Total 5555 934 3380 2051 1882 1759 1360 1067 1451 313 19752
 

P
age 70



Table 5 (b)-JULY 2017 HOUSING WAITING LIST FIGURES BY FAMILY SIZE AND AREA 
 

July 2017 HOUSING Waiting List Figures by Family Size Table 5(b)

Family Size Area B  Area D   Area E   Area H  Area J  Area K  Area L   Area M  Area N   Area P    Grand Total

Single 2490 410 1459 1317 831 775 849 661 873 166 9831

Single + 1 1133 181 674 229 420 336 152 150 141 41 3457

Single + 2 604 145 422 108 206 203 63 45 69 22 1887

Single + 3 190 37 104 31 57 83 17 16 25 11 571

Single + 4 38 5 26 6 15 17 2 6 4 3 122

Single + 5 9 2 9 2 4 3 6 2 37

Single + 6 1 1 1 4 3 10

Single + 7 1 1 2

Single + 9 1 1

Singles Total 4465 780 2696 1694 1537 1420 1085 878 1118 245 15918

Couples 190 27 138 116 61 59 68 48 80 16 803

Couples + 1 295 36 151 71 75 77 62 57 89 17 930

Couples + 2 377 45 240 95 109 86 71 50 101 20 1194

Couples + 3 152 28 96 49 62 59 42 21 34 10 553

Couples + 4 49 10 40 16 28 34 13 7 20 3 220

Couples + 5 16 5 8 6 8 14 11 4 6 2 80

Couples + 6 5 1 7 2 2 7 6 1 1 32

Couples + 7 4 2 3 2 1 1 2 15

Couples + 8 2 1 2 1 6

Couples + 9 1 1

Couples Total 1090 154 684 357 345 339 275 189 333 68 3834

Housing List Total 5555 934 3380 2051 1882 1759 1360 1067 1451 313 19752
 

P
age 71



Table 6 - JAN TO JUNE 2017 LETTINGS LISTS BY CATEGORY AND MONTH 

Jan - June 2017 Total Lettings DCC, RAS, Voluntary, TABLE 6

Category Of Award         Housing         Transfer Ras TOTAL

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE

No of 

Lettings

Band 2 4 14 8 7 13 14 3 5 9 10 15 5 107

Band 3 8 11 2 4 7 9 6 9 4 2 10 8 80

Overall Priority Cases

Medical 4 4 6 3 4 5 2 3 2 6 3 7 49

Welfare 3 6 6 3 7 8 1 6 3 4 5 2 54

Traveller priority 1 1 1 1 2 6

Fire Emergency

Surrendering Larger 1 1 3 5

Tied Accommodation

Detenanting 2 2 1 1 2 2 10

Estate Management 

Essential Maintenance 2 2

Voluntary 21 20 22 11 10 60 10 5 11 2 7 20 199

Unable to afford

Homeless DCC 7 11 16 24 35 14 107

Homeless - Voluntary 11 18 31 11 7 18 96

Financial Contribution 1 1 2

Mortage to Rent 6 3 5 2 3 3 22

Social Leasing Unit 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 9

Homeless-Social Leasing Unit 1 1 1 3

RAS Lettings 19 19

TOTAL LETTINGS 66 89 98 69 88 134 26 30 32 26 43 50 19 770

TOTAL LETTINGS 544 207
 

P
age 72



Tables 7 (a)(b)  - JAN TO JUNE 2017 DCC, LEASING AND VOLUNTARY LETTINGS LIST  
                                         HOUSING LIST LETTINGS JAN - JUNE 2017 Table 7 (a)

DCC UNITS DCC Units

Category Of Award Area B    Area D   Area E   Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M   Area N     Area P    Grand Total

Financial Contribution 1 1 2

Homeless Priority 18 21 7 9 7 13 16 8 6 2 107

BAND Medical Priority 5 1 5 2 1 2 5 3 2 26

1 Mortgage to Rent 4 1 12 1 3 1 22

Traveller Priority 4 1 1 6

Welfare Priority 5 2 5 1 5 4 4 3 1 3 33

Band 1 Total 36 26 29 14 16 19 26 14 9 5 194

BAND 2 Band 2 10 5 5 9 8 3 14 5 1 60

BAND 3 Band 3 9 6 9 4 3 6 3 1 41

DCC Units Total 55 37 43 27 28 29 43 20 9 6 297

SOCIAL LEASING UNITS Leasing

Category Of Award Area B    Area D   Area E   Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M   Area N     Area P    Grand Total

Band 2 4 4

Homeless Priority 3 3

Social Leasing Total 7 7

VOLUNTARY UNITS Voluntary

Category Of Award Area B    Area D   Area E   Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M   Area N     Area P    Grand Total

Financial Contribution 6 6

BAND Homeless Priority 15 18 17 8 7 3 17 3 7 1 96

1 Medical Priority 3 3 2 2 2 12 24

Traveller Priority 1 3 1 5

Welfare Priority 2 2 3 3 1 11

Band 1 Total 19 23 24 13 10 3 20 3 20 1 136

BAND 2 Band 2 5 3 8 7 15 9 6 53

BAND 3 Band 3 4 2 3 3 25 8 45

Voluntary Housing Total 28 28 35 23 56 3 37 3 26 1 240

Housing List Total 83 65 78 50 84 32 80 23 35 14 544  
RAS or HAP figures not included in the above tables 

P
age 73



                                         TRANSFER LIST LETTINGS JAN - JUNE 2017 Table 7 (b)

DCC UNITS DCC Units

Category Of Award Area B    Area D   Area E   Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M   Area N     Area P    Grand Total

Detenanting 2 5 1 2 10

Essential Maintenance 1 1 2

BAND Medical Priority 2 1 2 1 4 3 3 5 2 23

1 Surrender Larger 2 1 1 1 5

Welfare Priority 6 4 5 1 2 1 2 21

Band 1 Total 8 3 9 11 5 8 8 7 2 61

BAND 2 Band 2 Total 9 1 10 2 9 5 7 2 2 47

BAND 3 Band 3 Total 5 3 9 6 3 3 7 2 1 39

DCC UNITS TOTAL 22 7 28 19 17 11 20 16 5 2 147

SOCIAL LEASING UNITS Leasing Units

Category Of Award Area B    Area D   Area E   Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M   Area N     Area P    Grand Total

Band 3 2 1 1 1 5

Social Leasing Total 2 1 1 1 5

VOLUNTARY UNITS Voluntary Units

Category Of Award Area B    Area D   Area E   Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M   Area N     Area P    Grand Total

Detenanting 2 2

BAND Medical Priority 1 2 1 2 6

1 Surrender Larger 1 8 1 10

Welfare Priority 1 2 1 4

Band 1 Total 3 2 10 2 2 3 22

BAND 2 Band 2 Total 2 1 7 1 1 1 13

BAND 3 Band 3 Total 1 3 2 13 1 20

VOLUNTARY UNITS 2 1 11 6 13 16 2 4 55

Transfer List Total 26 8 40 25 30 11 37 18 9 3 207

Housing List Total 83 65 78 50 84 32 80 23 35 14 544

Transfer List Total 26 8 40 25 30 11 37 18 9 3 207

Combined Lettings Total 109 73 118 75 114 43 117 41 44 17 751  
RAS or HAP figures not included in the above tables 

P
age 74



Table 8 - JAN TO JUNE 2017 LETTINGS LISTS BY PRIORITY BAND & CASES HOUSED WITH DISABILITIES 

Jan - June 2017 Lettings by Band TABLE 8

Let by Priority Housing Transfer Ras Grand Total  Medical Priority Cases Housed in Jan-June 2017

Financial Contribution 8 8 Disability Housing Transfer Grand Total
Intellectual 5 5

Detenanting 12 12 Mental Health 11 2 13

Essential Maintenance 2 2 Physical 32 26 58

BAND Homeless Priority 206 206 Sensory 2 1 3

1 Medical Priority 50 29 79 Grand Total 50 29 79

Mortgage to Rent 22 22

Surrender Larger 15 15 Other Cases Housed with disabilities Jan - June 2017

Traveller Priority 11 11 Disability Housing Transfer Grand Total
Welfare Priority 44 25 69 Intellectual 3 1 4

Band 1 Total 333 83 416 Mental Health 7 1 8

Physical 17 2 19

BAND 2 Band 2 Total 117 60 177 Sensory 3 1 4

Grand Total 30 5 35

BAND 3 Band 3 86 64 150

Total Cases Housed with disability attached Jan - June 2017

Ras 19 19 Disability Housing Transfer Grand Total
Intellectual 8 1 9

Jan - June Lettings Total 544 207 19 770 Mental Health 18 3 21

Physical 49 28 77

Sensory 5 2 7

Grand Total 80 34 114

 
Table 8 (a) JAN TO JUNE 2017 HOMELESS LETTINGS BY FAMILY SIZE AND AREA COMMITTEE 

Homeless Housed to Date N/C Area Central Area N/W Area S/E Area S/C Area Grand Total

Family Size

Homeless Singles 9 18 9 17 31 84

Homeless Families 23 6 54 9 30 122

Grand Total 32 24 63 26 61 206  

P
age 75



Tables 9 (a)(b)(c) - JAN TO JUNE 2017 LETTINGS LIST FIGURES BY DWELLING SIZE AND AREA HOUSED 
Housing List Lettings Jan - June 2017 by Dwelling Size and Area Housed Table 9 (a)

Size Area B    Area D   Area E   Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M   Area N     Area P    Grand Total

Bedsit 15 2 5 8 4 7 2 5 2 50

1 Bed 16 20 16 20 61 2 41 13 24 7 220

2 Bed 22 23 25 20 15 10 32 5 9 5 166

3 bed 30 19 26 2 4 12 5 2 100

4 Bed 1 6 1 8

Grand Total 83 65 78 50 84 32 80 23 35 14 544

Transfer List Lettings Jan - June 2017 by Dwelling Size and Area Housed Table 9 (b)

Size Area B    Area D   Area E   Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M   Area N     Area P    Grand Total

Bedsit 1 6 1 2 2 1 13

1 Bed 14 8 19 6 16 5 9 10 5 1 93

2 Bed 3 4 12 7 2 22 7 1 1 59

3 bed 8 8 6 6 3 3 1 1 36

4 Bed 3 1 1 1 6

Grand Total 26 8 40 25 30 11 37 18 9 3 207

Overall Housing & Transfer Lettings Jan - June 2017 by Dwelling Size and Area Table 9 (c)

Size Area B    Area D   Area E   Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M   Area N     Area P    Grand Total

Bedsit 16 2 11 8 4 8 4 5 4 1 63

1 Bed 30 28 35 26 77 7 50 23 29 8 313

2 Bed 25 23 29 32 22 12 54 12 10 6 225

3 bed 38 19 34 8 10 15 8 1 1 2 136

4 Bed 1 9 1 1 1 1 14

Grand Total 109 73 118 75 114 43 117 41 44 17 751  
RAS or HAP figures not included in the above tables 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 76



Tables 10 (a)(b)(c) - JAN TO JUNE 2017 LETTINGS LIST FIGURES BY CATEGORY OF LETTING AND AREA HOUSED 
Housing List Lettings Jan - June 2017 by Letting Category and Area Housed       Table 10 (a)

Category of letting Area B    Area D   Area E   Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M   Area N     Area P    Grand Total

Maisonettes 2 2

Mortgage to Rent 4 1 12 1 3 1 22

Newbuild Apartment 1 1

Newbuild House 6 13 19

Previously Occupied (Apartment) 3 15 3 13 9 5 31 10 3 3 95

Previously Occupied (House) 12 4 14 5 7 15 1 2 60

Purchase of Previously Occupied Dwelling 10 4 4 4 22

Senior Citizen Existing unit 16 3 8 8 9 5 6 10 6 1 72

Senior Citizen Refurbished Unit 4 4

Social Leasing 7 7

Voluntary Housing 28 28 35 23 56 3 37 3 26 1 240

Grand Total 83 65 78 50 84 32 80 23 35 14 544

Transfer List Lettings Jan - June 2017 by Letting Category and Area Housed        Table 10 (b)

Category of letting Area B    Area D   Area E   Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M   Area N     Area P    Grand Total

Maisonettes 1 1

Previously Occupied (Apartment) 1 2 2 11 4 1 11 12 1 1 46

Previously Occupied (House) 7 5 7 8 5 5 37

Purchase of Previously Occupied Dwelling 1 1 2

Senior Citizen Existing unit 5 4 20 1 4 5 4 4 4 1 52

Senior Citizen Refurbished Unit 9 9

Social Leasing 2 1 1 1 5

Voluntary Housing 2 1 11 6 13 16 2 4 55

Grand Total 26 8 40 25 30 11 37 18 9 3 207

Overall Housing & Transfer Lettings Jan - June 2017 by Letting Category and Area Housed       Table 10 (c)

Category of Letting Area B    Area D   Area E   Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M   Area N     Area P    Grand Total

Maisonettes 1 2 3

Mortgage to Rent 4 1 12 1 3 1 22

Newbuild Apartment 1 1

Newbuild House 6 13 19

Previously Occupied (Apartment) 4 17 5 24 13 6 42 22 4 4 141

Previously Occupied (House) 19 4 19 12 15 20 6 2 97

Purchase of Previously Occupied Dwelling 10 5 1 4 4 24

Senior Citizen Existing unit 21 7 28 9 13 10 10 14 10 2 124

Senior Citizen Refurbished Unit 13 13

Social Leasing 2 1 1 8 12

Voluntary Housing 30 29 46 29 69 3 53 5 30 1 295

Grand Total 109 73 118 75 114 43 117 41 44 17 751  
RAS or HAP figures not included in the above tables 

P
age 77





 
 
The Chairman and Members of 
North West Area Committee. 
 
Meeting: 18th July 2017 
 

Item No: 13 

 

Traffic Service Requests,  
Status Report at 15

th
 June 2017,  

North West Area Committee Meeting, 18
th

  
 July 2017 

 

Please note that to ensure continued efficient operation of the Sharepoint database system it has 
become necessary to archive all completed items up to and including 31/12/15. Therefore these items are 
not reflected in the Status Report. 

 
Traffic Advisory Group (TAG) Service Request 
Statistics 

 

    *Total TAG Requests received 01/01/17 to 
15/06/17 ( including duplicate requests) 213 

……of which completed 80 

    No. Requests received since previous report 
(i.e. between 16/05/16 and 15/06/17). 34 

  Total Requests received and currently open 
on Sharepoint since 1st January, 2013 (not 
including secondary/duplicate requests. 
Number of secondary requests indicated in 
separate column) 383 

  

    Breakdown of Requests currently open on 
Sharepoint 

   Stage 1 6 
  Stage 2 268 
  Stage 3 6     
  Stage 4 88   
  Stage 5 15    
  

    Non TAG Service Requests 
Statistics 

   

    Total Non- TAG Requests received since 1st 
January 2016 to 15/06/17 1169 

Page 79



 

 
Traffic Advisory Group Status Reports 

 
Explanation of Stages: 
 

 Stage 1 -  Set up file, Assignment to Engineer, etc 

 Stage 2 - Assessment, Site surveys, review statutory orders, etc 

 Stage 3 - Consultations, with Garda, Dublin Bus, Luas, NTA, Local residents / 

businesses, etc 

 Stage 4 - Decision, TAG group, statutory orders, etc 

 Stage 5 - Implementation, signs, lines, construction, signal changes, 

certifications, etc 

 
 

Item Ref Road Post-
code 

Topic Request 
Description 

Date Rec'd SR 
Status 

No.  
Secondary 
Requests 

1 10580 FAUSSAG
H AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Traffic 
Calming 

update on traffic 
calming request at 
this junction 

11/02/2014 Stage 2 0 

2 11475 SKREEN 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Traffic 
Lights 

at the junction of 
Navan Road. 

01/04/2014 Stage 2 1 

3 11921 MILLMOUN
T AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Build  out  24/04/2014 Stage 4 0 

4 12043 COLLINS 
DRIVE 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Zebra 
Crossing 

at the junction of 
Glasaree Road. 

29/04/2014 Stage 2 0 

5 12227 BALBUTC
HER LANE 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Traffic 
Lights 

at Carton Close/ 
Carton 
Court/Carton 
Road.  

12/05/2014 Stage 2 0 

6 12405 STORMAN
STOWN 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Speed 
Ramps 

additional ramp on 
the road. 

12/05/2014 Stage 5 0 

7 12406 BALLYGAL
L ROAD 
EAST (NW-
EA) 

D11 Cycle 
Track 

on both sides of 
the road.  

12/05/2014 Stage 2 0 

…..of which Requests Completed 985 

Total Requests currently received and open 
on Sharepoint since 1st January, 2013 to 
15/06/17 282 

Page 80



Item Ref Road Post-
code 

Topic Request 
Description 

Date Rec'd SR 
Status 

No.  
Secondary 
Requests 

8 12611 SAINT 
HELENA'S 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

south of Tesco’s 26/05/2014 Stage 2 0 

9 12612 SAINT 
HELENA'S 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

at the junction of 
Tolka Valley Road. 

26/05/2014 Stage 2 0 

10 12646 SAINT 
PATRICK'S 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Traffic 
Calming 

on the road.  29/05/2014 Stage 4 0 

11 12692 SAINT 
CANICES 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Traffic 
Lights 

request for traffic 
lights at the 
junction of St 
Canices Rd and 
Ballymun Rd 

04/06/2014 Stage 4 0 

12 12906 FINGLAS 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Disabled 
Parking 
Bay 
(General) 

and rescindment 
of Pay and Display 
Parking at the 
parking bay 
nearest the 
pedestrian lights to 
facilitate the 
Museum. 

23/06/2014 Stage 2 0 

13 13225 BLACKHO
RSE 
AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Traffic 
Lights 

at the Ashtown 
Gate.  

18/07/2014 Stage 2 0 

14 13337 CLAREMO
NT COURT 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

on Claremont 
Court at the 
junction of Finglas 
Road. 

22/07/2014 Stage 2 0 

15 13664 NAVAN 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Bus Lane from the Old 
Cabra Road to 
Nephin Road 
junction, 
outbound.  

21/11/2016 Stage 4 0 

16 13970 SWORDS 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Traffic 
Lights 

at the exit to 
Elmhurst Nursing 
Home on Swords 
Road. 

05/09/2014 Stage 2 0 

17 14544 GRIFFITH 
AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Traffic 
Calming 

between Ballymun 
Road and Ballygall 
Road East.  

06/10/2014 Stage 4 0 

18 14545 BALLYBO
GGAN 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Pedestrian 
Refuge 
Island 

at the junction of 
Ballyboggan Road 
and Broombridge 
Road.  

06/10/2014 Stage 5 0 

Page 81



Item Ref Road Post-
code 

Topic Request 
Description 

Date Rec'd SR 
Status 

No.  
Secondary 
Requests 

19 14626 RATOATH 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Traffic 
Calming 

on Cabra and 
Finglas ends of 
the road. 

21/10/2014 Stage 2 1 

20 14627 FAUSSAG
H AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Traffic 
Calming 

on the road. 21/10/2014 Stage 2 5 

21 14628 NEPHIN 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Traffic 
Calming 

on the road. 21/10/2014 Stage 2 0 

22 14630 HAZELCR
OFT ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Traffic 
Calming 

at the junction of 
Hazelcroft Road 
and Fairlawn 
Road. 

21/10/2014 Stage 4 0 

23 15215 BALBUTC
HER LANE 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

At the Community 
Centre, near 
Carton Road. 

04/11/2014 Stage 2 6 

24 15352 ALBERT 
COLLEGE 
LAWN 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Pay & 
Display & 
Permit 
Parking 

Request for 
parking restriction 
as above. 

12/11/2014 Stage 2 2 

25 15450 WELLMOU
NT ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Engineer 
Query 

Erection of 
mirrors, and/or 
"Danger Vehicles 
Exiting" markings 
at main exit to St. 
Michael's 
Secondary School. 

18/11/2014 Stage 4 0 

26 15473 VILLA 
PARK 
GARDENS 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

at the footpath 
dishing opposite 
the Credit Union. 

25/11/2014 Stage 4 0 

27 15556 SHANTALL
A ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 One-Way 
System 

at the service road 
at the shops. 

26/11/2014 Stage 2 0 

28 15647 DUNMANU
S ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Speed 
Ramps 

Request for speed 
ramps. 

01/12/2014 Stage 4 0 

29 15649 FAUSSAG
H AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

Request for 
pedestrian 
crossing at above. 

01/12/2014 Stage 2 0 

30 15846 SYCAMOR
E PARK 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

Request for 
Pelican Crossing 
at the junction of 
Sycamore Park 
and Sycamore 
Road. 

16/12/2014 Stage 2 0 

Page 82



Item Ref Road Post-
code 

Topic Request 
Description 

Date Rec'd SR 
Status 

No.  
Secondary 
Requests 

31 15854 BALLYMU
N ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Loading 
Bay 

at the shops, at 
The Grapevine Off 
Licence. 

15/12/2014 Stage 2 0 

32 15866 SHANTALL
A ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Disabled 
Parking 
Bay 
(General) 

outside The Haven 
Pharmacy, 2, 
Shantalla Road. 

12/12/2014 Stage 2 0 

33 16071 OLD 
FINGLAS 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 School 
Warden 

To relocate the 
existing School 
Warden to the 
pedestrian gate of 
St. Brigid's GNS. 

12/01/2015 Stage 2 1 

34 16259 ULSTER 
STREET 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 
(Extend) 

on Ulster Street at 
Connaught Street 
junction. 

20/01/2015 Stage 2 0 

35 16459 CARNLOU
GH ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Traffic 
Calming 

on the road.  02/02/2015 Stage 2 2 

36 16519 VILLA 
PARK 
GARDENS 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Parking 
Prohibition 

Request for 
Double Yellow 
Lines or Single 
Yellow Line.  

04/02/2015 Stage 2 2 

37 16529 CONNAUG
HT 
STREET 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Speed 
Ramps 

on the road.  05/02/2015 Stage 2 0 

38 16544 GLASANA
ON ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

at Gaelscoil Ui 
Earcain. 

05/02/2015 Stage 2 2 

39 16592 IONA 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Pay & 
Display & 
Permit 
Parking 

On the un-named 
road that connects 
Iona Road to 
Lindsay Road.  

05/11/2014 Stage 2 0 

40 16706 MILLMOUN
T AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Pay & 
Display & 
Permit 
Parking 

  17/02/2015 Stage 2 0 

41 16726 WALSH 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Traffic 
Calming 

request for 
additional traffic 
calming. 

16/02/2015 Stage 2 3 

42 16842 KILDONAN 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Traffic 
Calming 

Additional traffic 
calming measures 
for Kildonan Rd, 
Finglas West.  

23/02/2015 Stage 4 0 

43 16875 FAUSSAG
H ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Speed 
Ramps 

on the road. 05/02/2015 Stage 2 1 

Page 83



Item Ref Road Post-
code 

Topic Request 
Description 

Date Rec'd SR 
Status 

No.  
Secondary 
Requests 

44 16876 FAUSSAG
H AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Speed 
Ramps 

on the road. 07/02/2015 Stage 2 0 

45 16889 DRUMCON
DRA ROAD 
UPPER 
(NW-EA) 

D9 No Right 
Turn 

from Millmount 
Avenue onto 
Drumcondra 
Road. 

24/02/2015 Stage 2 0 

46 17007 RATOATH 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Traffic 
Calming 

from the 
roundabout at 
Drumcliffe Road 
up to Cabra cross.  

02/03/2015 Stage 2 0 

47 17010 SYCAMOR
E ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Traffic 
Calming 

on the road.  02/03/2015 Stage 2 0 

48 17311 COOLATR
EE PARK 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Speed 
Ramps 

on the road. 23/03/2015 Stage 4 1 

49 17798 FINGLAS 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Yellow 
Box 

inbound at the 
pedestrian 
crossing at the 
junction of 
Ballyboggan 
Road. 

23/04/2015 Stage 2 0 

50 17800 FINGLAS 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 No U Turn outbound at the 
junction of 
Ballyboggan 
Road, preventing 
a U Turn onto the 
inbound lane. 

23/04/2015 Stage 2 0 

51 18078 COOLATR
EE PARK 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Stop Sign and rescindment 
of ‘Yield’ Sign on 
Coolatree Park at 
the junction of 
Coolgreena Road.  

08/05/2015 Stage 4 0 

52 18079 COOLGRE
ENA ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 School 
Ahead 
Sign 

on Coolgreena 
Road and 
Coolatree Park.  

08/05/2015 Stage 2 0 

53 18082 BEAUMON
T ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 No Right 
Turn 

from Beaumont 
Road onto 
Coolgreena Road, 
during morning 
peak.  

08/05/2015 Stage 2 1 

54 18154 MCKEE 
PARK 
(NW-EA) 

D11  at entrance. 19/05/2015 Stage 2 0 

55 18161 WALSH 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

facing Griffith 
Park. 

19/05/2015 Stage 2 3 

Page 84



Item Ref Road Post-
code 

Topic Request 
Description 

Date Rec'd SR 
Status 

No.  
Secondary 
Requests 

56 18421 WILLOW 
PARK 
CRESCEN
T (NW-EA) 

D11 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

at the shops.  29/05/2015 Stage 2 0 

57 18422 WILLOW 
PARK 
CRESCEN
T (NW-EA) 

D11 Pedestrian 
Refuge 
Island 
(Rescind) 

at the shops. 29/05/2015 Stage 2 0 

58 18424 WILLOW 
PARK 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

at the junction of 
Willow Park 
Crescent. 

29/05/2015 Stage 4 0 

59 18489 BALLYGAL
L PARADE 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Road 
Closure 
(Rescind) 

at the western end 
of the road.  

15/06/2015 Stage 4 0 

60 18622 SAINT 
PATRICK'S 
PARADE 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Traffic 
Calming 

on the road. 16/06/2015 Stage 4 0 

61 18624 VALEVIEW 
CRESCEN
T (NW-EA) 

D11 Speed 
Ramps 

request for speed 
ramps on 
Valeview 
Crescent. 

16/06/2015 Stage 4 0 

62 18630 SAINT 
PATRICK'S 
PARADE 
(NW-EA) 

D9 One-Way 
System 

on the road. 16/06/2015 Stage 4 0 

63 18641 GROVE 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Stop Sign Request to have 
YIELD sign 
changed to STOP 
sign at end of 
Grove Road 
Glasnevin 

12/06/2015 Stage 4 0 

64 18715 FARNHAM 
DRIVE 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

crossing to the 
pitches. 
  
  

16/06/2015 Stage 4 0 

65 18766 FITZMAUR
ICE ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

Pedestrian 
crossing at the 
shops on 
 Fitzmaurice Rd, at 
junction with 
Ballygall Rd East. 

17/06/2015 Stage 2 4 

66 18767 FITZMAUR
ICE ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Children 
Crossing 
Sign 

Children Crossing 
sign at shops on 
Fitzmaurice Rd, at 
junction with 
Ballygall Rd East. 

17/06/2015 Stage 4 0 

Page 85



Item Ref Road Post-
code 

Topic Request 
Description 

Date Rec'd SR 
Status 

No.  
Secondary 
Requests 

67 18831 DRUMCON
DRA ROAD 
LOWER 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Stop Sign and rescindment 
of ‘Yield’ Sign on 
the cycle lane at 
the entrance to the 
Archbishop’s 
House. 

22/06/2015 Stage 2 0 

68 18851 CABRA 
DRIVE 
(NW-EA) 

D7 No 
Parking 

request for No 
Parking/Double 
Yellow Lines on 
the north west 
corner of the 
entrance road to 
Cabra Drive from 
the Old Cabra 
Road 

24/06/2015 Stage 2 0 

69 18878 LINDSAY 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Speed 
Ramps 

Request for 
additional speed 
ramps on above 
road 

24/06/2015 Stage 4 0 

70 18913 SHANDON 
PARK 
(NW-EA) 

D7  Request for 
Children crossing 
sign at above 
locations and also 
Shandon Gardens 

24/06/2015 Stage 2 0 

71 18957 BOTANIC 
ROAD NW-
EA) 

D9 Yellow 
Box 

Request for yellow 
box at junction of 
the Smurfit site on 
Botanic Road 

30/07/2015 Stage 2 0 

72 19020 BLACKHO
RSE 
AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

in the vicinity of 
Cabra Gate 
entrance to the 
Phoenix Park. 

03/07/2015 Stage 2 0 

73 19029 WALSH 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Speed 
Ramps 

Request for 
additional speed 
ramps 

06/07/2015 Stage 2 1 

74 19079 FINGLAS 
PLACE 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Road 
Closure 

at one end of the 
road.  

28/05/2015 Stage 4 0 

75 19152 KEMPTON 
AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Traffic 
Calming 

at the entrance to 
the Kempton 
Estate off the 
Navan Road 

21/07/2015 Stage 4 0 

76 19155 CARNLOU
GH ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Parking 
Prohibition 

to examine the 
corners of 
Carnlough Road 
for illegal parking 

21/07/2015 Stage 4 0 

Page 86



Item Ref Road Post-
code 

Topic Request 
Description 

Date Rec'd SR 
Status 

No.  
Secondary 
Requests 

77 19172 NAVAN 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D5 Single 
Yellow 
Line 

in the vicinity of 
No. 52 

21/07/2015 Stage 2 0 

78 19184 PLUNKETT 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Speed 
Ramps 

Speed ramps 
requested for 
Plunkett Road  

16/07/2015 Stage 2 0 

79 19433 DRUMCON
DRA ROAD 
UPPER 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Yellow 
Box 

at the entrance to 
the Nest 
Creche/Skylon 
Hotel. 

30/07/2015 Stage 2 0 

80 19514 CLUNE 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Speed 
Ramps 

on the road. 05/08/2015 Stage 4 0 

81 19625 DRUMCON
DRA ROAD 
UPPER 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Yellow 
Box 

Outside the 
northern vehicular 
entrance to St. 
Patrick's College.  

13/08/2015 Stage 2 0 

82 19666 THE 
THATCH 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 
(Rescind) 

Requesting that 
yellow lines be 
removed from in 
front of ESB 
Boxes across from 
Thatch Road  

14/08/2015 Stage 4 0 

83 19694 KINVARA 
DRIVE 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Traffic 
Calming 

Traffic calming 
measures for 
Kinvara Drive. 

17/08/2015 Stage 2 3 

84 19699 GRIFFITH 
DOWNS 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Engineer Query 17/08/2015 Stage 2 4 

85 19725 FINGLAS 
PARK 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Traffic 
Calming 

on the long 
straight section. 

15/09/2015 Stage 2 2 

86 19726 WOODHAZ
EL WAY 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Traffic 
Calming 

at the junction of 
Woodhazel Way 
and Woodhazel 
Close. 

15/09/2015 Stage 2 1 

87 19755 HAMPSTE
AD PARK 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Traffic 
Calming 

Request for traffic 
calming measures  

21/08/2015 Stage 2 0 

88 19835 WALSH 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Cul-De-
Sac 

Request for 
northern ends of 
above roads to be 
blocked off (cul de 
sacs to be put in 
place). 

26/08/2015 Stage 2 0 

89 19907 BOTANIC 
AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Yellow 
Box 

Yellow Boxes for 
Botanic Avenue. 

31/08/2015 Stage 2 0 

Page 87



Item Ref Road Post-
code 

Topic Request 
Description 

Date Rec'd SR 
Status 

No.  
Secondary 
Requests 

90 19908 BOTANIC 
AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Filter Light Filter light for 
junction of Saint 
Mobhi Rd & 
Botanic Ave. 

31/08/2015 Stage 2 1 

91 19910 RATOATH 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 School 
Ahead 
Sign 

request for school 
ahead signs to be 
placed on Ratoath 
Road in Cabra , 
two schools - Saint 
Catherine’s and 
Saint Dominic’s 

01/09/2015 Stage 2 0 

92 19927 LORCAN 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

Install pedestrian 
lights at corner of 
Lorcan Rd. 

01/09/2015 Stage 2 0 

93 19928 SWORDS 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

Pedestrian 
crossing, or 
warning sign, at 
slip road from 
McDonalds in 
OMNI Centre onto 
the Swords Rd. 

01/09/2015 Stage 2 0 

94 19949 RATOATH 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Yellow 
Box 

Request for yellow 
box at top end of 
above road at 
Cabra Cross 

02/09/2015 Stage 2 0 

95 20061 GLEBE 
VIEW (NW-
EA) 

D11 Traffic 
Calming 

Request for traffic 
calming measures 
in Glebe View off 
Church Street. 

10/09/2015 Stage 4 0 

96 20174 BOTANIC 
AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Traffic 
Calming 

reps for review of 
traffic 
management on 
Botanic Avenue 

15/09/2015 Stage 2 0 

97 20185 DRUMCON
DRA ROAD 
LOWER 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Bus Lane on the bridge over 
the Tolka, 
outbound.  

15/09/2015 Stage 4 1 

98 20190 TOLKA 
VALLEY 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Roundabo
ut 

at the junction of 
Ratoath Road.  

15/09/2015 Stage 2 0 

99 20278 SILLOGE 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

Request for 
pedestrian 
crossing at 
Holy Spirit school 

21/09/2015 Stage 2 0 

Page 88



Item Ref Road Post-
code 

Topic Request 
Description 

Date Rec'd SR 
Status 

No.  
Secondary 
Requests 

100 20317 DINGLE 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Traffic 
Calming 

Request for speed 
ramps or traffic 
calming measures 
on Dingle Road 

21/09/2015 Stage 2 0 

101 20379 BALLYMU
N ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Disabled 
Parking 
Bay 
(General) 

Request by Cllr to 
have a disabled 
parking bay 
outside the 
SuperValu shop 
on Ballymun road. 

23/09/2015 Stage 2 0 

102 20385 CABRA 
GROVE 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

along the left-hand 
side as you enter 
from Cabra Road, 
up as far as 
the curve. 
  

24/09/2015 Stage 4 1 

103 20494 DANE 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Speed 
Ramps 

Request for speed 
ramps on St 
Josephs Way, off 
Dane Road, 
beside Cairn 
Court  

30/09/2015 Stage 4 0 

104 20516 SHANGAN 
AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

Request for 
double yellow lines 
around the 
Whiteacre Park 
Estate 

01/10/2015 Stage 4 0 

105 20522 GLASANA
ON ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

Request for 
double yellow lines 
outside Gaelscoil 
ui Earcain 

01/10/2015 Stage 2 0 

106 20568 PHIBSBOR
OUGH 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Yellow 
Box 

Request for yellow 
box  at entrance to 
Bective Square 
Apartment 
complex at 
junction with 
Phibsborough 
road 

05/10/2015 Stage 2 0 

107 20630 SCRIBBLE
STOWN 
AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Traffic 
Calming 

within the 
Scribblestown 
Estate. 

20/10/2015 Stage 2 4 

108 20677 THE 
THATCH 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

at entrance beside 
No.13. 

20/10/2015 Stage 4 0 

109 20704 DELVILLE 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Stop Sign at the junction of 
Delville Road and 
St Pappin's Road. 

20/10/2015 Stage 5 0 

Page 89



Item Ref Road Post-
code 

Topic Request 
Description 

Date Rec'd SR 
Status 

No.  
Secondary 
Requests 

110 20706 RATOATH 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Right Turn 
Filter Light 

from Ratoath 
Road onto Navan 
Road. 

20/10/2015 Stage 2 1 

111 20707 BOTANIC 
AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

at the junction of 
Botanic Avenue 
with St. Ita’s 
Terrace, Botanic 
Road. 

20/10/2015 Stage 4 0 

112 20729 KINVARA 
AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D8 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

Request from area 
office from Navan 
Rd community 
council for 
pedestrian lights at 
Kinvara Avenue 
and Ashtown 
Grove. 

12/10/2015 Stage 2 0 

113 20739 ASHTOWN 
GROVE 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

at the junction of 
Ashtown Grove 
and Navan Road. 

09/10/2015 Stage 2 0 

114 20794 COLLINS 
AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Yellow 
Box 

to review traffic at 
the pedestrian 
lights at junction of 
Collins Avenue 
and Ballymun 
Road. 

20/10/2015 Stage 2 0 

115 20848 PARKGAT
E STREET 
(NW-EA) 

D8 Loading 
Bay 

Outside 25 
Parkgate Street, 
Dublin 8. 

16/10/2015 Stage 2 0 

116 20861 HOME 
FARM 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D3 Cycle 
Track 

New Cycle Track 
between Home 
Farm Road and 
Griffith Avenue. 
Cycle track does 
not leave enough 
room for 
pedestrians 

14/10/2015 Stage 2 0 

117 20868 CONNAUG
HT 
STREET 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Disabled 
Parking 
Bay 
(Residenti
al) 

To determine 
whether the road 
is high demand or 
not in relation to 
the level of parking 
occupancy for the 
provision of a bay 
outside No. 37. 
Pay and Display 
and Permit 
Parking will have 
to be rescinded.  

19/10/2015 Stage 2 0 

Page 90



Item Ref Road Post-
code 

Topic Request 
Description 

Date Rec'd SR 
Status 

No.  
Secondary 
Requests 

118 20963 FERGUSO
N ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Speed 
Ramps 
(Rescind) 

on the road.  20/10/2015 Stage 2 0 

119 20991 NAVAN 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 No 
Parking 

Request to 
disallow parking 
outside créche at 
351a Navan Rd. 

22/10/2015 Stage 2 0 

120 20995 SAINT 
MARGARE
T'S ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

Upgrade of the 
roundabout at 
LIDL and if the 
upgrade is 
warranted.  

19/10/2015 Stage 2 0 

121 21057 COLLINS 
AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Yellow 
Box 

 at the exit of 
Whitehall Church 
at Collins Avenue.  

27/10/2015 Stage 2 1 

122 21076 MANNIX 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Cul-De-
Sac 

To make Mannix 
Road a Cul-de-
Sac, between the 
rear entrance to 
Mannix Road and 
the Hollybank 
Road entrance.  

28/10/2015 Stage 2 0 

123 21094 GLASNEVI
N AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

To review the 
Pedestrian 
Crossings at the 
junction of 
Glasnevin 
Avenue/Collins 
Avenue/Ballymun 
Road.  

28/10/2015 Stage 2 0 

124 21096 ALBERT 
COLLEGE 
PARK 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

at the junction of 
Collins Avenue 
Extension.  

28/10/2015 Stage 4 0 

125 21097 OLD 
FINGLAS 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 School 
Warden 

at St. Mary’s Faith 
Secondary School.  

28/10/2015 Stage 2 0 

126 21100 SAINT 
PAPPIN 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Parking 
Prohibition 

at the western 
junction of Dean 
Swift Road and St. 
Pappin’s Road.  

28/10/2015 Stage 2 0 

127 21107 OLD 
CABRA 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Traffic 
Calming 

To review the 
traffic calming 
measures on the 
road.  

27/10/2015 Stage 2 0 

Page 91



Item Ref Road Post-
code 

Topic Request 
Description 

Date Rec'd SR 
Status 

No.  
Secondary 
Requests 

128 21181 OLD 
FINGLAS 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

at the entrance to 
St. Mary's School.  

29/10/2015 Stage 2 2 

129 27737 DRUMCON
DRA ROAD 
UPPER 
(NW-EA) 

D1  on Drumcondra 
Road Upper at the 
junction with The 
Village. 

17/11/2015 Stage 2 0 

130 27741 SANTRY 
AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Traffic 
Lights 

at the junction of 
Santry Avenue 
and Forrestwood 
Estate. 

17/11/2015 Stage 2 0 

131 27754 BELCLARE 
AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Traffic 
Calming 

at No. 13.  10/11/2015 Stage 2 0 

132 27780 PROSPEC
T WAY 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Bus Lane Relocate the Bus 
Lane to the middle 
lane. 

10/11/2015 Stage 4 0 

133 27825 RIVER 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D15 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

on the bend. 12/11/2015 Stage 2 1 

134 27921 FINGLAS 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Electric 
Car Bay 

Finglas road north 
of junction with 
Towerview 
Cottages, opposite 
cemetery, the 2nd 
and 3rd spaces. 

19/11/2015 Stage 2 0 

135 28133 BOTANIC 
ROAD NW-
EA) 

D9 No Right 
Turn 

from Botanic 
Avenue onto St. 
Mobhi Road, 
during evening 
peak hours.  

26/11/2015 Stage 2 0 

136 28152 HOME 
FARM 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Loading 
Bay 

outside 
Homepharm 
Pharmacy, No. 
45a.  

24/11/2015 Stage 2 0 

137 28154 HOME 
FARM 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Disabled 
Parking 
Bay 
(General) 

outside 
Homepharm 
Pharmacy, No. 
45a.  

24/11/2015 Stage 2 3 

138 28158 MCKEE 
AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 
(Extend) 

on either side of 
the entrance to 
Heath Square. 

26/11/2015 Stage 4 0 

Page 92



Item Ref Road Post-
code 

Topic Request 
Description 

Date Rec'd SR 
Status 

No.  
Secondary 
Requests 

139 28197 CONYNGH
AM ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D8 Parking 
Prohibition 

and rescindment 
of Pay and Display 
Parking along 
Longmeadow 
Apartments.  

30/11/2015 Stage 2 1 

140 28341 LINDSAY 
GROVE 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Parking 
Prohibition 

at the Prospect 
Road, end of the 
road.  

17/11/2015 Stage 2 0 

141 28367 GROVE 
PARK 
CRESCEN
T (NW-EA) 

D10 Speed 
Ramps 

on the road. 15/12/2015 Stage 4 0 

142 28368 GROVE 
PARK 
DRIVE 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Speed 
Ramps 

on the road. 15/12/2015 Stage 4 0 

143 28369 SHANOWE
N 
CRESCEN
T (NW-EA) 

D9 Parking 
Prohibition 

in the cul-de-sac. 15/12/2015 Stage 2 0 

144 28370 GALLAUN 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Stop Sign Stop/Yield sign at 
the back of 
Poppintree Sports 
Complex and 
Gallaun Road. 

15/12/2015 Stage 2 0 

145 28374 GLASNEVI
N AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Continuou
s White 
Line 

from the junction 
with Ballymun 
Road as far as 
30/32. 

15/12/2015 Stage 4 0 

146 28382 KILSHANE 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Traffic 
Calming 

on the road, 
adjacent to No. 11. 

07/12/2015 Stage 2 1 

147 28419 FINGLAS 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

Pedestrian 
Crossing/improve 
traffic flow at 
Finglas Road 
roundabout and 
Finglas Village 
junction. 

15/12/2015 Stage 2 0 

148 28517 GLENTIES 
PARK 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

On Glenties Park 
at Cardiffsbridge 
Road junction.  

15/12/2015 Stage 2 0 

149 28632 SHANLISS 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Traffic Calming 11/01/2016 Stage 2 1 

150 28633 BALBUTC
HER LANE 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Traffic 
Calming 

from the old 
Shopping Centre 
to Poppintree. 

11/01/2016 Stage 2 0 

Page 93



Item Ref Road Post-
code 

Topic Request 
Description 

Date Rec'd SR 
Status 

No.  
Secondary 
Requests 

151 28729 DALCASSI
AN 
DOWNS 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

and rescindment 
of Pay and Display 
and Permit 
Parking opposite 
Nos. 11-14. 

07/01/2016 Stage 2 0 

152 28752 BOTANIC 
ROAD NW-
EA) 

D9 Traffic 
Lights 

To move the traffic 
lights on Botanic 
Road to just 
before the Lindsay 
Road junction.  

18/11/2015 Stage 2 0 

153 28753 BOTANIC 
ROAD NW-
EA) 

D9 Speed 
Ramps 

on Botanic Road 
just before 
the Lindsay Road 
junction.  

18/11/2015 Stage 2 0 

154 28795 COLLINS 
AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Engineer 
Query 

To review of the 
junction turning left 
from Collins 
Avenue West onto 
Swords Road.  

11/01/2016 Stage 2 0 

155 28809 ASHINGTO
N AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

on the road. 19/01/2016 Stage 2 0 

156 28815 BLACKHO
RSE 
AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Parking 
Prohibition 

various as part of 
Blackhorse 
Avenue Scheme. 

12/01/2016 Stage 5 1 

157 28816 DALCASSI
AN 
DOWNS 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Pay & 
Display & 
Permit 
Parking 

Request to review 
the Pay and 
Display and Permit 
Parking opposite 
Nos. 12-14.  

11/01/2016 Stage 2 0 

158 29011 SHANDON 
PARK 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 
(Extend) 

from the Shandon 
Gardens junction.   

18/01/2016 Stage 2 -1 

159 29016 WOODHAZ
EL CLOSE 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Parking 
Prohibition 

Parking 
prohibitions for 
Woodhazel Close, 
Ballymun. 

16/01/2016 Stage 2 1 

160 29049 KEMPTON 
WAY (NW-
EA) 

D7 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 
(Extend) 

on Kempton Way. 19/01/2016 Stage 2 0 

161 29062 BOTANIC 
AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Disabled 
Parking 
Bay 
(Rescind 
Residentia
l) 

outside No. 88 and 
replace with Pay 
and Display and 
Permit Parking.  

20/01/2016 Stage 2 0 

Page 94



Item Ref Road Post-
code 

Topic Request 
Description 

Date Rec'd SR 
Status 

No.  
Secondary 
Requests 

162 29302 MARLBOR
OUGH 
MEWS 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Parking 
Prohibition 

on the road. 01/02/2016 Stage 2 0 

163 29372 DUNARD 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

DYLs for Dunard 
Rd, close to 
Tesco's,  on the 
corners heading 
into the cul-de-sac 
at Nos. 78 & 50. 

04/02/2016 Stage 2 0 

164 29410 CONNAUG
HT 
STREET 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

Request for 
double yellow lines 
on laneway at rear 
of above roads. 

05/02/2016 Stage 4 0 

165 29524 LARKHILL 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Speed Ramps 17/02/2016 Stage 2 0 

166 29527 BALLYMU
N ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Yellow 
Box 

Yellow box at 
above junction 

09/02/2016 Stage 2 0 

167 29837 RATOATH 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Parking 
Prohibition 

Parking 
restrictions outside 
no.287 Ratoath 
Road 

19/02/2016 Stage 2 0 

168 29882 SHANTALL
A DRIVE 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Speed 
Ramps 

Speed ramps on 
the road 

23/02/2016 Stage 2 0 

169 29965 SAINT 
HELENA'S 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

from the junction 
of St. Helena’s 
Drive to the rear 
entrance to Tesco 
Clearwater.  

26/02/2016 Stage 2 0 

170 29969 TOLKA 
VALLEY 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

 for safe crossing 
for disabled 
people to cross 
the disabled 
entrance to Tolka 
Valley Park. 

29/02/2016 Stage 2 0 

171 30002 BALLYGAL
L ROAD 
WEST 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Yellow 
Box 

Request for yellow 
box at above 
junction. 

29/02/2016 Stage 2 0 

172 30003 DALCASSI
AN 
DOWNS 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

outside the 
houses.  

29/02/2016 Stage 2 0 

Page 95



Item Ref Road Post-
code 

Topic Request 
Description 

Date Rec'd SR 
Status 

No.  
Secondary 
Requests 

173 30046 SAINT 
PATRICK'S 
PARADE 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Pay & 
Display & 
Permit 
Parking 

on the road, from 
St. Patrick's Road 
to St. Columba's 
Road Upper.  

02/03/2016 Stage 4 2 

174 30098 COLLINS 
AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 
(Extend) 

from the junction 
of The Thatch 
Road.  

04/03/2016 Stage 4 0 

175 30099 GRIFFITH 
AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Yellow 
Box 

at the junction of 
Ballygall Road 
East.  

04/03/2016 Stage 2 0 

176 30111 FITZMAUR
ICE ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

outside the Credit 
Union  

04/03/2016 Stage 2 2 

177 30178 ALBERT 
COLLEGE 
PARK 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Single 
Yellow 
Line 

outside  Nos. 12A 
– 12C.  

08/03/2016 Stage 4 2 

178 30260 LARKHILL 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 One-Way 
System 

Weekdays, at 
school collection 
and drop off times. 

10/03/2016 Stage 2 0 

179 30313 SAINT 
PAPPIN 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Traffic 
Lights 

at the junction of 
Stormanstown 
Road.  

15/03/2016 Stage 2 0 

180 30366 SAINT 
JOSEPH'S 
WAY (NW-
EA) 

D11 Traffic 
Calming 

Ramps or traffic 
calming  

18/03/2016 Stage 2 0 

181 30630 SHANOWE
N ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

on either side of 
the entrance to 
Shanowen Hall 
Student 
Residence.  

07/04/2016 Stage 4 0 

182 30708 WELLMOU
NT ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Pay & 
Display 
Parking 

on the road N2 
junction end. 

19/04/2016 Stage 2 0 

183 30807 MARLBOR
OUGH 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Pay & 
Display & 
Permit 
Parking 

on the road.  
  

14/04/2016 Stage 2 0 

184 30826 BALBUTC
HER LANE 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

At Baile Na 
Laochra (Modular 
homes site ) 

16/04/2016 Stage 2 0 

Page 96



Item Ref Road Post-
code 

Topic Request 
Description 

Date Rec'd SR 
Status 

No.  
Secondary 
Requests 

185 30830 SHANLISS 
WAY (NW-
EA) 

D11 Speed 
Ramps 

between the 
Santry Lane end 
and the pedestrian 
entrance to 
Ballymun Estate.  

16/04/2016 Stage 2 1 

186 30870 CRANOGU
E ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Yield Sign at the junction of 
Cranogue Terrace.  

19/04/2016 Stage 5 0 

187 30894 EVERTON 
AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Disabled 
Parking 
Bay 
(Residenti
al) 

outside No. 8. 25/04/2017 Stage 2 0 

188 30950 POPPINTR
EE 
CRESCEN
T (NW-EA) 

D11 Traffic 
Calming 

on the road at 
above location 

22/04/2016 Stage 2 0 

189 30993 RATHLIN 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

on the road 
opposite the 
entrance to 400 
Griffith Avenue 

25/04/2016 Stage 4 0 

190 30994 WILLOW 
PARK 
AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Speed 
Ramps 

on the road.  25/04/2016 Stage 4 0 

191 31017 BARRY 
AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D11 School 
Ahead 
Sign 

on the road 26/04/2016 Stage 2 1 

192 31113 ALBERT 
COLLEGE 
PARK 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Continuou
s White 
Line 

or Double Yellow 
Lines on the 
two bends.  

29/04/2016 Stage 4 2 

193 31119 FAUSSAG
H AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Engineer 
Query 

Request for 
removal of bus 
stop from outside 
97  

28/04/2016 Stage 2 0 

194 31157 HAMPSTE
AD COURT 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 
(Extend) 

Request for 
extension of DYL's 
outside no 42, 
location is 
opposite the 
Community 
Centre, at 
entrance to 
apartments. 

05/05/2016 Stage 2 0 

195 31200 BALLYGAL
L ROAD 
WEST 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 
(Extend) 

at the junction of 
Ballygall Road 
West and Main 
Street Finglas. 

09/05/2016 Stage 2 0 

Page 97



Item Ref Road Post-
code 

Topic Request 
Description 

Date Rec'd SR 
Status 

No.  
Secondary 
Requests 

196 31201 ABBOTST
OWN 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Traffic 
Calming 

on the road. 09/05/2016 Stage 2 2 

197 31206 ALBERT 
COLLEGE 
PARK 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

on one side of the 
road. 

17/05/2016 Stage 4 0 

198 31209 WALNUT 
LAWN 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

opposite No. 11. 17/05/2016 Stage 2 0 

199 31210 CABRA 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Yellow 
Box 
(Extend) 

at the junction of 
Cabra Road and 
Dowth Avenue. 

17/05/2016 Stage 2 1 

200 31216 BALBUTC
HER LANE 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Yellow 
Box 

at the junction of 
Carton Drive and 
Balbutcher Lane. 

17/05/2016 Stage 2 0 

201 31257 RATOATH 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Bus Stop 
Marking 

at Dublin Bus No. 
7027. 

06/05/2016 Stage 2 0 

202 31354 ALBERT 
COLLEGE 
DRIVE 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

at Albert College 
Court.  

09/05/2016 Stage 4 0 

203 31364 MAGENTA 
CRESCEN
T (NW-EA) 

D9 Traffic 
Calming 

traffic calming 
measures at the 
entrance  

16/05/2016 Stage 2 0 

204 31514 SHANOWE
N ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Yellow 
Box 

at the entrance to 
Shanowen Hall 
Student 
Residence 

07/04/2016 Stage 4 0 

205 31555 CABRA 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

across entrance to 
property No. 123 

25/05/2016 Stage 2 0 

206 31715 SHANOWE
N ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

at junction of 
Shanowen 
Avenue. 

31/05/2016 Stage 4 0 

207 31717 SHANOWE
N 
CRESCEN
T (NW-EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

at the entrance 31/05/2016 Stage 2 0 

208 31760 BALLYGAL
L PARADE 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Speed 
Ramps 

 on above road 03/06/2016 Stage 2 0 

209 31910 BALLYMU
N ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

between house 
number 18 and 20 

10/06/2016 Stage 2 0 

Page 98



Item Ref Road Post-
code 

Topic Request 
Description 

Date Rec'd SR 
Status 

No.  
Secondary 
Requests 

210 32074 SHANOWE
N ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

at Shanowen Hall 
Apartments. 

20/06/2016 Stage 4 0 

211 32108 POPPINTR
EE 
CRESCEN
T (NW-EA) 

D11 Traffic 
Calming 

on Poppintree 
Crescent and 
Belclare Avenue.  

13/06/2016 Stage 2 0 

212 32174 CHURCH 
AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Parking 
Prohibition 

at St Mobhi’s 
Church, Church 
Avenue, Ballymun. 

21/06/2016 Stage 2 0 

213 32352 DRUMCON
DRA ROAD 
UPPER 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

Outside The Nest 
Creche 27 Upper 
Drumcondra Rd 

27/06/2016 Stage 2 0 

214 32356 WELLMOU
NT ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11  Request to review 
vehicle entrance to 
St Michaels 
School in respect 
of approaching 
cyclists. 

28/06/2016 Stage 4 0 

215 32375 SAINT 
ITA'S 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Disabled 
Parking 
Bay 
(Residenti
al) 

outside No.14 29/06/2016 Stage 2 0 

216 32440 SHANDON 
PARK 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

Request for DYL's 
outside 114 
Shandon Park 
(request also in for 
repainting of 
existing ones at 
side of house SR 
32438) to include 
on corners and 
along park side. 

01/07/2016 Stage 4 0 

217 32454 LEIX 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Engineer 
Query 

Request for 
engineer to look at 
putting rush hour 
restrictions at the 
above area, and 
also for engineer 
to put plans for 
increased parking 
into the area for 
when the LUAS 
station opens. 

04/07/2016 Stage 2 0 

Page 99



Item Ref Road Post-
code 

Topic Request 
Description 

Date Rec'd SR 
Status 

No.  
Secondary 
Requests 

218 32455 DOWTH 
AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Parking 
Prohibition 

Request for 
parking restrictions 
at above road due 
to issues for the 
local residents as 
a result of illegal 
parking, and no 
parking 
restrictions. 

04/07/2016 Stage 2 1 

219 32458 DOWTH 
AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Speed 
Ramps 

Request for speed 
ramps for above 
road as cars using 
it as a rat run. 

04/07/2016 Stage 2 0 

220 32523 MARLBOR
OUGH 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Continuou
s White 
Line 
(Rescind) 

on Marlborough 
Road at junction 
with North Circular 
Road 

05/07/2016 Stage 4 0 

221 32555 CREMORE 
HEIGHTS 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

at 1-29 on the 
church side of the 
road. 

19/07/2016 Stage 2 2 

222 32668 KEMPTON 
AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

in the estate 12/07/2016 Stage 4 1 

223 32696 SHANOWE
N ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

Outside number 
190  

13/07/2016 Stage 4 0 

224 32714 COOLGARI
FF ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 No Right 
Turn 

Request to ban a 
right turn from 
Coolgariff Rd on to 
Coolatree Park. 

13/07/2016 Stage 2 0 

225 32796 FLEMING 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

at top and bottom 
of road as cars 
park too close to 
junction. 

18/07/2016 Stage 4 0 

226 32986 PROSPEC
T SQUARE 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

Committee reques
ts that DYLs be 
marked around 
bend of Prospect 
Sq. and St. Teresa 
Road, and 
at garage entrance 
for No.14 St 
Teresa Road 
 

28/07/2016 Stage 2 2 

227 33054 SWORDS 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

 at Comet Pub 28/07/2016 Stage 2 0 

Page 100



Item Ref Road Post-
code 

Topic Request 
Description 

Date Rec'd SR 
Status 

No.  
Secondary 
Requests 

228 33081 GLASANA
ON ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

above road 02/08/2016 Stage 2 0 

229 33149 WELLMOU
NT ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

Request for 
pedestrian 
crossing  

04/08/2016 Stage 2 0 

230 33153 TOLKA 
COTTAGE
S (NW-EA) 

D11 Disabled 
Parking 
Bay 
(Residenti
al) 

opposite property 
No. 12. 

08/08/2016 Stage 2 0 

231 33282 SWORDS 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

Extra crossing. 16/08/2016 Stage 2 0 

232 33309 SWILLY 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Traffic 
Calming 

residents of above 
roads would like to 
see some kind of 
traffic measure at 
junction 

17/08/2016 Stage 2 0 

233 33310 BALBUTC
HER LANE 
(NW-EA) 

D11  request for traffic 
calming measures 
at corner of above 
roads 

17/08/2016 Stage 2 0 

234 33343 CHURCH 
AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

DYLs for Church 
Avenue, between 
11 Church Ave 
and 2 Ballymun 
Rd. 

18/08/2016 Stage 4 0 

235 33459 NAVAN 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Yellow 
Box 

at bus stop 1660 
outbound. 

30/08/2016 Stage 2 0 

236 33466 MILLBOUR
NE 
AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Disabled 
Parking 
Bay 
(General) 

Request to 
relocate a general 
disabled parking 
bay from outside 
the library to 
outside the health 
centre.   

30/08/2016 Stage 2 0 

237 33648 KINVARA 
PARK 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Pay & 
Display 
Parking 

at the parking area 
at the shops, Nos. 
37-43.  

06/09/2016 Stage 2 0 

238 33681 MAREWOOD 
CRESCENT (NW-EA) 

Speed 
Cushions 

Need higher 
ramps to slow 
down cars. 

09/09/2016 Stage 2 0 

239 33699 GATEWAY 
MEWS 
(NW-EA) 

D17 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

at entrance to the 
road. 

20/09/2016 Stage 2 0 

Page 101



Item Ref Road Post-
code 

Topic Request 
Description 

Date Rec'd SR 
Status 

No.  
Secondary 
Requests 

240 33719 GLASANA
ON ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 School 
Warden 
Crossing 
Box 

at the main 
entrance to Gael 
Scoil Ui Earcain. 

12/09/2016 Stage 2 0 

241 33733 MILLMOUN
T AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

Request for 
above at Millmount 
House on the 
Fagan’s side of 
the road! 

09/09/2016 Stage 2 0 

242 33735 GRIFFITH 
AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

Request for 
another pedestrian 
crossing south of 
the junction of 
Griffith Avenue 
and Drumcondra 
Road Upper. 

13/09/2016 Stage 2 0 

243 33819 SHANTALL
A ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

request for 
pedestrian 
crossings on the 
Shantall Road 
Bridge at the top 
of the bridge and 
at the bollards on 
the Shantalla 
Road end. 

20/09/2016 Stage 2 0 

244 33854 BALLYGAL
L 
CRESCEN
T (NW-EA) 

D11 Speed 
Ramps 

on above road 20/09/2016 Stage 2 0 

245 33881 NAVAN 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Traffic 
Calming 

and Flashing 
Speed Signs (from 
Cabra Cross to 
Ashtown). 

15/09/2016 Stage 2 0 

246 33992 NORTH 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

outside gate of 
Brookfield Court 
Senior Citizens 

21/09/2016 Stage 2 0 

247 34155 NAVAN 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Traffic 
Calming 

Traffic calming 
measures for 
Navan Rd, 
particularly at 
entrance to 
Darling Estate. 

04/10/2016 Stage 4 0 

248 34213 KINVARA 
DRIVE 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Traffic 
Calming 

on the road.  29/09/2016 Stage 2 0 

249 34444 SHANOWE
N ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

Opposite the 
Garda station  

10/10/2016 Stage 2 0 

Page 102



Item Ref Road Post-
code 

Topic Request 
Description 

Date Rec'd SR 
Status 

No.  
Secondary 
Requests 

250 34557 BALCURRI
S ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Traffic 
Lights 

Urgently review 
Traffic Safety 
measures at 
Balcurris/Balbutch
er lane Junction. 

11/10/2016 Stage 4 0 

251 34579 SHANOWE
N ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

at Cocoon Créche, 
Block F, Milners 
Square. 

17/10/2016 Stage 2 0 

252 34582 HAMPSTE
AD 
AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

on the road.  17/10/2016 Stage 2 0 

253 34645 CLARE 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 One-Way 
System 

Request for above 
roads to be made 
one-way 

19/10/2016 Stage 2 0 

254 34652 SHANOWE
N 
CRESCEN
T (NW-EA) 

D9 Single 
Yellow 
Line 

on one side of the 
section of 
Shanowen 
Crescent coming 
in from Shanowen 
Road 

20/10/2016 Stage 2 0 

255 34787 MELLOWE
S PARK 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Parking 
Prohibition 

Problem with 
people parking 
across house 
driveways. 

28/10/2016 Stage 4 0 

256 34794 CABRA 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Pay & 
Display & 
Permit 
Parking 

Parking scheme 
for Cabra Rd. 

02/11/2016 Stage 3 0 

257 34817 BOTANIC 
VILLAS 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Pay & 
Display & 
Permit 
Parking 
(change of 
hours) 

for extension of 
hours until 
midnight and to 
include Sundays.  

02/11/2016 Stage 3 0 

258 34829 RATOATH 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Speed 
Ramps 

on Ratoath Road 
between 
Westwood and 
Dunsink Lane. 

15/11/2016 Stage 2 0 

259 34888 SAINT 
DAVID'S 
TERRACE 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

laneway located 
off St. David’s 
Terrace, 
Glasnevin 

08/11/2016 Stage 4 0 

260 34969 ABBOTST
OWN 
AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Speed 
Ramps 

between 39 and 
63 Abbotstown 
Avenue. 

15/11/2016 Stage 2 0 

Page 103



Item Ref Road Post-
code 

Topic Request 
Description 

Date Rec'd SR 
Status 

No.  
Secondary 
Requests 

261 34971 DRUMCLIF
FE ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Traffic 
Calming 

on the road. 15/11/2016 Stage 2 0 

262 34972 HOLLYBA
NK ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Electric 
Car Bay 

at the charger. 15/11/2016 Stage 2 0 

263 35013 CRAWFOR
D AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Disabled 
Parking 
Bay 
(Residenti
al) 

outside No. 14. 
Pay and Display 
and Permit 
Parking will have 
to be rescinded.  

11/11/2016 Stage 4 0 

264 35047 CLARE 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Stop Sign Stop signs on 
above roads. Also 
Lambay and 
Rathlin Roads. 

01/11/2016 Stage 2 0 

265 35067 BANTRY 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Disabled 
Parking 
Bay 
(Residenti
al) 

outside No. 35. 15/11/2016 Stage 2 0 

266 35084 BLACKHO
RSE 
AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Pay & 
Display & 
Permit 
Parking 

at Nos. 1 to 21, St. 
David’s Terrace.  

15/11/2016 Stage 2 0 

267 35305 CARTON 
TERRACE 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Traffic 
Calming 

Woman phoned 
complaining about 
speeding traffic on 
above road. Wants 
traffic calming 
measures put in 
place i.e. signs etc 

30/11/2016 Stage 2 0 

268 35329 SHANOWE
N AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Yellow 
Box 
(Extend) 

Extend DYL past 
ramp to the 
vehicular entrance 
gate of 688 Collins 
avenue ext 

28/11/2016 Stage 2 0 

269 35375 KILKIERAN 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Speed 
Ramps 
(Rescind) 

change position of 
speed ramps at 
Sancta Maria Day 
Centre. 

20/12/2016 Stage 2 0 

270 35420 HILLCRES
T PARK 
(NW-EA) 

D11 One-Way 
System 

on Hillcrest Park. 06/12/2016 Stage 2 0 

271 35514 OLD 
FINGLAS 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Yellow 
Box 

outside the 
entrance to St. 
Mary’s Secondary 
School. 

06/12/2016 Stage 2 0 

Page 104



Item Ref Road Post-
code 

Topic Request 
Description 

Date Rec'd SR 
Status 

No.  
Secondary 
Requests 

272 35594 MAREWO
OD 
CRESCEN
T (NW-EA) 

D11 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

on the road. 20/12/2016 Stage 2 0 

273 35595 DRUMCLIF
FE ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Traffic 
Calming 

to prevent rat-
running from 
Ratoath Road. 

20/12/2016 Stage 2 0 

274 35598 TOLKA 
VALLEY 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Speed 
Ramps 

at the entrance 
from Ratoath 
Road. 

20/12/2016 Stage 2 0 

275 35631 GRIFFITH 
AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D11 School 
Keep 
Clear 

outside the 
Educate Together 
National School, 
Griffith Avenue 
Extension.  

20/12/2016 Stage 2 0 

276 35632 GRIFFITH 
AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

outside the 
Educate Together 
National School, 
Griffith Avenue 
Extension.  

20/12/2016 Stage 5 0 

277 35780 BALLYMU
N ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 School 
Warden 

at Our Lady of 
Victories School.  

09/01/2017 Stage 4 2 

278 36027 POPPINTR
EE 
PARADE 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Disabled 
Parking 
Bay 
(General) 

opposite 
Poppintree 
Pharmacy.  

18/01/2017 Stage 2 0 

279 36034 COLLINS 
AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Traffic 
Island 

on Collins Ave 
West, west of 
junction with 
Swords Road 

09/01/2017 Stage 2 0 

280 36099 GRIFFITH 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 3 Tonne 
Limit 

on the road.  19/01/2017 Stage 2 0 

281 36161 GRIFFITH 
AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 
(Extend) 

request to 
extend existing 
DYLs 3m west 
(outside No. 256)  
  
See also SR 
36160 

16/01/2017 Stage 2 0 

282 36168 BENEAVIN 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

from Beneavin 
College to 
Beneavin Nursing 
Home, on both 
sides of the road. 

17/01/2017 Stage 2 0 

Page 105



Item Ref Road Post-
code 

Topic Request 
Description 

Date Rec'd SR 
Status 

No.  
Secondary 
Requests 

283 36316 GRIFFITH 
AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Clearway eastbound 
between bus stop 
No. 188 & Swords 
Road.    

02/02/2017 Stage 2 0 

284 36378 JOHNSTO
WN PARK 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

request  for DYLs 
at junction 

24/01/2017 Stage 2 0 

285 36380 GLENDUN 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Children 
Crossing 
Sign 

request for signs 
near green 

24/01/2017 Stage 4 1 

286 36394 GALLAUN 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11  To investigate an 
issue with parking 
on Gallaun Road.  

06/02/2017 Stage 2 0 

287 36395 DANE 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Speed 
Ramps 

on the road.  06/02/2017 Stage 2 0 

288 36415 CLONMEL 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Parking 
Prohibition 

around laneway 
area - shortcut to 
school 

24/01/2017 Stage 2 0 

289 36474 SHANLISS 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

at house No.9 27/01/2017 Stage 2 0 

290 36487 THE 
THATCH 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Traffic 
Lights 

at the junction of 
The Thatch Road 
and Beaumont 
Road.  

27/01/2017 Stage 2 1 

291 36503 FARNHAM 
DRIVE 
(NW-EA) 

D11 3 Tonne 
Limit 

on Farnham Drive 
from the junction 
with Wellmount 
Road to the gates 
of Erin's isle. 

21/02/2017 Stage 2 0 

292 36538 THE RISE 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

request for double 
yellow lines on 
Griffith Ave to 
improve visibility 
for cars exiting 
The Rise. 

30/01/2017 Stage 4 0 

293 36626 DALCASSI
AN 
DOWNS 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

on either side of 
the entrance to 
No. 2. 
  
  

08/02/2017 Stage 2 0 

294 36692 COLLINS 
AVENUE 
EXTENSIO
N (NW-EA) 

D9 Yellow 
Box 

markings at the 
junction. 

02/02/2017 Stage 5 0 

Page 106



Item Ref Road Post-
code 

Topic Request 
Description 

Date Rec'd SR 
Status 

No.  
Secondary 
Requests 

295 36699 FINGLAS 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

at the slip road on 
the Finglas Road 
at junction with 
Ballyboggan 
Road.  

03/02/2017 Stage 2 0 

296 36731 SAINT 
MOBHI 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Yellow 
Box 

at the junction of 
St. Mobhi Bobhi 
Boithirin, outbound 
lane.  

06/02/2017 Stage 2 0 

297 36738 SHANDON 
CRESCEN
T (NW-EA) 

D7 Pay & 
Display & 
Permit 
Parking 

on the road.  23/01/2017 Stage 3 0 

298 36748 HILLCRES
T PARK 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

request for double 
yellow lines  

09/02/2017 Stage 2 0 

299 36766 BOTANIC 
AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D9 No Right 
Turn 

from Botanic Ave 
onto Mobhi Road, 
to alleviate traffic 
on former 

07/02/2017 Stage 2 0 

300 36769 RATOATH 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Yellow 
Box 

yellow box on a 
roundabout 

09/02/2017 Stage 2 0 

301 36773 DEAN 
SWIFT 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

DYLs corner of 
Dean Swift Road/ 
St Pappins Rd. 

10/02/2017 Stage 4 0 

302 36811 SAINT 
HELENA'S 
DRIVE 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

entrance 
to Merville Court 
senior citizens 
complex. 

01/03/2017 Stage 2 0 

303 36817 CABRA 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Yellow 
Box 

at entrance to 
Rosecourt 
Apartment 
Complex Cabra 
Rd. 

01/03/2017 Stage 2 2 

304 36862 SYCAMOR
E ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

at junction of 
Sycamore Rd / 
McKee Road 
  

08/03/2017 Stage 2 0 

305 36898 CRANOGU
E 
TERRACE 
(NW-EA) 

D11  Yield /Stop sign at 
either end of 
Cranogue Terrace 
at junction of 
Cranogue Road 
and Balbutcher 
Way.  

17/02/2017 Stage 2 0 

Page 107



Item Ref Road Post-
code 

Topic Request 
Description 

Date Rec'd SR 
Status 

No.  
Secondary 
Requests 

306 36907 BERRYFIE
LD ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Speed 
Ramps 

at the junction of 
Berryfield Road 
and Berryfield 
Drive.  

06/03/2017 Stage 2 0 

307 36934 POPPINTR
EE PARK 
LANE 
WEST 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Pedestrian 
Barrier 

between Parkview 
and Holywell. 

21/03/2017 Stage 2 0 

308 36937 BALLYMU
N ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Yellow 
Box 

at the Axis Centre. 21/03/2017 Stage 2 0 

309 36943 NORTH 
CIRCULAR 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

at the entrance to 
Grangegorman 
DIT. 

21/03/2017 Stage 2 1 

310 36945 COOLEEN 
AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Traffic 
Calming 

on the road. 21/03/2017 Stage 2 0 

311 36947 COOLRUA 
DRIVE 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Traffic 
Calming 

on the road. 21/03/2017 Stage 2 0 

312 36951 CLANCY 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Traffic 
Calming 

including speed 
ramps and a road 
closure. 

21/03/2017 Stage 2 0 

313 36979 BEAUMONT ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

Left Turn 
Filter Light 

from Beaumont 
Road into the 
Hospital grounds. 

10/03/2017 Stage 4 0 

314 36994 GRIFFITH 
AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Bus Lane on approach to St 
Mobhi Road. 

13/03/2017 Stage 4 0 

315 36995 JAMESTO
WN ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Traffic 
Calming 

request for 
additional traffic 
calming on the 
road. 

13/03/2017 Stage 2 0 

316 37000 COLLINS 
AVENUE 
EXTENSIO
N (NW-EA) 

D9 Traffic 
Lights 

at the junction of 
Crestfield Drive at 
St Aidan’s CBS.  

06/03/2017 Stage 2 0 

317 37093 WELLMOU
NT ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Children 
Crossing 
Sign 

opposite 'The 
Cabin' Shop, No. 
47b.  

20/03/2017 Stage 4 0 

318 37107 GLENBEIG
H ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

Some form of 
traffic calming, 
preferably 
pedestrian 
crossing, at 
junction of 

28/02/2017 Stage 2 1 

Page 108



Item Ref Road Post-
code 

Topic Request 
Description 

Date Rec'd SR 
Status 

No.  
Secondary 
Requests 

Glenbeigh 
Road and Old 
Cabra Road. 

319 37172 MC 
KELVEY 
AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

at Mc Kelvey 
Avenue / St. 
Margaret's Road. 

09/03/2017 Stage 2 0 

320 37263 DRUMCON
DRA ROAD 
LOWER 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Road 
Markings 

Cycle lane 
markings 
Drumcondra Rd 
Lwr on junction 
with Hollybank 
Road 

22/03/2017 Stage 4 0 

321 37271 KILKIERAN 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Yield Sign On Kilkieran Road 
at the junction of 
Bannow Road.  

22/03/2017 Stage 4 0 

322 37280 OLDTOWN 
PARK 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Parking 
Prohibition 

Some form of 
parking prohibition 
as residents 
finding it difficult to 
enter and exit cul 
de sac due to 
nuisance parking.  

07/03/2017 Stage 2 0 

323 37282 CEDARWO
OD 
AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Speed 
Ramps 

Request for ramp 
between 8-10 
Cedarwood 
Avenue 

15/03/2017 Stage 2 0 

324 37285 BALLYMU
N ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Disabled 
Parking 
Bay 
(General) 

Two bays outside 
Ballymun Library.  

23/03/2017 Stage 2 0 

325 37289 SEVEN 
OAKS 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 
(Extend) 

Extension of DYLs 
outside N0. 43 
around the full 
square as it is 
constantly being 
used by non 
residents for 
parking. 

27/03/2017 Stage 2 0 

326 37318 CABRA 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Yellow 
Box 

Yellow box on 
Cabra Road at 
junction with 
Charleville Road. 

15/03/2017 Stage 2 1 

327 37331 KILKIERAN 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Speed 
Ramps 

at the junction of 
Kilkieran Road 
and Bannow 
Road.  

22/03/2017 Stage 4 0 

Page 109



Item Ref Road Post-
code 

Topic Request 
Description 

Date Rec'd SR 
Status 

No.  
Secondary 
Requests 

328 37353 CHURCH 
AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Pay & 
Display & 
Permit 
Parking 
(extension 
of area) 

request for two 
additional bays 
instead of DYLs 
from No. 22 to 
entrance to All 
Hollows Lane.  

21/02/2017 Stage 2 0 

329 37356 BALLYMU
N ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Disabled 
Parking 
Bay 
(General) 

Request for 
additional bays 
outside the 
Ballymun Civic 
Centre.  

31/03/2017 Stage 2 0 

330 37367 KIPPURE 
PARK 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Speed 
Ramps 

at the east end 
between 156-157. 

18/04/2017 Stage 2 0 

331 37424 NEPHIN 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Right Turn 
Only 

Request for right 
turn only lane 
at Junction of 
Nephin Road 
Navan Rd. 

29/03/2017 Stage 5 0 

332 37512 CARTON 
TERRACE 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Traffic 
Lights 

with Pedestrian 
Phase at the 
junction of Carton 
Terrace and 
Balbutcher Lane.  

05/04/2017 Stage 2 0 

333 37526 ARRAN 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D6 Disabled 
Parking 
Bay 
(Residenti
al) 

Appeal in relation 
to the proposed 
installation of a 
disabled parking 
bay outside No. 
28.  

11/04/2017 Stage 4 8 

334 37554 SWORDS 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Traffic 
Lights 

at the Swords 
Road slip road 
coming out of the 
Omni Park 
Shopping Centre. 

04/04/2017 Stage 2 0 

335 37576 GLENTIES 
PARK 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Parking 
Prohibition 

at the junction of 
Glenties Park and 
Cardiffsbridge 
Road. 

04/04/2017 Stage 4 0 

336 37617 SAINT 
PAPPIN 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

at the junction of 
St Pappin Road 
and Hillcrest Park. 

20/04/2017 Stage 2 0 

337 37689 THE 
THATCH 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 
(Extend) 

to past the green 
boxes to No. 1. 

13/04/2017 Stage 4 0 

Page 110



Item Ref Road Post-
code 

Topic Request 
Description 

Date Rec'd SR 
Status 

No.  
Secondary 
Requests 

338 37700 GLENBEIG
H ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Traffic 
Calming 

On Glenbeigh 
Road at the 
junction 
of Blackhorse 
Avenue.   

22/03/2017 Stage 2 0 

338 37799 BOTANIC 
PARK 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

on one side of the 
road at the 
entrance. 

20/04/2017 Stage 4 1 

340 37891 SWORDS 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

at the slip road out 
of Omni on section 
to McDonalds. 

16/05/2017 Stage 2 0 

341 37892 GRIFFITH 
AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Speed 
Ramps 

on the section 
between No. 380 
and 560. 

16/05/2017 Stage 2 0 

342 37898 COLLINS 
AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

on the slip road 
from Collins 
Avenue onto 
Swords Road.  

24/04/2017 Stage 2 0 

343 37903 ALBERT 
COLLEGE 
PARK 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Continuou
s White 
Line 

on the road. 08/05/2017 Stage 4 0 

344 37904 CABRA 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Yellow 
Box 
(Extend) 

on Cabra Road at 
the junction of 
Cabra Drive.  

11/04/2017 Stage 4 0 

345 37925 MAIN 
STREET 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Loading 
Bay 

outside Massey 
Brothers Funeral 
Home, No. 1/2.  

25/04/2017 Stage 2 0 

346 37981 SEAMUS 
ENNIS 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Parking 
Prohibition 

on the west side, 
outside Ballygall 
Health Centre.  

25/04/2017 Stage 2 0 

347 37985 BARRY 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Bus Stop 
Signpost 

outbound at The 
Cappagh House 

11/05/2017 Stage 2 0 

348 38002 BENEAVIN 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Loading 
Bay 

request for loading 
bay 

12/05/2017 Stage 2 0 

349 38025 LARKHILL 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Traffic 
Calming 

Request for traffic 
calming measures 
to be considered 
on the stretch of 
road connecting 
Larkhill Rd and 
Swords Rd. 

24/04/2017 Stage 4 0 

Page 111



Item Ref Road Post-
code 

Topic Request 
Description 

Date Rec'd SR 
Status 

No.  
Secondary 
Requests 

350 38069 RATOATH 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Children 
Crossing 
Sign 

Children Crossing 
Sign outside 
Marian Primary 
School for 
motorists coming 
off the bridge 
approaching 
Ratoath Rd.  

02/05/2017 Stage 2 0 

351 38071 RATOATH 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Speed 
Ramps 

Additional speed 
ramp when you 
come off the 
bridge Ratoath Rd, 
outside Marian 
Primary School 

02/05/2017 Stage 2 0 

352 38085 SHANLISS 
AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Traffic 
Calming 

Request for traffic 
calming measures 
on this road, cars 
frequently 
speeding. 

02/05/2017 Stage 2 0 

353 38111 IVERAGH 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Traffic 
Lights 

at the junction of 
Iveragh Road and 
Swords Road.  

03/05/2017 Stage 2 0 

354 38176 KILDONAN 
AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Speed 
Ramps 

request for ramps 
on Kildonan 
Avenue 

05/05/2017 Stage 2 0 

355 38205 CARDIFFS
BRIDGE 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Speed 
Ramps 

request for speed 
ramps  

05/05/2017 Stage 2 0 

356 38248 SHANTALL
A ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Traffic 
Lights 

Requests traffic 
lights as 
alternative to the 
existing roundabo
ut, roundabout not 
effective  

08/05/2017 Stage 2 0 

357 38316 ELLENFIEL
D ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Traffic 
Calming 

additional traffic 
calming measures 
on the road.  

08/05/2017 Stage 4 0 

358 38334 THE 
THATCH 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 No Right 
Turn 

from Beaumont 
onto The Thatch 
Rd (being used as 
'rat run'). 

11/05/2017 Stage 2 0 

359 38368 ELLENFIEL
D ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Zebra 
Crossing 

at the junction of 
Ellenfield Road 
and Shantalla 
Road.  

08/05/2017 Stage 4 0 

Page 112



Item Ref Road Post-
code 

Topic Request 
Description 

Date Rec'd SR 
Status 

No.  
Secondary 
Requests 

360 38377 SAINT 
PETERS 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Disabled 
Parking 
Bay 
(General) 

near the junction 
of Cabra Road.  

24/05/2017 Stage 2 0 

361 38387 FINGLAS 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

at the junction of 
Old Finglas Road.  

15/05/2017 Stage 2 0 

362 38431 GLASNEVI
N AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Yellow 
Box 

Request for yellow 
box outside 2 
Glasnevin Avenue, 
located at busy 
junction which 
makes it difficult 
exiting property.  

18/05/2017 Stage 4 0 

363 38441 SHANDON 
PARK 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Pay & 
Display & 
Permit 
Parking 

Introduction of a 
Scheme on the 
road.  

19/05/2017 Stage 3 0 

364 38473 ELLENFIEL
D ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Speed 
Ramps 

at the junction of 
Ellenfield Road 
and Shantalla 
Road.  
  

08/05/2017 Stage 4 0 

365 38474 SHANTALL
A ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 No Right 
Turn 

reinstatement 
of 'no right turn' 
from Shantalla 
Road onto 
Ellenfield Road.  

08/05/2017 Stage 2 0 

366 38512 GLASNEVI
N AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Bus Cage 
Marking 

DB stop 139 06/06/2017 Stage 4 0 

367 38514 SHANDON 
DRIVE 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Pay & 
Display & 
Permit 
Parking 

Introduction of a 
Scheme on the 
road.  

10/05/2017 Stage 3 0 

368 38531 MILLMOUN
T AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Right Turn 
Filter Light 

Request for right 
turn filter from 
Drumcondra Rd 
Upper onto 
Millmount Avenue. 

24/05/2017 Stage 4 3 

369 38653 CAPPAGH 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Right Turn 
Filter Light 

Request for right 
turn filter from 
Ratoath Road onto 
Cappagh Road 

02/06/2017 Stage 1 0 

Page 113



Item Ref Road Post-
code 

Topic Request 
Description 

Date Rec'd SR 
Status 

No.  
Secondary 
Requests 

370 38722 GLASNEVI
N WOODS 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Speed 
Ramps 

at the junction of 
Glasnevin Woods 
and Ballyboggan 
Road.  

12/06/2017 Stage 1 0 

371 38747 KINVARA 
AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

Request for DYLs 
narrow stretch 
between 5 & 7 

14/06/2017 Stage 1 0 

372 38764 CEDARWO
OD 
GROVE 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Children 
Crossing 
Sign 

Request for 
children crossing 
sign  

15/06/2017 Stage 1 0 

373 38798 GLENAAN 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

Certain sections 
near school 

07/06/2017 Stage 1 0 

374 38835 ABBOTST
OWN 
AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Traffic 
Calming 

further traffic 
calming measures 

06/06/2017 Stage 1 0 

375 6328 RIVER 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D15 Speed 
Ramps 

additional 
ramp around the 
corner from 
Pelletstown 
Manor. 

25/02/2013 Stage 3 7 

376 6358 SHANGAN 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Traffic 
Lights 

At junction of 
Balbutcher Lane 
and Balcurris 
Road 

04/03/2013 Stage 4 3 

377 6375 BALBUTC
HER LANE 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Traffic 
Lights 

at junction of 
Sillogue Road. 

28/02/2013 Stage 5 0 

378 6706 BALCURRI
S ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Pedestrian 
Refuge 
Island 

At pedestrian 
lights at rear of 
Ballymun 
Shopping Centre 
facing Plunkett 
Tower. 

27/03/2013 Stage 5 0 

379 7855 CARRIG 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D13 Speed 
Ramps 

between Knowth & 
Druid Court.  

26/06/2013 Stage 5 1 

380 8263 IONA 
ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Traffic 
Island 

Request for traffic 
island or build out 
at the junction 
of Crawford 
Avenue. 
 

08/08/2013 Stage 5 1 

381 8810 COULTRY 
DRIVE 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Speed 
Ramps 

close to No. 27. 07/10/2013 Stage 5 2 

Page 114



Item Ref Road Post-
code 

Topic Request 
Description 

Date Rec'd SR 
Status 

No.  
Secondary 
Requests 

382 9683 BALBUTC
HER LANE 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Traffic 
Calming 

at its junction with 
Carton 
Terrace/Carton 
Drive. 

02/12/2013 Stage 5 0 

383 9921 CRAWFOR
D AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Build out  near the junction 
of Iona Road.  

06/12/2013 Stage 5 0 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 115





 
 
The Chairman and Members of 
North West Area Committee. 
 
Meeting: 18th July 2017 
 

Item No: 14 

 
            North West July 

Area Agenda 
18/07/17 (TAG 
Date: 27/06/17) 

          

Item Ref Request Road Post-
code 

Topic Request 
Description 

Request 
by 

TAG Result TAG Comments Sec Date Rec'd 

1 34557 Admin BALCURRIS 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 Traffic 
Lights 

Urgently review 
Traffic Safety 
measures at 
Balcurris/Balbutcher 
lane Junction. 

cllr Kelly Recommended A full four arm pedestrian wrap around has 
been recommended. It is anticipated to be 
completed as part of the 2017 works 
programme. 

0 11/10/2016 

2 18489 Traffic 
Conditions 

BALLYGALL 
PARADE (NW-
EA) 

D11 Road 
Closure 
(Rescind) 

at the western end 
of the road.  

resident Not 
Recommended 

It is not recommended to remove the bollards 
at the western end of Ballygall Parade as this 
will only encourage vehicles to use the road as 
a "rat run" in what is a residential area. 
Removal of bollards and the existing footpath 
would further reduce pedestrian permeability. 

0 15/06/2015 

P
age 117



3 20707 Parking 
Prohibitions 

BOTANIC 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow Lines 

at the junction of 
Botanic Avenue 
with St. Ita’s 
Terrace, Botanic 
Road. 

cllr 
Keegan 

Not 
Recommended 

It is Dublin City Council's current policy not to 
install double yellow lines on the corners of 
junctions; Under The Roads Traffic Act (Traffic 
& Parking ) Regulations, Section 36 (c) a 
vehicle shall not be parked on a public road 
within 5 metres of a road junction. Section 36 
(2) Road Traffic Act a vehicle shall not be 
parked - (i) on a foot way, a grass margin or a 
median strip. Dublin City Council will continue 
to monitor the area in the coming months and 
will identify any issues that arise to the Gardaí. 
Illegal parking should be reported to the 
Gardai or Dublin Street Parking Services, for 
enforcement under the law 

0 20/10/2015 

4 37904 Traffic 
Conditions 

CABRA ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Yellow Box 
(Extend) 

on Cabra Road at 
the junction of 
Cabra Drive.  

resident Not 
Recommended 

From inspection, the yellow box at this junction 
is measured 6.2m (approx), this exceeds the 
average length of a car. Please note that 
according to the Road Traffic Act "a driver of a 
vehicle shall not enter, either partly or wholly, 
the cross-hatched area unless the vehicle can 
clear the area without stopping." 

0 11/04/2017 

5 19514 Traffic 
Conditions 

CLUNE ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Speed 
Ramps 

on the road. Deputy 
Shortall 

Recommended Clune Road is currently traffic calmed with 
3no. raised entry treatments on its 3 junctions. 
In addition, following a recent speed survey it 
was noted that the 85th percentile average 
speed was 45kph, due to this it is not 
warranted to install additional ramps at this 
time. 

0 05/08/2015 

6 35013 Parking 
Prohibitions 

CRAWFORD 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D9 Disabled 
Parking Bay 
(Residential) 

outside No. 14. Pay 
and Display and 
Permit Parking will 
have to be 
rescinded.  

resident Recommended Rescind Pay and Display and Permit Parking 
from the common boundary between property 
No.'s 12/14 Crawford Avenue, extending 
southwards for 6 metres. 
Install Disabled Parking Bay from the common 
boundary between property No.'s 12/14 
Crawford Avenue, extending southwards for 6 
metres. 

0 11/11/2016 

P
age 118



7 36773 Parking 
Prohibitions 

DEAN SWIFT 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow Lines 

on corner of Dean 
Swift Road/ St 
Pappins Rd. 

Deputy 
Rock 

Not 
Recommended 

 It is currently not recommended to install 
double yellow lines at the junction of Dean 
Swift Road/St. Pappin Road as parking 
prohibitions are already in place. Under The 
Roads Traffic Act (Traffic & Parking ) 
Regulations, Section 36 (c) a vehicle shall not 
be parked on a public road within 5 metres of a 
road junction. Dublin City Council will continue 
to monitor the area in the coming months and 
will identify any issues that arise to the Gardaí. 
Matters of illegal parking should be reported to 
Dublin Street Parking Services Ph. 01 
6022500 or to the Gardaí as they occur. 

0 10/02/2017 

8 20185 Parking 
Prohibitions 

DRUMCONDRA 
ROAD LOWER 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Bus Lane on the bridge over 
the Tolka, 
outbound.  

cllr 
Montague 

Recommended The Swords/Airport to City Centre Bus Rapid 
Transit by the National Transport Authority has 
design drawings which earmark this location 
for potential works including a bus lane and 
realignment of the roadway. 

1 15/09/2015 

9 37263 Admin DRUMCONDRA 
ROAD LOWER 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Road 
Markings 

Cycle lane 
markings 
Drumcondra Rd Lwr 
on junction with 
Hollybank Road 

cllr 
Sammon 

Recommended Install Off Road Cycle Lane commencing at 
the start of the footpath on the northern 
junction of Drumcondra Road Lower and 
Hollybank Road, at a point in line with the top 
of the Stop road marking, from a point 17.5m 
south of PLS 37 and continuing north to the 
dishing at the start of on-road cycle track. 
Install Yield sign on Drumcondra Road Lower 
located 1 metre approximately south of PLS 37 
at the end of the off-road cycle track north of 
the junction with Hollybank Road. 

0 22/03/2017 

10 15647 Traffic 
Conditions 

DUNMANUS 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D7 Speed 
Ramps 

Request for speed 
ramps. 

Deputy 
Donohoe 

Pending Dunmanus Road does not meet the criteria for 
Speed Ramps. For traffic calming the following 
criteria applies: • The road should have a 
straight run of at least 200m. • Traffic volumes 
should exceed 60 vehicles per hour. There is 
on street parking which narrows the 
carriageway and effectively acts as traffic 
calming and reduces forward visibility. 

0 01/12/2014 

P
age 119



11 38316 Traffic 
Conditions 

ELLENFIELD 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D9 Traffic 
Calming 

additional traffic 
calming measures 
on the road.  

cllr 
McAuliffe 

Not 
Recommended 

Ellenfield Road is currently traffic calmed by a 
number of speed ramps and on street parking 
on the road offers additional traffic calming by 
increasing driver awareness due to the 
reduced carriageway. Installing additional 
ramps would only increase acceleration and 
harsh breaking between ramps. 

0 08/05/2017 

12 38368 Pedestrian 
Facilities 

ELLENFIELD 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D9 Zebra 
Crossing 

at the junction of 
Ellenfield Road and 
Shantalla Road.  

cllr 
McAuliffe 

Not 
Recommended 

Having carried out a site inspection it was 
determined that the difficulty of crossing and 
volume of pedestrians did not warrant a 
controlled crossing point at the location. 
Vehicular speeds were also noted as relatively 
low. Dublin City Council for the most part do 
not recommend Zebra crossing as they are 
generally not effective at changing driver 
behaviour and may provide a false sense of 
safety to pedestrians. A pedestrian does not 
have the right-of-way until they actually step 
onto a zebra crossing. 

0 08/05/2017 

13 38473 Traffic 
Conditions 

ELLENFIELD 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D9 Speed 
Ramps 

at the junction of 
Ellenfield Road and 
Shantalla Road.  
  

cllr 
McAuliffe 

Not 
Recommended 

Ellenfield Road is currently traffic calmed by a 
number of speed ramps and on street parking 
on the road offers additional traffic calming by 
increasing driver awareness due to the 
reduced carriageway. Installing additional 
ramps would only increase acceleration and 
harsh breaking between ramps. 

0 08/05/2017 

P
age 120



14 19079 Traffic 
Conditions 

FINGLAS 
PLACE (NW-
EA) 

D11 Road 
Closure 

at one end of the 
road.  

resident Not 
Recommended 

It is not recommended to make Finglas Place 
a Cul De Sac for the following reasons: Ø It 
can result in delays to the emergency services 
with access and egress restricted. Ø It can 
cause difficulties for larger vehicles including 
garbage trucks which may be unable to u-turn 
in the space provided. It can result in 
increased volumes of traffic on other local 
streets as traffic is displaced.  The current road 
layout of the road does not allow for the 
provision of the required turning circle at either 
end of the street.  It can result in anti-social 
activity with youths congregating where the 
road has been closed.  Altering this road into a 
Cul De Sac would negatively reduce 
connectivity and permeability for the residents 
of Finglas Place which would not be in line 
with current Dublin City Council Development 
Plan policy.  It can result in considerable 
inconvenience to local residents and other 
road users. 

0 28/05/2015 

15 38431 Traffic 
Conditions 

GLASNEVIN 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D11 Yellow Box outside 2 Glasnevin 
Avenue. 

cllr 
McAuliffe 

Not 
Recommended 

Yellow boxes are intended to prevent blocking 
of junctions. Side road traffic flows should be 
significant and the side road should serve a 
minimum of fifty houses or a major traffic 
generating facility. The request is not 
recommended as the warrant has not been 
met and such installation would lead to a 
proliferation throughout the city. 

0 18/05/2017 

P
age 121



16 38512 Admin GLASNEVIN 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D11 Bus Cage 
Marking 

Dublin Bus stop 
139. 

Dublin 
Bus 

Recommended  A new bus cage and double yellow lines are 
required for Dublin Bus Stop 139 on the north 
side of Glasnevin Avenue outside No. 278 
Glasnevin Avenue (SPAR/AN POST), new bus 
cage to be 12.0m long, new double yellow 
lines to be 13.0m long and 14.8m long either 
side of the new bus cage. (1) Install a new bus 
cage on the north side of Glasnevin Avenue, 
starting from a point 25.2 meters east of Lamp 
Post No. 48, extending west for 12.0 meters. 
(2) Install double yellow lines on the north side 
of Glasnevin Avenue, starting from a point 0.3 
meters east of Lamp Post No. 48, extending 
east for 14.8 meters. (3) Install double yellow 
lines on the north side of Glasnevin Avenue, 
starting from a point 25.2 meters east of Lamp 
Post No. 48, extending east for 13.0 meters. 

0 06/06/2017 

17 20061 Traffic 
Conditions 

GLEBE VIEW 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Traffic 
Calming 

Request for traffic 
calming measures 
in Glebe View off 
Church Street. 

resident Not 
Recommended 

It is the policy of Dublin City Council not to 
provide traffic mirrors as they give a distorted 
view of approaching traffic which is potentially 
hazardous and also because such mirrors 
attract a high degree of vandalism with 
associated maintenance costs. Traffic Calming 
by way of ramps is not recommended as 
Glebe View does not meet the criteria, the 
road must be a straight run of at least 200m 
and vehicular traffic must exceed 60 vehicles 
per hour. 

0 10/09/2015 

18 36380 Traffic 
Signs 

GLENDUN 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D9 Children 
Crossing 
Sign 

request for signs 
near green. 

Deputy 
Rock 

Not 
Recommended 

Upon site inspection it was noted that there 
are Children Crossing Signs located at both 
ends of Glendun Road Further signage is not 
recommended within the road, as this would 
lead to a proliferation of signs and 
maintenance costs where motorists have 
already been warned on entering the road. 

1 24/01/2017 

P
age 122



19 37576 Parking 
Prohibitions 

GLENTIES 
PARK (NW-EA) 

D11 Parking 
Prohibition 

at the junction of 
Glenties Park and 
Cardiffsbridge 
Road. 

resident Not 
Recommended 

Double yellow lines or other parking 
restrictions are not recommended on the 
corners of the junction of Glenties 
Park/Cardiffsbridge Road as parking 
prohibitions are already in place. Under The 
Roads Traffic Act (Traffic & Parking) 
Regulations, Section 36 (c) a vehicle shall not 
be parked on a public road within 5 metres of a 
road junction. Section 36 (2) Road Traffic Act a 
vehicle shall not be parked - (i) on a foot way, 
a grass margin or a median strip. 
Infringements of the Act should be reported 
Dublin Street Parking Services on 01 6022500 
or the Gardaí as they occur. 

0 04/04/2017 

20 19152 Traffic 
Conditions 

KEMPTON 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D7 Traffic 
Calming 

at the entrance to 
the Kempton Estate 
off the Navan Road. 

cllr 
Costello 

Not 
Recommended 

It is not recommended to install traffic calming 
by way of ramps or a raised entry treatment at 
the entrance to Kempton Avenue. At the 
entrance to the estate there is a significant 
right bend. In order for criteria to be met for 
consideration of installing ramps, the road 
must be a straight run of at least 200m and 
traffic volumes should exceed 60 vehicles per 
hour. 

0 21/07/2015 

21 38025 Traffic 
Conditions 

LARKHILL 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D9 Traffic 
Calming 

Request for traffic 
calming measures 
to be considered on 
the stretch of road 
connecting Larkhill 
Rd.and Swords Rd. 

cllr Reilly Recommended The Swords/Airport to City Centre Bus Rapid 
Transit by the National Transport Authority has 
design drawings which earmark this junction 
for potential development to increase public 
transport and pedestrian links along this 
corridor, including toucan crossings and new 
raised entry treatment. 

0 24/04/2017 

22 18878 Traffic 
Conditions 

LINDSAY 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D9 Speed 
Ramps 

Request for 
additional speed 
ramps on above 
road. 

resident Not 
Recommended 

Following a recent speed survey at the 
location it was noted that the 85th percentile 
average speed was 40kph and traffic flow was 
less than 60 vehicles per hour, Lindsay Road 
therefore does not meet the criteria for 
additional speed ramps. 

0 24/06/2015 

P
age 123



23 38531 Traffic 
Signals 

MILLMOUNT 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D9 Right Turn 
Filter Light 

Request for right 
turn filter from 
Drumcondra Rd 
Upper onto 
Millmount Avenue. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Deputy 
Rock 

Not 
Recommended 

ITS have looked at this junction and the 
inclusion of a dedicated phase for a right 
turning movement would necessitate a 
reduction in the time available for other traffic 
movements at this junction. This would result 
in increased delays and queues on 
Drumcondra Road which is already heavily 
congested at peak times and therefore a right 
turn filter light is not considered to be feasible 
in this instance. ITS will continue to monitor 
traffic movements at this junction and, if 
necessary, consider what changes may be 
beneficial. 

3 24/05/2017 

24 34155 Traffic 
Conditions 

NAVAN ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Traffic 
Calming 

Traffic calming 
measures for 
Navan Rd, 
particularly at 
entrance to Darling 
Estate. 

resident Not 
Recommended 

This is a main arterial route used by the 
emergency services and as such is not 
appropriate for traffic calming. Enforcement by 
An Garda Síochána is the appropriate control 
on a road of this nature. See Full Report. 

0 04/10/2016 

25 27780 Parking 
Prohibitions 

PROSPECT 
WAY (NW-EA) 

D9 Bus Lane Relocate the Bus 
Lane to the middle 
lane. 

resident Not 
Recommended 

The bus lane is located on Prospect Way to 
facilitate the efficient flow of public transport 
travelling from Finglas Road south to Prospect 
Way to the bus stop located on the road. 
Changing the location of the bus lane will 
increase travelling times for public transport 
and reduce the ease of access to the bus stop 
on Prospect Way. Dublin City Council supports 
sustainable public transport, and in order to 
maximise the flow of bus transit it is not 
recommended to change the location of the 
bus lane. 

0 10/11/2015 

26 30993 Parking 
Prohibitions 

RATHLIN 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow Lines 

on the road 
opposite the 
entrance to 400 
Griffith Avenue. 

Deputy 
Rock 

Not 
Recommended 

DYL’s are not recommended as it is illegal to 
park across or obstruct an entrance under the 
Road Traffic Act. Under The Road Traffic 
(Traffic & Parking) Regulations, Section 36 
paragraph (2) g; “A vehicle shall not be parked 
in any place, position or manner that will result 
in the vehicle obstructing an entrance or an 
exit for vehicles to or from a premises, save 
with the consent of the occupier of such 
premises;” Infringements should be reported to 
Dublin Street Parking Services tel no. 01 
6022500 or the Gardaí for enforcement under 

0 25/04/2016 

P
age 124



the law. 

27 12692 Traffic 
Signals 

SAINT 
CANICES 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 Traffic 
Lights 

 at the junction of St 
Canices Rd and 
Ballymun Rd. 

cllr Breen Not 
Recommended 

Upon site inspection it was noted that the side 
traffic flows from St. Cancies Road are 
not sufficient to warrant traffic lights at this 
time. 

0 04/06/2014 

28 37289 Parking 
Prohibitions 

SEVEN OAKS 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow Lines 
(Extend) 

 outside No. 43 
around the full 
square. 

resident Not 
Recommended 

Double yellow lines were installed outside No. 
42 Seven Oaks several years ago to improve 
visibility and traffic flow. Further parking 
restrictions would shift parking and further 
impinge on the free parking amenity of local 
residents. Therefore extending the double 
yellow lines is not recommended. 

0 27/03/2017 

29 36738 Parking 
Prohibitions 

SHANDON 
CRESCENT 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Pay & 
Display & 
Permit 
Parking 

on the road.  resident Recommended Recommended subject to ballot of residents 
(TAG 27/06/17). 

0 23/01/2017 

30 38514 Parking 
Prohibitions 

SHANDON 
DRIVE (NW-EA) 

D7 Pay & 
Display & 
Permit 
Parking 

Introduction of a 
Scheme on the 
road.  

resident Recommended Recommended subject to ballot of residents 
(TAG 27/06/17). 
  

0 10/05/2017 

31 32440 Parking 
Prohibitions 

SHANDON 
PARK (NW-EA) 

D7 Double 
Yellow Lines 

Request for DYL's 
outside 114, 

resident Not 
Recommended 

Double Yellow Lines are not recommended as 
it is illegal to park across or obstruct an 
entrance under the Road Traffic Act. Under 
The Road Traffic (Traffic & Parking ) 
Regulations, Section 36 paragraph(2) g; “A 
vehicle shall not be parked in any place, 
position or manner that will result in the vehicle 
obstructing an entrance or an exit for vehicles 
to or from a premises, save with the consent of 
the occupier of such premises;” Infringements 
should be reported to Dublin Street Parking 
Services tel no. 01 6022500 or the Gardaí for 
enforcement under the law. 

0 01/07/2016 

32 38441 Parking 
Prohibitions 

SHANDON 
PARK (NW-EA) 

D7 Pay & 
Display & 
Permit 
Parking 

Introduction of a 
Scheme on the 
road.  

resident Recommended Recommended subject to ballot of residents 
(TAG 27/06/17). 

0 19/05/2017 

P
age 125



33 6358 Traffic 
Signals 

SHANGAN 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 Traffic 
Lights 

At junction of 
Balbutcher Lane 
and Balcurris Road 

cllr 
Wrenn 

Recommended Full four arm pedestrian wrap around has been 
recommended. It is anticipated to be 
completed as part of the 2017 works 
programme. 

3 04/03/2013 

34 28369 Parking 
Prohibitions 

SHANOWEN 
CRESCENT 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Parking 
Prohibition 

in the cul-de-sac. clllr Boud Not 
Recommended 

From site inspection it was noted that there 
was no adverse issues to traffic flow and there 
is sufficient carriageway width for vehicles to 
pass. It is not recommended to install any 
additional parking prohibitions at this moment. 
Dublin City Council will continue to monitor the 
area in the coming months. 

0 15/12/2015 

35 34652 Parking 
Prohibitions 

SHANOWEN 
CRESCENT 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Single 
Yellow Line 

on one side of the 
section of 
Shanowen 
Crescent coming in 
from Shanowen 
Road 

Deputy 
Shortall 

Not 
Recommended 

From site inspection it was noted that there 
was no adverse issues to traffic flow and there 
is sufficient carriageway width for vehicles to 
pass. It is not recommended to install any 
additional parking prohibitions at this moment 
as double yellow lines extend on the western 
side of the entrance to enhance traffic flow. 
Dublin City Council will continue to monitor the 
area in the coming months. 

0 20/10/2016 

36 19666 Traffic 
Conditions 

THE THATCH 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow Lines 
(Rescind) 

Requesting that 
yellow lines be 
removed from in 
front of ESB Boxes 
across from Thatch 
Road  

cllr 
McAuliffe 

Not 
Recommended 

It is not recommended to rescind the double 
yellow lines. From site inspection it was noted 
that the double yellow lines stop before the 
ESB boxes at the foot of the southern side of 
the ramp. There was no adverse traffic issues 
noted at the location, and traffic was able to 
pass with no obstructions. 

0 14/08/2015 

37 37689 Parking 
Prohibitions 

THE THATCH 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow Lines 
(Extend) 

to past the green 
boxes to No. 1. 

cllr 
McAuliffe 

Not 
Recommended 

It is not recommended to extend the double 
yellow lines. From site inspection it was noted 
that the double yellow lines stop before the 
ESB boxes at the foot of the southern side of 
the ramp. There was no adverse traffic issues 
noted at the location, and traffic was able to 
pass with no obstructions. 

0 13/04/2017 

P
age 126



38 15473 Parking 
Prohibitions 

VILLA PARK 
GARDENS 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Double 
Yellow Lines 

at the footpath 
dishing opposite the 
Credit Union. 

dcc area 
office 

Not 
Recommended 

Double yellow lines are not recommended at 
the dishing at the entrance to the credit union 
as the dishing itself is an entrance: Under The 
Road Traffic (Traffic & Parking ) Regulations, 
Section 36 paragraph(2) g; “A vehicle shall not 
be parked in any place, position or manner 
that will result in the vehicle obstructing an 
entrance or an exit for vehicles to or from a 
premises, save with the consent of the 
occupier of such premises;” Infringements 
should be reported to Dublin Street Parking 
Services tel no. 01 6022500 or the Gardaí as 
they occur. 

0 25/11/2014 

39 15450 Admin WELLMOUNT 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 Engineer 
Query 

Erection of mirrors, 
and/or "Danger 
Vehicles Exiting" 
markings at main 
exit to St. Michael's 
Secondary School. 

school Not 
Recommended 

It is the policy of Dublin City Council not to 
provide concave traffic mirrors as they give a 
distorted view of approaching traffic which is 
potentially hazardous and also because such 
mirrors attract a high degree of vandalism with 
associated maintenance costs. 

0 18/11/2014 

40 32356   WELLMOUNT 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 Engineer 
Query 

Request to review 
vehicle entrance to 
St Michaels School 
in respect of 
approaching 
cyclists. 

school Not 
Recommended 

It’s not recommended to move the footpath or 
grass verge to facilitate cyclists cycling on the 
footpath. Under the Road Traffic Act, It is 
illegal for any road user to drive/cycle on the 
pavement, except in order to access a 
driveway. 

0 28/06/2016 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 127



 
North West Area TAG Minutes continued 27/06/17 

1) Request for Traffic Calming Not Recommended on Navan Road, SR 34155: 

 
There are plans by the National Transport Authority (NTA) to build an efficient bus 
service called the BRT. The BRT offers fast, reliable, predictable and comfortable 
journeys in modern, high quality vehicles. BRT seeks to emulate the service, 
performance quality, and amenity characteristics of a modern light rail-based transit 
system at a much lower cost. Given its cost, flexibility and effectiveness, BRT has a 
key role in the development of an integrated public transport system for Dublin. It will 
deliver higher capacity on existing busy bus corridors and provides an attractive 
alternative to car transport, with fast and reliable journey times. One of these routes 
will be the Blanchardstown to UCD Swiftway BRT and will use the Navan Road. The 
NTA are currently designing the junctions along the route. Dublin City Council is 
awaiting to see these detailed design drawings from the NTA (e.g. awaiting drawings 
for Darling Road / Navan Road). The speed limit inbound on the Navan Road at 
Darling Estate is 50kph. The Navan Road is a main arterial route in and out of the 
city and traffic calming by way of ramps are not recommended at this moment in 
time. If vehicles are breaking the speed limit then this is a matter of enforcement for 
the Garda. Also Under the road Traffic Act "52.—(1) A person shall not drive a 
vehicle in a public place without due care and attention, or without reasonable 
consideration for other persons using the place. (2) A person who contravenes 
subsection (1) of this section shall be guilty of an offence." 

 

Page 128



 

P
age 129





 
 
The Chairman and Members of 
North West Area Committee. 
 
Meeting: 18th July 2017 
 

Item No: 20 

 
 

Ballymun Area Office Report 
 
 
 

1. Community Update 

2. Housing/Estate Management 

3. Ballymun Economic Development/Town Civic Alliance 

4. Safer Ballymun/Drumcondra Glasnevin 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 131



1. Community Update  

General Community 
Community Team Members attended the following meetings: Axis Events Meetings, 
Nigerian Carnival Group, Sillogue Neighbourhood Centre, Mojo IAG Meetings, Otherworld 
Festival Meetings, Drumcondra Safety Forum, Summer Project City Meeting, Poppintree 
Health for All Group, Poppintree Community Centre, DNWAP, Walk Social Enterprise, and 
Sports Development Officers. The Community team members have ongoing links and 
provide ongoing support for the Sillogue Neighbourhood Centre and the Ballymun Child and 
Family Resource Centre. 
 
Youth 
The Community team are supporting five voluntary and five non voluntary summer projects 
in the local area. Ongoing meetings are taking place with the groups and Crosscare 
Representative Roisin Cloake. Additional supports have been put in place for the Arts 
Sessions and Sports Sessions in Poppintree Community Centre, which are local voluntary 
projects. DCC will assign two summer students to work with the local summer projects. Most 
of the projects will take place in July. The team members are supporting the FACT Autism 
Group (based in Sillogue Neighbourhood Centre) with their summer activity programme. 
 
Social Inclusion 
Men’s Sheds/Groups 
The Ballymun Men’s Shed and DCU are working on a funding proposal (for development of 
sheds in the DCU Community Garden Space), which will be sent to DCC in the near future. 
Community Team Members are continuing to link in with the groups with regards to this. 
Ongoing meetings took place with the Ballymun Men’s Sheds Group and the Irish Men’s 
Shed Association. A meeting was also held with the Ballymun Men’s Centre in relation to 
funding and continued support. 
 
Older Persons 
Community team members linked with the following groups: Active Living, Age Friendly 
Group, and BADIG.  
 
Ladies Groups 
Community Team Members provided ongoing support to Sillogue Ladies Group and the new 
Ballymun Allsorts Parents Group. 
 
Environmental 
The team are continuing to work alongside the Public Domain Staff to support this year’s 
Pride of Place Entry for the North West Area (the residents and environmental upgrades in 
Doon Court, Graigue Court and Knowth Court and surrounding areas). They are also 
continuing to attend meetings with the groups as they work on their presentation for the 
competition. Ongoing meetings took place with Public Domain Staff in relation to local 
environmental initiatives and distribution of planters, blue bags, brushes etc. The Community 
Team continue to work with environmental groups on various planting projects. To date, over 
40 community groups have received support and plants from the section. The second 
Greening of the Area Workshops (GAP, DCC, local residents, Poppintree Youth Project) 
took place at Druid Court/Termon Court and was a very successful day. The community 
team members assisted the Ballymun Tidy Towns Committee with their judging programme 
on Wednesday the 28th June. Entries have increased this year and areas have significantly 
improved. 
 
Events 
The team members continued to roll out the new plan for Otherworld Festival 2017. To date 
including the overall Festival Committee, two working groups: (1) Parade and (2) Community 

Page 132



Groups have been established and are meeting on an ongoing basis. A number of new 
community group members have become involved and are working on a number of 
initiatives including a new revamped ‘Zombie Walk Parade’ and an even bigger space 
designed by community groups for the Plaza on Halloween Night. 
 
2. Housing/Estate Management Updates 

C.C.T.V  
The C.C.T.V system is working well. The remaining work on upgrading the system is 
continuing on a phased basis throughout the year.   
 
Insulation Programme 
The insulation works are continuing at present in Sillogue Gardens  
 

Ballymun Rent Assessment Update 
 

 June 2017 
 

Assessments 
 

223 

Permission To Resides 
 

11 

Refunds 
 

5 

Opening of Accounts 
 

11 (including 6 sole/successions) 

Closing of Accounts 
 

2 

Front Counter Calls 
 

318 

Window Replacements 
 

3 

 
Ballymun Lettings January – June 2017 
 

Allocation Category  Housing List Transfer List 

Band 1 Priority   

Welfare 5 1 

Travellers 1  

Surrendering Larger  1 

Medical 2 2 

Homeless 21  

Regen   

Band 2 8 2 

Band 3 8 8 

Sub Total 45 14 

Total Lettings 59 

Page 133



 
Estate Management January - June 2017 
 

No of Anti social complaints per 1997 act   Drug Related 29 

No of Anti social complaints per 1997 act   Not Drug Related 110 

No of other Complaints  

Total Complaints 139 

No of Anti Social Interviews per 1997 act 32 

No of Other Interviews 21 

Total Interviews 53 

No Requests for mediation  

No of Complaints referred to central unit for Action  

No of Section 20 Evictions  

No of excluding Orders applied for by Tenant  

No of Excluding orders applied for by DCC  

No of surrender of Tenancies due to Anti Social Behaviour  

No of Tenancy Warnings sent to Central Unit  

No of Court Orders Granted  

No of Appeals / Judicial Reviews Challenges  

No of Warrants executed (Evictions)  

 
 

Ballymun Voids 

Address Number Type  

Ballygall Parade 87 2 Bed Under Repair 

Carton Road 1 3 Bed  Under Repair 

Forestwood Ave 62 2 Bed Under Repair 

Carton Way 12 1 Bed Under Repair 

Coultry Ave 67 3 Bed Under Repair 

Carton Terrace 6 2 Bed Under Repair 

Coultry Terrace 18 2 Bed Under Repair 

Forestwood Ave 69 3 Bed Under Repair 

Whiteacre Place 34 1 Bed Under Repair 

Woodhazel Close 12 1 Bed Under Repair 

Balcurris Park West 8 1 Bed Under Repair 

Carton Road 10  Under Repair 

    

Senior Citizens    

Ard Na Meala 40 OPU Under Repair 

Albert College 17,25,20 OPU Under Repair 

Hampstead Court 36, OPU Under Repair 

Burren  Court 22, 24, 26, ,41 OPU Under Repair 

Botanic Avenue 139, 147,105, OPU Under Repair 

Sandyhill Gdns 20f OPU Under Repair 

Page 134



    

Pyrite Refurb     

Sandyhill Terrace 5 2 Bed  

Doon Court  8 3 Bed  

Owensilla  53 3 Bed  

Carton Close 4 2 Bed  

Ballygall Crescent 36 3 Bed  

Belclare Ave 10 3 Bed  

Druid Court 45 3 Bed  

Carton Way 4 1 Bed  

    

Pyrite Long Term    

Carton Court  12 2 Bed  

Carton Court 1 3 Bed  

Carton Court 5 2 Bed  

Owensilla  3 4 Bed  

 
Dumping 
Public Domain in conjunction with the Project Estate Officers in Ballymun continue to target 
residents who are illegally dumping.  Project Estate Officers are carrying out regular calls to 
residents to make sure that they are set up with bin providers.  There is an ongoing dumping 
programme in place to try and target households who have no bin providers.  After a 
meeting with some residents in Coultry Terrace last month, a circular was issued to all 
residents there to refrain from illegal dumping. The problem improved significantly after the 
meeting. Other residents in the area have been steadily interviewed by Project Estate 
Officers over the last couple of weeks to determine who their bin providers are and if none 
are in place we inform them they have ten days to set up an account and produce evidence 
of their bin collection receipts.   This is done in conjunction with a name and shame 
programme run by the Public Domain Unit where cameras have been catching people who 
dump their rubbish and pictures are displayed publicly asking for information on the person.  
 
Older Persons Unit 
There are a number of new environmental projects that the Area Office in Ballymun has 
identified. One of these is the Albert College Complex - this involved removing overgrown 
bushes, shrubs and weeds in the three garden areas with a view to having them paved and 
some planters installed. Initial works have now been completed and we are looking to start 
the next phase of planting and paving in the coming weeks. This will make the area easier 
for residents to manage and become a place for them to sit relax and enjoy the gardens. 
 
We are working with the Liaison Officer in Sandyhill Gardens Older Persons Complex and 
are continuing with a planting project started last month. Residents continue to plant, water, 
dig and tend to the green spaces in the complex.  All equipment is supplied by the Area 
Office and plants are supplied by Community Section.  Residents have said that it is bringing 
the complex together and improving the community spirit. 
 
Residents in Griffith Close Older Persons Complex continue to look after the green space 
with the equipment provided by the Area Office and will now receive plants from DCC 
Community Section to bring some colour to the space and so they can enjoy the new 
benches recently installed.   
 
 
 
 

Page 135



Planters 
Residents groups that have been involved in regular clean-ups and engaged with us have 
been given large planters by Public Domain to help enhance the great work done. Shangan 
Avenue received two planters with a nameplate as they have been out every weekend doing 
clean ups and have put plant boxes around all trees that line the road and planted flowers 
inside.  The road looks better and residents have expressed a new found pride and feeling of 
togetherness for their area as a result of all their hard work. Whiteacre Close received two 
planters for their involvement and clean ups. They have planted around all tree beds and 
done a weeding project on the paving stones. 
 
Pride of Place nomination 
Residents in the Doon/Knowth/Druid and Graigue Court area along with Crannog Estate and 
Belclare Estate have been nominated for a Pride of Place award this year.  Public Domain 
has been working with residents to give them the best chance of winning an award.  There 
have been clean-ups, planting projects, painting and equipment given, topsoil, plants and 
much more including advice and support.  This is a fantastic achievement and will be a 
chance to show Ballymun in a positive light and showcase all the residents’ hard work.  
Judging will take place on August 29th at 2:30. 
 
Clean-ups 
A number of our tenants in the Shangan and Coultry area have requested skip bags so they 
can organise a clean-up of their property.  
 
Road Maintenance 
Bollards and pathways in the Shangan and Coultry area that were damaged over the last 
few weeks will be repaired shortly. 
      
3. Ballymun Economic Development/Town Civic Alliance  

Economic Strategy 
The next economic sub-committee meeting will take place on Thursday 31st August 2017.   

 
Stimulating economic activity 
Start-Up Ballymun  
Planning for the next event will begin soon.  It’s most likely to take place in October. We 
have yet to decide on a theme.  The ‘Digital’ theme proved extremely popular last year and 
is still very much an area of interest with start-ups and early stage business.  We will host 
another digital themed event. All the latest news and updates can be found on Facebook: 
Startup Ballymun and twitter: @startupballymun  
 
Ballymun4Business (B4b) 
The B4b steering committee meet on a regular basis and have lined up a number of 
networking events for 2017.  Our most recent event was Social Media for business and 
focused on the security measures business should consider when using social media 
platforms.  We were delighted to have Tim Eacrett from Magnet Networks deliver a 
workshop to the group.  Marie Clare Byard of Now Media did a piece on ‘Vlogging’ and the 
impact it can have on raising the profile of your business.  

Title Venue Date 

For ALL members Social Media 
for Business 

Council 
Chamber 

Completed 

Online Trading Vouchers 
information session 

Members 
Room 

18/07/2017 

Be Inspired – Key-note speaker: 
The Happy Pear 

Musgrave 19/09/2017 

Page 136



 
 
 
 
 
Bookings and further information can be found on www.b4b.ie  
 
Awards 
B4b will also be entering Ballymun into the Bank of Ireland ‘Enterprising Towns/Villages 
competition:  https://businessbanking.bankofireland.com/campaigns/enterprising-town-
awards/  
 
Food Enterprise – An application for feasibility funding is being submitted to Enterprise 
Ireland to research the viability of creating a food enterprise hub in Ballymun.   
 
Vacant Neighbourhood commercial units  
 
Pilot – We have decided to carry out modifications work on a vacant unit in Sillogue and 
seek expressions of interest for a barber.  At the moment we are pricing up the costs which 
will determine the level of detail we can go into. The unit in question is c 50 sq m. and the 
majority of enquiries have come from barbers seeking to expand, relocate or start up. While 
some of the interested parties have a steady cash-flow the main stumbling block is the 
capital investment required to upgrade the unit. As much as budgets will allow DCC will do 
some upgrade and refurbishing - flooring, plastering, bathroom, kitchenette, suspended 
ceiling etc and seek expressions of interest for a barbershop in Sillogue.  We are hopeful 
that this pilot will raise the profile of interested parties and the best application will be 
selected.  We are awaiting quotations to be submitted from 2 suppliers. 
 
The current status of vacant units is:  
 

Location Ownership Status Comments 

Coultry Unit B DCC T&C’s offered for a 
new café 

MUD issues very 
close to being 
resolved. Tenant still 
very eager to progress 
with café 

Coultry Unit C & D DCC Vacant Negotiations have 
taken place with 
pharmacist on Unit C 
A number of viewings 
have taken place on 
Unit D with limited 
follow-up 

Sillogue, Unit 3 DCC Vacant   See above 

Shangan Unit 3 DCC Vacant   Available, To be 
advertised shortly 

Shangan, Unit 4 DCC Vacant   Available, To be 
advertised  shortly 

Turnpike, Unit 1 & 2 DCC Vacant   Available – advertised 
on Daft, Facebook & 
Twitter etc. 3 enquires 
since ad went live on 
29/06 

 

Brexit – Implications for Local Irish 
businesses 

TBC 17/10/2017 

B4b Business Recognition Awards TBC 1st w/o Dec 

Page 137

http://www.b4b.ie/
https://businessbanking.bankofireland.com/campaigns/enterprising-town-awards/
https://businessbanking.bankofireland.com/campaigns/enterprising-town-awards/


Free Wi-Fi for Plaza – The Wi-Fi installation has been completed and is now fully functional.  
We have had an initial conversation with axis about staging an event to launch the Wi-Fi.  
 
Civic Alliance Update 
The next Civic Alliance Meeting will be held on 7th September 2017, where there will be an 
updates on the Super Depot Project and the LAP. The next Economic Sub Committee 
meeting will be held on 31st August and the Social Sub Committee and Physical Sub 
Committee’s will resume meetings in September.  
 
Draft Ballymun Local Area Plan Update 
 
A total of 226 submissions were received by Dublin City Council during the public 
consultation period of the Draft Ballymun Local Area Plan (the consultation period ran for a 
period of 6 weeks from Wednesday 5th April to Wednesday 17th May). A ‘Chief Executive’s 
Report on Submissions from Public Display of Draft Plan’, Report no. 199/2017 was 
prepared. Following the circulation of that report to Elected Members, motions were invited 
from the Members.  
 
A total of 58 motions were submitted on the Draft Plan. The ‘Chief Executive Report on 
Motions from Elected Members’, Report no. 254/2017 was prepared and circulated to 
Members in advance of the Special Council Meeting on the 11th July.  
 
Members considered the above named reports at the Special Council meeting on the 11th 
July. The purpose of the meeting was to reach agreement by resolution on amendments to 
the Draft Ballymun Local Area Plan.  
 
Shopping Centre: We are still waiting on the Credit Union and the Job Centre to complete 
the fit out of their units in the Civic Centre. At this stage we are waiting on fire cert approvals 
etc. There are still 2 commercial occupiers trading in the Shopping Centre. One of these 
occupiers has applied for an arbitration regarding the assessment of compensation.  
 
Northern Site 
Lidl signed a contract for the Ballymun site in the middle of May. They had a pre planning 
meeting at the start of June.  Under the terms agreed they are to endeavour to lodge within 
eight weeks of signing the contract.  
 
Housing site:  Balbutcher Lane-Cranogue Road Site, Ballymun-  
All replies have been received from the relevant Service Departments and the matter has 
now been referred to the Chief Valuers Department with a view to the site going to the open 
market as soon as possible. 
 
 
Safety Fora Updates 
 
Safer Ballymun 
A meeting of this forum took place on Tuesday June 13th at 7pm in the Council Chamber, 
Ballymun Civic Centre. It was well attended by local residents, DCC staff and public 
representatives. A verbal presentation was given about the new Domestic Abuse Unit in 
Ballymun Garda Station. It is working well and providing much needed support for victims of 
domestic abuse in the area. Residents discussed various issues on the night such as crime, 
especially burglaries to people’s properties, anti-social behaviour due to gangs congregating 
in public areas and the parks, a recent shooting that had taken place, quad bikes and 
scramblers being driven dangerously by youths and drug dealing. 
 
The next meeting is scheduled to take place on Tuesday, September 5th.  

Page 138



 
Drumcondra Glasnevin Community Forum 
A meeting of this forum took place on Wednesday June 28th at 7pm in the Maples Hotel, 
Drumcondra. Gardaí from Santry and Mountjoy Garda Stations were in attendance as well 
as a large number of local residents and some public representatives. Issues such as crime 
in the area, abandoned cars, illegal parking, the lack of bus routes in the area, and motorists 
ignoring traffic signs were discussed on the night. There was a lengthy discussion on the 
upcoming new traffic layout trial on Walsh/Ferguson Road. Residents spoke both for and 
against the trial which is due to take place over the coming months.  
 
The next meeting is scheduled to take place on Wednesday September 27th.       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Mary Taylor 
Assistant Area Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 139





 
 
The Chairman and Members of    Planning and Property Development 
North West Area Committee.    Department 
 
Meeting: 18th July 2017 
 

Item No: 22 

 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
With reference to the proposed assignment of the Council’s leasehold interest in Unit 
1 Coultry Neighbourhood Centre, Ballymun, Dublin 9. 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Under Indenture of Lease dated the 15th March 2007, Unit 1 Coultry Neighbourhood Centre, 
Ballymun, Dublin 9, was demised by Ballymun Regeneration Limited to Coultry Stores 
Limited for a term of 25 years from the 1st January 2007. This is an occupational lease and is 
currently subject to an abated rent of €45,000 per annum.  
 
As part of the MUDs Act 2011 transfer of title in Coultry Neighbourhood Centre, Ballymun 
Regeneration CLG granted a 200 year lease in Unit 1 Coultry Neighbourhood Centre to the 
Council. Mr. Darling, a Director of Coultry Stores Limited, has applied to take an assignment 
of this lease from the Council. 
 
Accordingly, the Chief Valuer has agreed the following terms and conditions for the 
assignment of the Council’s leasehold interest to Coultry Stores Limited in Unit 1 Coultry 
Neighbourhood Centre. The property is shown outlined red and coloured pink on Map Index 
No. SM-2013-0807.  
 

1. That the Council holds a lease in the property for a term of 200 years from the 1st 
December 2005 (less three days).   
 

2. That the assignment of the lease shall be subject to a capital payment of €330,000 
(three hundred & thirty thousand euro) plus VAT, if applicable.  

 
3. Until the completion of this transaction, which shall occur as soon as practically 

possible in 2017, the applicant shall continue to pay the current abated rent of 
€45,000 per annum in respect of the occupational lease. 
 

4. That the applicant shall sign and return the assignment contract and all other 
necessary documents in a time period specified by the Council’s Law Agent.  

 
5. That if this transaction does not complete in 2017, the Council reserves the right to 

withdraw from this agreement and the current occupational lease rent of €65,000 
(sixty five thousand euro) per annum shall be payable by the applicant, as and from 
the date of the Council’s withdrawal.  

 
6. That the applicant shall pay all outstanding charges on the subject property, including 

inter alia, rent, service charges, rates and taxes prior to the completion of this 
transaction. 

Page 141



 
7. That the applicant shall be liable for any VAT and stamp duty liability arising from this 

transaction.  
 

8. That each party shall be responsible for their own costs and fees in this matter. 
 

9. That the dates for the performance of any of the requirements of the proposed 
agreement may be amended at the absolute discretion of the Executive Manager, 
Planning and Property Development Department. 

 

No agreement enforceable at law is created or is intended to be created until an exchange of 
contracts has taken place.  
 

The assignment shall be subject to any such covenants and conditions as the Law Agent in 

his discretion shall stipulate. 

 
 
Richard Shakespeare____ 
Assistant Chief Executive 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 142



 
 
 
 
 

Page 143




	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the North West Area Committee Meeting held on Tuesday 20th June 2017
	2 Questions to the Area Manager
	3 Cabra Area Office Report, Fergus Synnott, Administrative Officer
	4 Recommendation of Cherrymount House, Cherrymount Park, Phibsborough to the Record of Protected Structures, Paraic Fallon, Senior Planner
	6 Housing Cabra/Finglas Report, Derek Healy, Housing Manager
	7 Finglas Area Office Report, Aidan Maher, Assistant Area Manager
	9 Public Domain Report, John Twamley, Public Domain Officer
	10 Report on the Bin Survey/Rollout - Simon Brock, Administrative Officer, Waste Management
	11 Sports & Wellbeing Partnership Report
	12 Housing Allocations Report July 2017
	13 Traffic Service Requests, Status Report
	14 Minutes of the Traffic Advisory Group (TAG) Meeting
	20 Ballymun Area Office Report, Mary Taylor, Assistant Area Manager
	22 The proposed assignment of the Council's leashold interest in Unit 1 Coultry Neighbourhood Centre, Ballymun, Dublin 9

